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AUDIT AND REVIEW REPORTS OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

To the Shareholders of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

AUDIT REPORT OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

have audited the accompanying consolidated and the Bank-only balance sheets as at 30 June 2009

and the related statements of income changes in equity and cash flows for the six-month period then

ended of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED and its subsidiaries and of

KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED respectively The Banks management is

responsible for the correctness and completeness of information presented in these financial

statements My responsibility is to express an audit opinion on these financial statements based on my

audits The consolidated and the Bank-only balance sheets as at 31 December 2008 and the

statements of income changes in equity and cash flows for the six-month period ended 30 June 2008

of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED and its subsidiaries and of

KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED respectively were audited by another

auditor whose reports dated 25 February 2009 and 21 August 2008 respectively expressed an

unqualified opinion on those statements

conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards Those standards

require that plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation believe that my audits provide reasonable basis for

my opinion

In my opinion the consolidated and the Bank-only financial statements referred to above present

fairly in all material respects the fmancial position as at 30 June 2009 and the results of operations

and cash flows for the six-month period then ended of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY

LIMITED and its subsidiaries and of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

respectively in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles



REVIEW REPORT OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

have reviewed the accompanying consolidated and the Bank-only statements of income for

the three-month period ended 30 June 2009 of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY
LIMITED and its subsidiaries and of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

respectively The Banks management is responsible for the correctness and completeness of

information presented in these financial statements My responsibility is to issue report on these

financial statements based on my reviews The consolidated and the Bank-only statements of income

for the three-month period ended 30 June 2008 of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY

LIMITED and its subsidiaries and of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

respectively were reviewed by another auditor whose report dated 21 August 2008 stated that

nothing had come to his attention that caused him to believe that those financial statements were not

presented fairly in all material respects in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

conducted my reviews in accordance with the auditing standard applicable to review engagements

This standard requires that plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether

the financial statements are free of material misstatement review is limited primarily to inquiries

of the Bank personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus provides less

assurance than an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards have not

performed an audit and accordingly do not express an audit opinion on the reviewed financial

statements

Based on my reviews nothing has come to my attention that causes me to believe that the

accompanying financial statements are not presented fairly in all material respects in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles

Somboon Supasiripinyo

Certified Public Accountant

Registration No 3731

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd

Bangkok

26 August 2009



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

ASSETS

BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2009 AND 31 DECEMBER2000

Consolidated

BaIfl

The Bank

Note 30 June 2009 31 December 2008 30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Cash

Interbank and moncy market items

Domestic items

Interest bearing

Non-interest bearing

Foreign items

6.26

17355658678 27751132799 17354052084 27749839530

Interest bearing

Non-interest bearing

Total Interbank and Money Market Items net

Investments

Current investments act

Long-term investments set

Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies set

Total Investments net

Loans and accrued interest receivables

Loans

Accrued interest receivables

Total Loans and Accrued Interest Receivables

Lean Allowance for doubtful accounts

Leas Revaluation allowance for debt restructuring

Total Loans and Accrued Intercst Receivables net

Properties foreclosed net

Customers liability under acceptances

Premises and equipment net

Leasehold net

Iatangibtc assets net

Derivative revaluation

Other assets net

Total Assets

7.26

89

6888126086 5549673110 6888126086 5549673110

502.995.239 1624097788 502995239 1624097788

66771.976.465 t96300I99239 67354959.735 196707.802780

77097810429 68497787570 77013912280 68.259.574086

86514.152583 34233331066 86363055700 34084314271

144560984 213919871 9475876919 9474.176919

163756523996 102945038507 172852844899 111.818.065276

881648.158.249 904.008.482.345 877440.244280 900.587.488788

1.204.920.878 1.485402209 1.174.544842 1454.349.205

882.853079127 905.493884.554 878614.789122 902041.837.993

tO 27725.207.573 26.394024260 26.554.218.568 25.124.927.562

Il 4.122.633.342 3.377677854 4122296141 3377539186

851.005238.212 875.722.182440 847938274413 873.539371245

12 14.526.827.214 14391986376 11.668.363.652 11.228.783.969

522.593.627 491591856 522.593627 491.591.856

14 31642237.733 29.657.262493 30814539587 28.833.796929

34 666.866327 629423909 666.866327 629.423.909

IS 10.122.995422 8.594267.296 8828520984 7282.806133

20763403820 36451821.209 20.763249362 36451.821.209

10008356777 10619.584000 8584179.228 8.818920.137

1187142678.271 1303554490126 1187348443898 1.303552.222973

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these financial statements

56106873701 186731919434 56741571889

3.273.981439 2394508907 3222266521

187 163.373 182

2370.658700



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2009 AND DECEMBER 2008

Baht

Consolidated The Bank

Note 30 June 2009 31 December 2008 30 June 2009 Deccmber 2008

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Deposits 16

Deposits
in bsht 887231.980067 952855541282 887881846377 953.693804451

Deposits in foteign currencies 21.793.420.338 15094.230401 21.793.420.338 15094230401

Total Deposits 909025400.405 967.949771683 909.675.266.715 968788.034852

Interbank and money mailcet items 17

Domestic items

Interest bearing 24303691347 11738122859 25072242076 12271554753

Non-interest bearing 4.590.075.672 3.218.958.724 4.609.266.919 3.237.940863

Foreign items

Interest bearing 2.025.323882 1.008239035 2025.323.882 1008239035

Non-interest bearing 477222869 334378816 477.222870 334378816

Total Interbank and Money Market Items 31.396313770 16299699.434 32184.055.747 16.852.113.467

Liabilities psyuble on demand 10.703.514632 10882926.540 10.703.513.402 10882.805054

Borrowings

Short-term borrowings 18 36.416669508 97635.654.976 36.136.315.414 97.453.984460

Long-term borrowings 19 31 43.731.140.003 40.523.226.790 43.731.140.003 40.523226790

Total Borrowings 80.147.809.511 138158.881766 79.867.455.417 137977.211.250

Banks liability under acceptances 522.593627 491.591.856 522.593.627 491591856

Dcnvative revaluation 18.743.868.284 31.899.969.720 18.743.868.284 31.899.969.720

Provisions 4.270821.413 4.232.519331 4.242.579110 4.207233.191

Other liabilities 15.708.078098 19.976535.433 15151.682.361 19.147314180

Total Liabilities 1.070518399.740 1.189891.895.763 l071.09l014663 1.190.246.273.570

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2009 AND 31 DECEMBER 2000

Baht

Consolidated The Bank

Note 30 June 2009 31 December 2008 30 Junc 2009 31 December 2008

Equity

Share capital

Authorized share capital 20

3048614697 ordinaiy shares Balst 10 parvalue 30486146970 30486146970 30.486146.970 30486.146.970

issued and paid-up share capital

2393260.193 ordinary shares Halo 10 par
value 23932601930 23932601930 23.932601.930 23932.601.930

Premium on ordinary shares 18103109.977 18103109977 18.103109.977 18103.109.977

Appraisal surplus on asset revaluation 14 10849.332.334 10.941.912694 10849.332334 10941.912.694

Revaluation surplus on investments 1247823573 2207073.191 1249.118.040 2.207.793.632

Retained earnings

Appropriated

Legal reserve 3.050.000000 3050000000 3.050000000 3050.000000

Unappropriated 59441358.094 55427843126 59073266.954 55.070.531.170

Total equity attributable toequity holders of the Bank 116624225908 113662540918 116257.429.235 113305949403

Minority isterests 52623 53.445

Total Equity 116624278.531 113662594.363 116.257.429.235 113305949.403

Total Liabilities and Equity 1187.142678.271 1.303554400.126 1187348443.898 1303552.222.973

Off-balance sheet items costingencies
27

Avul to bills and guarantees of loans 2.371171.725 1.563.959.968 2.371171.725 1563.959.968

Liability under unmatured import bills 5188611189 5643988.027 5.188.611.189 5643988027

Lettcrs of credit 18027.735384 17165132.860 18.027.735.384 17.165.132860

Other contingescies 2.443.682331437 2250537.454088 2.443456.062.335 2.250.262.913827

Pol.Oen Pow Sarasin Dr.Prusarn Trairatvorskul

Vice Chairman President

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial atatements



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 200$

UNAUDITED

Babt

Consolidated The Bank

Note 2009 2008 2009 2008

lntcrcst and dividend incomc

Loans 11.963583.302 12400689422 12290508133 2634802855

Interbank and money market itcms 192408.955 435534921 192.495.1129 435705.286

Finance leases 5721113544 442.737574

tnvestmcnts 1.092592.868 1.139923713 1.358949174 1221429643

Total interest and dividend Income 13.821.398669 14418885630 13841953136 14.291937.704

Interest expense

Deposits 20406119441 3361.960.712 2.041.334.412 3363520788

Interbank and money market items 116.117.916 66228995 116.8529111 67.010320

Short-term borrowings 387057161 300225090 3889143269 305419102

Long-term borrowings 527783596 251.374110 529785993 251.374110

Total interest expense 3071648.114 3979.788907 3076956.594 3987332.320

Net income from interest and dividends 10749.750555 10439096723 10764996.542 0.304.605.464

Bad debt and doubtful accounts 24 1603.117.997 361.335.099 1.576.308.416 2113.914.318

Loss on debt restructuring 25 943938492 1617541762 943687.156 1634970.363

Net income from interest and dividends after bad debt and doubtful accounts

and loss on debt restructuring 8.202694.066 8460219.062 8.245000.970 8.385.720783

Non-interest income

Guinlosson investments 287400564 43050088 205681730 50930880

Share of profit from investments on equity method 552099 138766911

Fees and service income

Acceptances aval and guarantees 320077997 263192.753 320077997 263192753

Others 4335089.722 3875778347 3744252809 3360217772

Gain on exchanges 874826.371 1101.398.682 874992679 tOt .545721

Other income 140965874 168905091 109070121 79590361

Total non-interest income 5958912627 5380101483 5334075344 4033615727

Non-interest expenses

Personnel expenses 3378165038 2914020225 275043460 2.473030914

Premises and equipment expenses 14 2053.994602 1678995105 2176733366 1033287698

Taxes and duties 33t .225400 526133763 StK69t000 4191030

Fees and service expenses 1.088974342 980145.654 11043993113 921.312412

Directors remuneration 40878744 42374565 40878744 40874565

Contributions to Financial Institutions Development Fund and Deposit

Protection Agency 873183675 791196.417 873183675 791196417

Other expenses 1366.938019 1221222128 14811.049.920 1339612.400

Total non-interest expenses 9333.360620 8224.087.937 8.952.370769 79t6305436

Income before income tax 4828246073 5.616233.4011 4626.705.545 5323031074

Income tax expense 1.123766275 1.346163288 1000.972904 1.260941702

Net income 3704539798 4.270.070.120 3625732641 4062089372

Net income attributable to

Equity holders of the Bank 3704536264 4270067784 3625732.641 4.062089.372

Minority interest 3534 2336

Net income 3704339798 4270070.120 3625732641 4062089372

BasiceaniingspersharcBaht 20 1.55 1.78 151 .70

Weighted average number of ordinary shares shares 20 2.393260193 2393260.1 93 2393.260193 2393260193

/4
Pol.Gen Pow Sarasin Dr.Prauant Trairatvorakut

Vice Chainnan Prenident

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financtal statementn



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

Baits

Consolidated The Bank

Note 2009 2000 2009 2000

Interest and dividend income

Loans 25.105466933 24302041602 25752241.244 24039669619

Interbank and money market items 865272232 991965.357 065103926 991.154320

Finance leases 1101469236 040640199

Investmcnls 2.179517306 2114520.585 2776964.491 2265205642

Total interest and dividend Income 29331.7257117 20337167003 29.394389661 28096029509

Interest expense

Deposits 5560607154 6493339050 5561372.627 6494720364

Inlerbank and money
market items 175975397 123642.079 177559656 126961309

Short-term borrowings 942.652020 550777192 949.338.512 568805306

Long-term borrowings 1147177697 500676276 1140197660 500676276

Total interest expense 7026410.260 7670436.197 7836468455 7691243335

Net income from interest and dividends 21505.315519 20650731.606 21557.921.206 20.404706.254

Bad debt and doubtful accounts 24 2.979.272.737 1.051210955 2.917.025556 1795.397382

Loss on debt restructuring
25 1927706.645 2003554.726 1.927.423959 1.990161.141

Net income from interest and dividends after bad debt and doubtful accounts

and long on debt restructuring
16590.336137 16.003.965.925 16.713.471.691 16.611.227.731

Non-interest income

Gain on investments 463005.210 735.411772 439.014510 703.700.719

Share of profit from investments on equity method 5641.004 20047293

Fees and service income

Acceptances aval and guarantees
638024.644 563.014.114 630.024.644 563814.114

Others 0245387459 7464545016 7109370160 6491303045

Gain on exchanges 2.003.424373 1.982927005 2003.637917 1.982603880

Other income 274760.226 366160270 243275518 160059590

Total non-interest income 11.630.242.916 It40905550 10554122.749 tOl0I570l46

Non-interest expemes

Personnel expenses 6.707.184.228 5872075.487 5504046654 4879.749.1140

Premises and equipment expenses
14 3926430.862 3.292.034.065 4197719.071 3.501195.598

Taxes and duties 1.079.300.311 1.067.646000 1053.231951 1.044149179

Fees and service expenses 2.112.907177 1.901.835.1146 200603670 .1197.630.501

Directors remuneration 55279705 56.533343 55279705 5353 145

Contributions to Financial Institutions Development Fund and Deposit

Protection Agency
1.746.367351 1.502.392635 1.746.367351 1.502392.835

Other expenses
2305633.752 2040.197256 2.533110476 2.260.532.952

Total non-interest expenses
17933103386 15900714090 17175799911 15.227184246

Income before income tax 10295395667 12.044.156505 10071794529 11.4115.613631

Income tax expense
2.791.090273 3336147954 2563.121364 3185673661

Net income 7504297394 0700000631 7500.675165 8.299.939.970

Net income attributabtc to

Equity holders of the Bank 7504296.115 0708005480 7.508673165 0299.939.970

Minorityinterest 1279 3151

Net income 7504297394 0700000651 7500.673165 8299939.970

Basic earnings per share BahI 20 3.14 3.64 3.14 3.47

Weighted average nnmber of ordinaiy shares shares 20 2395.260.193 2.392902280 2.393.260193 2.392902.208

7t/ ç11

Pot.Gen Pow Sarasin Dr.Prasarn Trniratvorakul

Vice Chairman
Prestdent

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC OMPAN\ LIMITED AND SI B.SIIIAR1ES

STATEMENTS OF HANGES IN EQL ITA

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDEI 10 JUNE 2009 ANI 2008

Note Consolidated

Issued and Premium on Appraisal Revaluation Retained Earnings Total equLts Minority Total

Paid-up Share Share Capital Surplus on Asset Surplus deficit on Appropriated Unappropriated artibstablo Intorosts

Capital Resalaattsa lnvesunents Legal Reserce to equity holdert ci

the Bank

Balanceasof January 2008 23012.023170 l1012.971t.628 9.741.700004 560.261.240 2.920000000 44.070.320.954 99.995.204.376 49 650 99995 334 5116

Appraisal surplus on asset revalasoaa 14 1.290.516969 03.302.210 1.373.099 179 1373 399 179

Others 27.613231 27.013.231 127.613231

Rcvaluanan defictt an mvmntscnc 1.101113.911 1.1001 13911 1111.113 911

Net hacume expense recogatlaed directly In equity 1290.016969 1110.113.911 55763.979 246172037 246.172.11t7

Netmcome p700005.430 0703009 4P0 5191 3703093 63

Total recognised Income and expense 1.290516969 1100.113.911 3763.774499 0.954177.017 SI 3954.1311.663

Dividend paid 23 3509.300.290 3.539090 2911 05390402911

Ordinaey sharer 50.570760 51073 760 50573.7611

Preimamouordmaryshares 91131349 90131349 91.131 349

oaters 302 002

Ending balance an of 30 Jane 2008 23932601930 10l05109.977 11.012.217053 531.032.671 2.920000001 044205125 l155002322l 95163 IllS 531553 570

Balance as of January 2009 23932.601930 10103.119.977 11.941 912694 2207.073191 3050000000 55427043126 113 662.540.913 534.45 113662 594363

Appraisal saoplas on asset revaluaoor 14 03.952909 03952.909

Others 062745 15156234 6.020703 6.523 733

Revalaanan deficit on invmonents 959249.610 959.249.613 19592496161

Net Income enpenaerecogatineddbectly in equity 92.500.360 959249.610 99109145 952720035 1902.721330

Net income 7504296115 7504296.115 279 7504.297 394

Total recognined Income and enpenae 92.500.3603 959249.610 7603405.250 6.551575200 1.279 6551.576509

Divtdond paid 23 3509090.29 3509.090.290 5.53909029t

Others 12101 12101

Endlngbalance asof 3OJuue 2009 23932601930 lP103l09.977 10849332334 1247.123573 3.050.000000 59.441350.094 116.624.225900 52.623 116624.270 531

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



KAlKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY UMITEI AND SUBSIIIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

Babt

Note The Bank

Issued ard lremiom ott Appraisal Revaluation Retained Earnings Total equity

Paid-up Share Share Capital Swplus on Asset Sarplus deficit on Appropnated Unappropriated atnibiatable to equity

Capital Resaloaiion Investments Legal Reserve holders of the Bank

Balance aofI January2008 23002023 170 10112970620 9741 700004 567324250 2920000.000 45.011110670 lOO.135137.602

Appraisalourplnsonannetrevaluatioc
14 1290.516.969 03382.210 1.373899.179

Revaluation deficit on utvestinents 1.101440053 1101440053

Net income expense recognised directly in equity 12911 10.949 11111.440053 033112210 272450326

Net income 6299939970 0.299939970

Total recognised income and expense 1290.516.969 1101440033 0303322100 6.572398296

Dividend paid 23 3509090290 3.5891190290

Ordinary shares S70.761 50578760

Premium ott ordinary shares 90.131.349 90131349

Ending balance as of 30 June 2008 2v952btiI.930 10103.109.977 10221 7053 534.116603 2.920000000 49004542560 105250355717

Balance as oil January 2009 2393241930 10.103.109977 10.941 912.694 2.207793632 3050000000 55070531170 113 305.949.403

Appraisal swplus on aaset revaltaatior 14 03952.909 83952909

Others 8.627.451 8.627451

Revaluation deficit on investments 950675592 958.675.592

Net income expense recognised directly in equity 92580360 958675592 83952909 967303043

Net income 7508673165 7508673165

Total recognIsed income and expenne 92500360 950675592 7592626074 6.541370122

Dividend paid 23 3509890290 3509800290

Eodingbalance as of 30 June 2009 23932.601.930 10.103.109977 10.849.332.334 1.249118040 3.050000.000 59.073.266954 116.257.429235

The accornpanymg notes are an integral part of these financial statements



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

Consolidated

Note 2009 2008

The Bank

2009 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Income before income tan

Add Lens Adjustments to reconcile net income to net

cash from operating activities

10295395667 12044.156585 10.071.794529 11485613.631

Depreciation and amortization

Bad debts and doubtful accounts

Loss on debt restructuring

Interest income from amortization of revaluation allowance for debt restructuring

Gain foreign exchange translation of long-term borrowings

Loss on revaluation of investments

Reversal of loss on impairment of investments in necanties

Gain on disposal of secantics for investment

Amortization of discount on debt instruments

Loss reversal of loss on impairment of investments in receivables

Loss on impairment of properties foreclosed

I.oss reversal of loss on impairment of other assets

Loss on sales of loans

Gain on disposal of premises and equipment

Reversal of loss on impairment of premises and equipment

Share of protit from investments on equity method

Dividend income from associated companies

Effect from full consolidation

Net income from operations before changes in operating

assets and liabilities

Increase decrease in operating assets

Interbank and money market items assets

Securities purchased under resale agreements

Investment for trading

Loans

Properties foreclosed

Other assets

1.404489318 1476.840.673

3250586212 1.851.210.955

1927706645 2003554.726

138.169.888 49777389

180520525 47419148

76070.563 36025703

28741577 447685151

331776.368 276637974

544157.949 815.998.131

592414 19091659

257604201 220050655

35659495 42.911.910

46652.367

1.290545674

170.571.322

1.927.423959

138086297

180520525

76.070563

13700914

343.5 74.546

544.157.949

306586

237.816.430

36.507.806

9.835.053183 11877401273 12056526641 10901332463

129.528549524 18025739845 129.295.899972 18178218138

10700000009 10700000000

5653252960 547407168 5653252960 547.407168

16817839768 85314894.513 18.253960858 83233108.391

2037322.886 2044585597 1.469120.529 1278767513

16.776219.862 5.508.812581 13.967848.456 6807619836

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Baht

1191.533.566

1.795.397382

1998 I6 I4I

47.932265

47419148

36025.703

446921727

2476362 IS

5.855377

205716462

42446257

46.652.367

649007

102522057

4.984457

1.622.920

1026782890

438626 715.003

12996399 102.522.057

5.641.004 28.047.293

75.000000 9.450.000

27 426.701.786

10.749.725 11.487.981

1.757.266 1622.920

856911.432 1392491.463

Amortization of discount on promissoty note receivables

Amortization of discount ott debentures

Decrease in other accrued expenses

Increase in other reserves

Net income from interest and dividends

Proceeds from interest and dividends

Interest paid

Income tax paid

275.246

12.996.399

4.948.307

1.757.266

748.672.188

23281268 79.397.634 23.281.268 79397.634

15238039.556 14.999.062.163 14.848.529860 14.056971406

21.356.395.906 20597466236 21414.886.602 20351.869532

29157.680.894 29042919.989 31.655.079172 28648832713

9665562609 8.120786.238 9.674504.180 8.127911391

3538.708.752 3446328405 3.357.691.609 3.324690.733
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THR SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

Balit

Consolidated The Bank

Note 2009 2008 2009 2008

Increase decrease in opcrating liabilities

Deposits 58.924371.278 53307591977 59.112.768.137 53738.777493

Interbank and money market items liabilities 15096.614336 791997382 15331942280 56 1.073.767

Liabilities payable on demand 179411008 1373613718 179291652 1.373694.245

Short-term borrowings 61218985468 10985.705866 61317669.046 11038062.479

Other liabilities 14039974543 13193572468 13833092812 12963510.582

Net cash provided by operating activities 61382109322 27692686000 61.585.730.049 27370579597

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of available formic investments 105312087345 43764671890 105046635.538 43709.028431

Proceeds from redemption of held to maturity debt instruments 4.079787442 1620322.927 3.928787442 1.440.322975

Proceeds from disposal of general investments 26444732 598680.949 20244732 596922.864

Proceeds from collection of investments in receivables 17341447 239326652 17341447 10363952

Purchase ofavailable formic investments 175899712512 64643463258 175789712512 64487891533

Purchase of held to maturity debt instruments 210981660 201198.000 210981660 201.198000

Purchase of general investments 9665127 31654317 2.565.127 6654317

Proceeds from disposal of premises and equipment 1237340 788847 277.938 650567

Purchase of premises and equipment 2.781.700346 2544.594.445 2.684708.066 1.997149.004

Purchase of intangible assets 2.109208.292 1.394.087.150 2103.623.409 1334.886682

Net cash used in investing activities 1574.369625 22.591205.905 1778.303.677 22270490.747

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in long-term borrowings 3.386.676472 798.849129 3.386676472 798.849.129

Increase in share capital 50578760 50578760

Increase in premium on share capital 00.131.350 90131350

Dividend payments 23 3589.890.290 3.589.890.290 3.589.890.290 3.589.890290

Net cash used in financing activities 203.213818 2650331051 203213818 2650.331051

Net decrease iscreuse is cash and cash equivalents 10395474121 2.451.149.044 10.395787446 2449757799

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginningofthe period 27751132799 18050910229 27749.839.530 18050394496

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 17355.658678 20502059.273 17354052084 20500152295

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenis
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED ANI SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

ANI FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements

INFORMATION

KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED the Bank is registered public company located in the

Kingdom of Thailand and listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand on February 1976 The registered office of the

Bank is at Soi Kasikornthai Ratburana Road Ratburana Bangkok

The principal activity of the Bank is commercial banking and the Bank conducts its businesses through network of

branches covering all parts of Thailand and certain majors cities overseas

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated and Bank-only financial statements are prepared in accordance with the regulations of the Stock

Exchange of Thailand SET dated 22 January 2001 regarding the Preparation and Filing of Financial Statements

and Reports Concerning the Financial Status and Results of Business Operations of Listed Companies B.E 2544

and with the Bank of Thailand B0T notification number SOR NOR SOR 70/2551 dated August 2008 titled

Preparation and announcement of the financial statements of commercial banks and holding companies which are

parent company of group of companies offering financial services and in accordance with Thai Accounting

Standards lAS including related interpretations and guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting

Professions and in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in Thailand

The interim financial statements are presented in accordance with the Thai Accounting Standard No 34 revised

2007 regarding Interim Financial Statements formerly TAS 41 and have been prepared for the purpose
of

providing an update on the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 They focus on new

activities events and circumstances to avoid repetition of information previously reported Accordingly these

interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2008

The financial statements are presented in Thai Baht rounded to the nearest million unless otherwise stated and are

prepared under the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies

The financial statements issued for Thai reporting purposes are prepared in the Thai language This English

translation of the financial statements has been prepared for the convenience of readers not conversant with the Thai

language
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

The consolidated financial statements of the Bank consist of the Bank and its subsidiaries Details of the Banks

subsidiaries are as follows

Shareholding of the Bank

Direct and Indirect

30 June 2009 31 December2008 3OJune2008

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd Phethai-AMC 100.00 100.00 100.00

Kasikorn Research Center Co Ltd KResearch 100.00 100.00 100.00

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd KAsset 100.00 100.00 100.00

Kasikorn Securities Public Co Ltd KSecurities 99.99 99.99 99.99

Kasikorn Factoring Co Ltd KFactoring 100.00 100.00 100.00

Kasikorn Leasing Co Ltd KLeasing 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Land and Buildings Co Ltd PLB 100.00 100.00 100.00

KHAO KLA Venture Capital Management Co Ltd KHAO KLA 100.00 100.00 100.00

K-SME Venture Capital Co Ltd K-SME 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Gunpai Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Plus Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Facilities Management Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Management Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Software Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Storage Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Service Support Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Service Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress HR Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Appraisal Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Collection Co Lid 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Training Co.Ltd 100.00

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd
directly

and
indirectly

holds 100% shares in KHAO KLA Venture Capital

Management Co Ltd
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Phethai Asset Management Company Limited is company registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and was

approved by the Bank of Thailand BoT on 13 October 1999 to register as an asset management company under the

Ministerial Regulation B.E 2541 issued with regard to the provisions of the Asset Management Company Act

B.E 2541 The company is located at 252/6 Muang Thai-Phatra Tower Floor 13-14 Ratchadaphisek Road

Huaykwang Bangkok and was established with the objective of managing substandard assets transferred from the

Bank

Kasikorn Research Center Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is

located at 400/22 Kasikornbank Building Floor and Phaholyothin Road Samsennai Phayathai Bangkok

The companys main business is to support the Bank with research work and public relations

Kasikorn Asset Management Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is

located at 252/6 Muang Thai-Phatra Tower Floor 30 32 Ratchadaphisek Road Huaykwang Bangkok

The companys main business is assets and funds management

Kasikorn Securities Public Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is

located at 400/22 Kasikornbank Building Floor 19 Phaholyothin Road Samsennai Phayathai Bangkok

The companys main businesses are securities and investment banking

Kasikorn Factoring Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is located

at 252/20 Muang Thai-Phatra Tower Floor 16 Ratchadapisek Road Huaykwang Bangkok The company was

established to furnish commercial financial services to businesses including factoring finance leases operating

leases and hire purchase

Kasikorn Leasing Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is located at

400/22 Kasikornbank Building Floor 17 Phaholyothin Road Samsennai Phayathai Bangkok The companys

main businesses are leasing and hire purchase

Progress Land and Buildings Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is

located at 252/9 Muang Thai-Phatra Tower Floor Ratchadapisek Road Uuaykwang Bangkok The company

was established to receive manage and sell properties that have been foreclosed as well as the premises of Phatra

Thanakit Public Company Limited

KHAO KLA Venture Capital Management Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of

Thailand on 26 July 2007 and is located at 252/38 Muang Thai-Phatra Tower Floor 30 Ratchadapisek Road

Huaykwang Bangkok The companys main business is securities investment management

K-SME Venture Capital Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand on

12 October 2007 and is located at 252/38 Muang Thai-Phatra Tower Floor 30 Ratchadapisek Road Huaykwang

Bangkok The companys main business is venture capital

Progress Gunpai Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is located at

400/22 Kasikombank Building Floor Phaholyothin Road Samsennai Phayathai Bangkok The companys main

businesses are to provide transportation service of cash and valuable assets to the Bank including cash count

service packing and change of cash to Automatic Teller Machines
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Progress Plus Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is located at 306

Suapa Road Pomprab Pomprab-satrupai Bangkok The companys main businesses are to deal in the business of

agency/brokerage sales of inventories and/or service contractor particularly office stationery printing matters and

other goods

Progress Facilities Management Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand

and is located at 400/22 Kasikornbank Building Floor Phaholyothin Road Samsennai Phayathai Bangkok

The companys main business is to provide building management services to the Bank and related parties

Progress Management Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is

located at 252/9 Muang Thai-Phatra Tower Floor Ratchadapisek Road Huaykwang Bangkok The companys

main business is engaged as the custodian and management of assets received from debt settlement of the Bank

including related parties assets which have been transferred in in order to keep these assets in good condition for

sale or rent

Progress Software Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is located at

306 Suapa Road Pomprab Pomprab-satrupai Bangkok The companys main business is to render the service of

designing computer program and training in the use of hardware and software

Progress Storage Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is located at

400/22 Kasikombank Building Floor Phaholyothin Road Samsennai Phayathai Bangkok The companys main

business is to provide inventory management services used as collateral for bank loans

Progress Service Support Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is

located at Kasikornbank Building Soi Kasikornthai Ratburana Road Ratburana Bangkok The companys main

business is to provide information relating the Banks products and services through customer relationship channels

including selling and marketing via telephone banking

Progress Service Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is located at

400/22 Kasikornbank Building Floor Phaholyothin Road Samsennai Phayathai Bangkok The companys main

business is to provide drivers security guards cleaners and other related services for the Bank and related

parties

Progress HR Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is located at

1019/15 Kasikornbank Building Sanampao Branch Floor 2-3 Phaholyothin Road Sanisennai Phayathai

Bangkok The company main business is to provide outsourced employee services to the Bank and related parties

Progress Appraisal Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is located at

252 Phaholyothin Road Samsennai Phayathai Bangkok The companys main business is to appraise assets
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Progress Collection Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand and is located

at Kasikornbank Building Soi Kasikornthai Ratburana Road Ratburana Bangkok The companys main

businesses are collection and debt restructuring for consumer and corporate loans of the Bank and its subsidiaries

Progress Training Company Limited is company which is registered in the Kingdom of Thailand on April 2009

and is located at Kasikornbank Building Soi Kasikomthai Ratburana Road Ratburana Bangkok The companys

main business are offering of training services to develop the skills of its employees of the Bank and its subsidiaries

On April 2009 the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Bank approved to acquire an additional

19191635 ordinary shares of Muang Thai Fortis Holding Co Ltd at price of not more than Baht 7244 million

in order to increase the percentage of share holding by the Bank from 10% to not less than 51% in Muang Thai

Fortis Holding Co Ltd Such resolution also approved the entering of connected transaction to purchase additional

ordinary shares of Muang Thai Fortis Holding Co Ltd and acquisition of the ordinary shares from existing

shareholders who are connected to the Bank As of 30 June 2009 the Bank had not acquired such additional shares

As such the consolidated financial statements for the six-month period ended 30 June 2009 exclude such

transactions

The consolidated financial statements prior to the period ended 30 June 2008 exclude the financial statements of

subsidiaries whose financial statements are not material to the Bank

The consolidated financial statements for the six-month period ended 30 June 2009 and 2008 include all financial

statements of the Banks subsidiaries See impact of fill consolidation in Note

The consolidated and the Bank only financial statements include the accounts of all branches domestic and outside

Thailand lnterbranch transactions have been eliminated

USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TAS and generally accepted accounting principles in

Thailand requires management to make judgements estimates and assumptions that affect the application of

policies and reported amounts of assets liabilities income and expenses These judgements estimates and

assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors including managements assessment of the

potential impact on the Bank and subsidiaries operations and financial position of the global economic crisis

Actual results may differ from these estimates
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

The estimates and underlying assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements are reviewed on an

ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the

revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods

In particular information about the significant impact of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying

accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the interim financial

statements are described in note significant accounting policies and in the following notes

Note Investments

Troubled debt restructuring

10 Allowance for doubtful accounts

II Revaluation allowance for debt restructuring

12 Properties foreclosed net

14 Premises and equipment net

15 Intangible assets net

18 Short-term borrowings

19 Long-term borrowings

24 Bad debt and doubtful accounts reversal

25 Loss on debt restructuring

27 Contingencies

30 Commitments

33 Financial instruments
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUIMTED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Bank its subsidiaries and its interest in associates Significant

intra-group transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Bank Control exists when the Bank has the power directly and

indirectly to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that

control commences until the date that control ceases

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Bank has significant influence but not control over the financial and

operating policies The consolidated financial statements include the Banks share of the total recognized gains

and losses of associates on an equity accounting basis from the date that significant influence commences until

the date that significant influence ceases When the Banks share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate the

Banks carrying amount of investment is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to

the extent that the Bank has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of an associate

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method The cost of an acquisition is measured at the

fair value of the assets given at the date of exchange plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition

4.2 Revised Thai Accounting Standards

On 15 May 2009 the FM has made the announcement No 12/2009 to renumber Thai Accounting Standards

lAS to be the same as International Accounting Standards lAS

In 2009 the Bank and its subsidiaries adopted the following revised Thai Accounting Standard lAS and Thai

Financial Reporting Standard TFRS which are relevant to their operations

lAS 36 revised 2007 Impairment of Assets formerly TAS 36

TFRS revised 2007 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

formerly TAS 54

Accounting Guideline on Accounting Record for Leasehold Right
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

The adoption and initial application of these revised TAS and TFRS including new accounting guideline does not

have any material impact on the consolidated and the Bank only financial statements See reclassification from the

application of such accounting guideline in note 34

Furthermore the FAP has made the announcement No 16/2009 to issue new TAS which are not yet effective in

the preparation of these financial statements These new and revised TAS are disclosed in note 36

4.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash in hand and cash items in the process of collection

4.4 Investments

Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Investments in subsidiaries and associates in the Bank only financial statements are accounted for using the cost

method

Investments in other debt and equity securities

Investments in debt instruments or marketable equity securities held for trading are classified as trading

investments and are stated at fair value with any resultant gain or loss being recognized in the statement of

income

Investments in debt instruments that the Bank and its subsidiaries intend and are able to hold to maturity are

classified as held-to-maturity investments and are stated at amortized cost after deduction of allowance for

impairment The difference between the acquisition cost and redemption value of such debt securities is amortized

using the effective interest rate method over the period to maturity

Investments in debt instruments or marketable equity securities other than those securities held for trading or

intended to be held to maturity are classified as available-for-sale investments and are stated at fair value with any

resultant gain or loss being recognized directly in equity The exceptions are impairment losses and foreign

exchange gains and losses which are recognized in the statement of income When these investments are

derecognized the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized directly in equity is accounted for in the statement

of income Where these investments are interest-bearing interest calculated using the effective interest rate

method is recognized in the statement of income

Investments in non-marketable equity securities that are not investments in subsidiaries or associated companies

are stated at cost after deduction of allowance for impairment
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AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Investments in receivables are stated at acquisition cost after deducting the allowance for impairment When debt

restructuring is required the balance is recorded as loan at fair value in accordance with the transfer of financial

asset accounting procedure The difference between the book value and the fair value is recognized as gain or

loss on transfer of financial assets in the statement of income

An impairment review of investments is carried out when there is factor indicating that an investment might be

impaired Losses on impairment for all classifications of investments are charged to the statement of income

Interest and dividend income from investments is recognized on an accrual basis Gains or losses on sales of

securities are recognized in the statement of income upon disposal Interest income from investments in

receivables is recognized by using the effective yield method

Investments in marketable equity securities classified as trading investments and available-for-sale investments are

stated at fair value based on the last Stock Exchange of Thailand SET bid prices as of the end of the period

Investments in marketable unit trusts classified as trading investments and available-for-sale investments are stated

at fair value based on the net asset value as of the end of the period

Investments in government securities and state enterprise securities guaranteed by the government classified as

trading investments or available-for-sale investments arc stated at fair value based on the Thai Bond Market

Association Government Bond Yield Curve as of the end of the period State enterprise securities not guaranteed

by the government and private debt instruments are stated at fair value based on bid prices from the Thai Bond

Market Association as of the end of the period If not available the Government Bond Yield for the same period

adjusted by an appropriate risk premium is used

Disposal of investments

On disposal of an investment the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount together with

the associated cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is recognized in the statement of income

Cost of investments sold is calculated by using the weighted average method

4.5 Loans

Except in the case of loans effected through overdraft agreements loans represent only principal amounts

Unearned discounts received in advance are presented as reduction in loans

4.6 Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts is determined through methods based on the Bank of Thailands regulations and

based on the Banks estimated loan loss The allowance for non-performing loans has been specifically

determined by the nature of loans and the related factors such as payment ability collateral historical loss and

22



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

estimated loss etc The allowance for performing loans has been assessed based upon general related factors such

as historical loss credit risk economic conditions and management experience etc For corporate loans the

allowance is determined on case by case basis while the allowance for retail loans is determined on portfolio

basis for portfolios with similar risk characteristics

Based on BoTs regulations the Bank and certain subsidiaries have classified their loan portfolios into six

categories primarily based on the non-accrual period For loans classified as pass and special-mention the

calculation of allowances for doubtful accounts is based on the regulatory minimum percentage requirement

taking into consideration the collateral value where the collateral type and date of the latest appraisal are

qualifying factors For loans classified as sub-standard doubtful and doubtful of loss the allowances on these

accounts will be set at 100 percent for the difference between the outstanding book value of the debt and the

present value of future cashflows expected to be received or the expected proceeds from the disposal of collateral

in accordance with the BoTs regulations

Allowance for doubtful accounts established during the period are recognized as bad debt and doubtful accounts

expense in the statement of income Bad debt recovery is recognized as income and is presented net of bad debt

and doubtful accounts expense in the statement of income

4.7 Troubled debt restructuring

The Bank and the asset management subsidiary record foreclosed assets acquired from troubled debt restructuring

at fair value up to the legal claim for the debt including interest receivable Where restructuring loan involves

modification of its terms the present value of the expected fI.iture cash collections is calculated by using discount

rates equivalent to the market rates of interest at the time of restructuring The difference between the present

value of the future cash flows expected to be received and the outstanding balances of investment in loans is

recorded in the revaluation allowance for debt restructuring This revaluation allowance for debt restructuring is

amortized to the statement of income according to the amounts received over the remaining period of the

debt-restructuring contracts except for restructured loans with high probability of default on their contractual

obligations and agreement In this latter case the Bank will stop amortizing to the statement of income The

recognition in the statement of income occurs when such risk is eliminated

4.8 PropertIes foreclosed

Properties foreclosed are recorded at the lower of market value or the amount of the
legal

claim on the related

debt including interest receivable The market value is estimated by using the latest appraisal value after

deduction of estimated disposal expenses and holding cost

Losses on impairment are charged to the statement of income Gains or losses on disposal of properties foreclosed

are recorded as other income or expenses upon disposal
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4.9 Premises and equipment and depreciation

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses except for land

and buildings which are stated at their revalued amounts The revalued amount is the fair value determined on the

basis of the propertys existing use at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses

Revalued assets

Land and buildings revaluations are performed by independent professional appraisers according to the Bank of

Thailands criteria with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does not differ

materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the balance sheet date

When an assets carrying amount is increased as result of revaluation the increase is credited directly to equity

under the heading of revaluation surplus However revaluation increase is recognized as income to the extent

that it reverses revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized as an expense

When an assets carrying amount is decreased as result of revaluation the decrease is recognized as an

expense However revaluation decrease is charged directly against any related revaluation surplus to the extent

that the decrease does not exceed the amount held in the revaluation surplus in respect of that same asset The

remainder is recognized as an expense for that period

Upon disposal any related revaluation surplus is transferred directly from the revaluation reserve to retained

earnings and is not taken into account when calculating the gain or loss on disposal

Leased assets

Leases under which the Bank and its subsidiaries substantially assume all the risk and rewards of ownership are

classified as finance leases Equipment acquired by way of finance leases is capitalized at the lower of its fair

value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction

of the lease liability so as to achieve constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability

Finance

charges are charged directly to the statements of income

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of premises and equipment is added to the carrying amount of the asset

when it is probable that the future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance

of the existing asset will flow to the Bank and its subsidiaries All other subsequent expenditure is recognized as

an expense in the period in which it is incurred

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the statement of income over the estimated useful lives of each item of premises and

equipment
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Depreciation on buildings acquired before July 1996 is computed using the declining-balance method

Depreciation on buildings acquired after July 1996 and on equipment is computed using the straight-line method

The estimated useful lives are as follows

Buildings 50 years

Equipment 5-IS years

Gains or losses on disposal of premises and equipment are recorded as other income or expense upon disposal

4.10 Leasehold

Leasehold is presented at cost net accumulated amortization The amortization is calculated using the straight-line

method over the lease periods

4.11 Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill in business combination represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the

Banks share of the identifiable net assets acquired Negative goodwill in business combination represents the

excess of the fair value of the Banks share of the identifiable net assets acquired over the cost of acquisition

goodwill and negative goodwill carried in the financial statements that arose from business

combination for which the agreement date was before January 2008 are stated at cost less

accumulated amortization as of Iecember 2007 and impairment losses

goodwill arising from business combination for which the agreement date begins on or after

January 2008 are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses Negative goodwill is

recognized as income in the statement of income in the year of the business combination

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses

Amortization

Amortization is charged to the statement of income on straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of

intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life arc

systematically tested for impairment at each balance sheet date Other intangible assets are amortized from the

date they are available for use The estimated useful lives are as follows

Software licenses 5-15 years

Deferred underwriting license fee and deferred stock exchange membership fee years
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4.12 Impairment

Thc carrying amount of the Bank and its subsidiaries assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine

whether there is any indication of impairment If any such indication exists the assets recoverable amounts are

estimated

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its

recoverable amount The impairment loss is recognized in the statement of income unless it reverses previous

revaluation credited to equity in which case it is charged to equity

4.13 Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities are recognized initially at fair value less attributable transaction charges Subsequent to

initial recognition interest-bearing liabilities are stated at amortized cost with any difference between cost and

redemption value being recognized in the statement of income over the period of the borrowings

4.14 Provisions

provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Bank has present legal or constructive obligation as

result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Provisions for commitments as off-balance sheet items are determined by credit risk transactions ie Avals on

bills Acceptances letters of indemnity borrowing other guarantees and letters of credit etc provision is

recognized when the transactions relate to loans that are classified as sub-standard doubtfW doubtful of loss and

loss assets The provisions have been specifically determined by using the same rate as the allowance for doubtful

accounts on each of those loans

4.15 DerIvatives

Trading Derivative Trading derivatives are carried at fair value The fair value of derivatives is determined based

upon liquid observable market prices evidenced by exchange traded prices broker/dealer quotations or prices of

other transactions with similarly rated counterparties or based upon valuation technique incorporating

observable market data It includes an adjustment for individual counterparty credit risk and other adjustments as

appropriate to reflect liquidity and ongoing servicing costs The changes in fair value which include realized and

unrealized gains or losses are recognized in the statement of income as part of gain on exchange and assets or

liabilities in the balance sheet

Hedging Derivative The Bank manages its banking exposures to market rate movements outside the trading

activities through the use of derivatives including interest rate swaps interest rate future and forward exchange

contracts Gains or losses resulting from the changes in fuir values of contracts are recognized in accordance with

the standard accounting treatment for revenue or expenses on hedged items as follows
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Where hedged items are carried at fair value hedging instruments are carried at fair value consistently

Where hedged items are carried on an accrual basis then hedging instruments carry the accrual consistently

Hybrid Instrument includes non-derivative host contract and an embedded derivative The host contract shall

be accounted for under the classification of the host contract An embedded derivative shall be separated from the

host contract and accounted for as derivative which is carried at fair value if and only if

The economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and the embedded derivative are not closely

related

separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of

derivative and

The hybrid instrument is not recognized at fair value through the statement of income

If an embedded derivative is not separated the hybrid instrument shall be accounted for under the classification of

the host contract Changes in the fair value of separable embedded derivatives are recognized in the statement of

income

Deposit and borrowing transactions with embedded derivatives

The Banks management approach relating to accounting and fair value assessment relating to deposit and

borrowing transactions with embedded derivatives structured notes are consistent with those of International

Accounting Standard No 39 lAS 39 and the l3oT notification number SOR NOR SOR 13/2551 dated August

2008 titled Permission for Commercial Banks to Undertake Deposit or Borrowing Transactions with Embedded

Derivatives which requires commercial banks to apply lAS 39 to structured note products

Day One Profit Gains or losses from trading derivatives and hybrid instruments are recognized at inception in the

statement of income when the fair value of that derivative is determined based upon observable market data or

supported by comparison to other observable market transactions or based upon valuation technique

incorporating observable market data The Bank amortizes initial gains or losses on derivative transactions on

straight-line basis or on an effective interest rate basis over the life of the contract where the fair value is based

upon unobservable market data The unamortized gains or losses are recognized in the statement of income when

the market data becomes observable

4.16 Employee benefits

Staff retirement benefits

Staff members are entitled to retirement pay upon termination of employment depending upon length of service

and other conditions It is managements policy to recognize an appropriate amount as provision for each

period
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Provident fUnd

The Bank established provident fund under the Provident Fund Act B.E 2530 and registered this Fund with

the Ministry of Finance on 16 August 1994 According to the Funds Articles every employee is entitled to apply

for membership and each member must contribute to the Fund at the rate of 3% of their basic salary while the

Bank contributes an additional 3.0 4.5% Upon termination of employment employees are entitled to receive

this benefit except when terminated without compensation

4.17 Recognition of interest income

Interest and discount income on loans are recognized on an accrual basis except when interest payments are in

arrears for more than three months when regardless of collateral the cash basis is adopted

In compliance with the Hank of Thailands regulation the Bank reverses accrued interest receivable on loans for

which repayments are more than three months in arrears

The asset management subsidiary recognizes interest income on investments in receivables and loans on cash

basis

Income from factoring of subsidiary is recognized on an accrual basis

The lease income of subsidiary is recognized as follows

Income under finance lease agreements is recognized on the basis of installment payments due by using the

effective interest rate method calculated from the balance of the net investment in each installment When

installment payments are in arrears for more than three months the cash basis is adopted

Income under operating lease agreements is recognized on the basis of installment payments due When

installment payments are in arrears for more than three months the cash basis is adopted

4.18 Recognition of interest expense

Interest expense is recognized on an accrual basis

4.19 Income tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period using tax rates enacted at the balance

sheet date

4.20 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue during the period
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4.21 Translation of foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Thai Baht at the rates of exchange

prevailing on the dates of the transactions Assets and liabilities including the balance sheet of the Banks foreign

branches that are denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the year are translated into Thai Baht at the

reference rates announced by the BoT on that date The statements of income of the Banks foreign branches are

translated into Thai Baht at the reference rates announced by the BoT at the month end rate

Exchange gains or losses on translation and on transactions in foreign currencies including foreign exchange

differences arising on the translation of financial statements of the Banks foreign branches are included in

revenues and expenses for the period

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION OF CASH FLOWS

Non-cash items for the six-month periods ended 30 June are as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

2Q 2QQ 2Q2 2Q

Revaluation deficit on investments 959 1100 959 1101

The realized portion of the appraised surplus on asset revaluation 84 83 84 83

Foreclosed properties arising from auction and debt settlement 2416 1656 2134 1505
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INTERBANK AND MONEY MARKET ITEMS ASSETS

Inierbank and money market items assets consisted of

Million l3aht

Consolidated

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Atcall Inn ALall Ienn

Domestic

The BoTand FIDF 2383 53986 56369 2006 179700 181706

Commercial banks 268 1500 1768 1460 5235 6695

Finance securities and

credit foncier companies 20 20 100 100

Other financial institutions 1.230 1.253 606 606

Total Domestic 2694 56716 59410 3566 185541 189107

Accrued interest receivable 21 21 69 70

La Allowance for doubtfW accounts .Jj5 15 50 _fl 50 51

Total 2652 56.722 59.381 3566 185.560 189.126

Foreign

US Dollars 3828 2723 6551 4745 803 5548

Japanese Yen 23 23 123 123

Othercurrencies 819 153 1.500

Total Foreign 4670 2723 7393 6215 956 7171

Accrued interest receivable

Ls Allowance for doubtful accounts 14J 14j

Total 2.725 7.391 2.U 963 7.174

Total Domestic and Foreign 22 22Z 186.523 1.3PQ
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The Bank

Million Baht

Domestic

30 June 2009

ALcll Thnn IQ
31 December 2008

ALll Inn

The BoT and FIDF

Commercial banks

2383 53986 56369

839 1500 2339

2006 179700 181706

1868 5200 7068

Finance securities and

credit foncier companies

Other financial institutions

Total Domestic

AS1 Accrued interest receivable

Les Allowance for doubtful accounts

Foreign

Total

20 20

L2iQ LIIQ

3242 56716 59958

21 21

a-- il5

242 5222 54

100 100

606 606

3974 185506 189480

69 70

15 16

.L924 185.560 189.534

US Dollar

Japanese Yen

Other currencies

Total Foreign

A4S1 Accrued interest receivable

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Total

Total Domestic and Foreign

3828 2723 6551 4745

23 23 123

112

4670 2723 7393

_c4 L4
2.725 L2i

59.7

803 5548

123

L341 153 1.500

6215 956 7171

2LL 963 7.174

QJ 186.523 7Q8
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INVESTMENTS

Investments consisted of

Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2009

Cost Value/

Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value

Current Investments

lrading investments

Govemment and state enterprise

securities 1705 1707

1.1.2 Private enterprise debt instruments 418 418

1.1.3 Marketable equity securities domestic 224 __14 _2
Total 2397 19 2413

Allowance for revaluation

Total

.2 Available-for-sale investments

1.2.1 Govemment and state enterprise securities 69220 670 24 69866

1.2.2 Private enterprise debt instruments 326 46 285

1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 3403 3.403

1.2.4 Marketable equity securities domestic 377 356 192 541

1.2.5 Others __ ........J -._ 14
Total 73409 1032 262 74179

Md Allowance for revaluation 962

Allowance for impairment ..Jj22

Total 14J22 24.1.72

1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

1.3.1 Government and state enterprises

securities 400 402

1.3.2 Foreign debt instruments

Total

1.4 General investments

1.4.1 Non-marketable equity securites domestic 248 248

Less Allowance for impairment .1241

Total

Total Current Investments net 2LA
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Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2009

Cost Value/

Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value

Long-term Investments

2.1 Available-for-sale investments

2.1 Government and state enterprise securities 70.075 470 312 70.233

2.1.2 Private enterprise debt instruments 1.054 22 1.076

2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments 8662 54 51 8665

2.1.4 Marketable equity securities domestic 88 ..J _W __Jll

Total 79.879 632 364 80147

Allowance for revaluation 268

Total 80.147 8QJA1

2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

2.2.1 Government and state enterprises securities 4284 91 4.375

2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 584 L5841

Total 4.868 91 584 4375

Ls Allowance for impairment
584

Total 4.284

2.3 General investments

2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities-

domestic 1743 106 1.637

2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities overseas 307 264 43

2.3.3 Investments in receivables 721 U1

Total
2.771 688 2083

Allowance for impairment
688

Total 2.083

Total Long-term Investments net
X65 14
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Million Baht

Consolidated

31 December 2008

Cost Value/

Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value

Current Investments

1.1 Trading investments

1.1 Government and state enterprise securities 6116 53 12 6157

1.1.2 Private enterprise debt instruments 1.642 1.650

1.1.3 Marketable equity securities domestic ._42 .._

Total 8084 103 12 8175

kl Allowance for revaluation .__9.J

Total iJl5

.2 Available-for-sale investments

1.2.1 Government and state enterprise securities 2.668 1.408 54076

.2.2 Private enterprise debt instruments 46 46

1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 1398 1398

1.2.4 Marketable equity securities domestic 377 233 222 388

l.2.5 Others .jfl

Total 54.726 1642 268 56100

Add Allowance for revaluation 1.566

Allowance for impairment ..j192

Total 5MOQ

1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

1.3 Government and state enterprises

securities 2400 2406

1.3.2 Private enterprise debt instruments 841 846

1.3.3 Foreign debt instruments 92 ..

Total A22 II 4234

1.4 General investments

1.4.1 Non-marketable equity securites domestic 248 248

Lea Allowance for impairment .J24

Total

Total Current Investments net
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Million Baht

Consolidated

31 December 2008

Cost Value

Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value

Long-term Investments

Available-for-sale investments

2.1.1 Government and state enterprise securities 24222 608 24830

2.1.2 Private
enterprise

debt instruments 1193 19 1212

2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments 1.538 33 1508

2.1.4 Marketable equity securities domestic ...4f .._J2 _._L3

Total 27041 676 35 27682

Allowance for revaluation _4J

Total

2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

2.2.1 Government and state enterprises
securities 4435 149 4584

2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 54 5M.

Total 5019 149 584 4.584

Less Allowance for impairment .fl4j

Total 4A1

2.3 General investments

2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities domestic 1786 134 1652

2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities overseas 306 264 42

2.3.3 Investments in receivables aia 4Z2

Total 2832 716 2116

Less Allowance for impairment .i7.1

Total jj
Total Long-term Investments net
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Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2009

Cost Value/

Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value

Current Investments

Trading investments

1.1.1 Government and state enterprises 1705 1.707

1.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 418 418

1.1.3 Marketable equity securities domestic _214 __14 __

Total 2397 19 2413

Allowance for revaluation _J
Total 2.411

1.2 Available-for-sale investments

1.2.1 Government and state enterprises securities 69.220 670 24 69.866

1.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 326 46 285

1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 3403 3403

1.2.4 Marketable equity securities domestic ___3.11 .j5 1122 ___54I

Total 73.326 1.031 262 74.095

jjAllowance for revaluation 961

Laa Allowance for impairment 1191

Total 24.095 24.025

1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

1.3.1 Government and state enterprises securities
400 402

1.3.2 Foreign debt instruments __J.Q IQ

Total

1.4 General investments

1.4.1 Non-marketable equity securities domestic 248 248

Leak Allowance for impairment _24

Total

Total Current Investments net 22.OAt4
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Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2009

Cost Value/

Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value

Long-term Investments

2.1 Available-for-sale investments

2.1.1 Government and state enterprises securities 70075 470 312 70233

2.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 1054 22 1076

2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments 8.662 54 51 8.665

2.1.4 Marketable equity securities domestic Ski

Total 79.876 632 363 80145

kl Allowance for revaluation

Total BQJ4

2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

2.2.1 Government and state enterprises
securities 4284 91 4375

2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments _4
Total 4.868 91 584 4375

Lea Allowance for impairment i514

Total 4.24 4.17k

2.3 General investments

2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities domestic 1.607 90 1517

2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities overseas 306 264 42

2.3.3 Investments in receivables _22 M14

Total 2.592 658 1.934

Lc Allowance for impairment _L5

Total J-.234 L94

Total Long-term Investments net
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Million Baht

The Bank

31 December 2008

Cost Value/

Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value

Current investments

-I Trading investments

1.1 Government and state enterprises 6116 53 12 6157

.1 .2 Private enterprises debt instruments 1642 1650

1.1.3 Marketable equity securities domestic 326 __4

Total 8084 104 12 8176

Add Allowance for revaluation 92

Total 8.176

1.2 Available-for-sale investments

1.2 Government and state enterprises securities 52.668 1.408 54076

.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 46 46

1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 1.398 1.398

1.2.4 Marketable equity securities domestic 377 ....23.2 2.22J

Iotal 54489 1640 268 55861

Allowance lbr revaluation 1564

Less Allowance for impairment 192

Total 55.861

1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

1.3.1 Government and state enterprises securities 2400 2406

1.3.2 Private enterprises
debt instruments 841 846

1.3.3 Foreign debt instruments 982 ...... 982

Total 4.223 II 4.234

1.4 General investments

1.4.l Non-marketable equity securities domestic 248 248

Allowance for impairment 248

Total

Total Current Investments net 6260
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Million Baht

The Bank

31 December2008

Cost Value/

Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value

Long-term Investments

Available-for-sale investments

2.1.1 Government and state enterprises
securities 24221 608 24829

2.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 1.193 19 1212

2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments 1538 33 1508

2.1.4 Marketable equity securities domestic ...I.5 ._.4 __.

Total 27037 676 33 27680

Allowance for revaluation 643

Total .2LQ 2LJQ

2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

2.2.1 Government and state enterprises
securities 4.435 150 4.585

2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments i.4 I54

Total 5019 150 584 4585

Lsa Allowance for impairment J54

lotal _4.5

2.3 General investments

2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities domestic 1.639 103 1536

2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities overseas 306 264 42

2.3.3 Investments in receivables
695 j21

Total 2640 671 1969

Allowance for impairment .J2j

Total .J..22

Total Long-term Investments net
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As of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008 investments in held-to-maturity debt instruments which are government or

state enterprise securities included promissory notes from Thai Asset Management Corporation of Baht 3284 million

and Baht 3435 million respectively

Gain loss on investments presented in the statements of income consisted of

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

For the Three-Month Periods For the Three-month Periods

Ended 30 June Ended 30 June

29 2Q 2Q

Gain on disposal of investments

Held for trading investments III 40 III 20

Available-for-sale investments 260 20 260 19

General investments

Investments in receivables

Total 311 _9 42

Loss on disposal of investments

Held for trading investments 50 81 50 81

Available-for-sale investments 471 471

General investments 25 II

Investments in receivables Jjj

Total 291 5521 51 5521

Loss from revaluation of investments 34 34

Reversal of loss on impairment

Investments in securities 28 460 13 463

Investments in receivables

Total I4

Total gain loss on investments 2S2 421
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AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

For the Six-Month Periods For the Six-month Periods

Ended 30 June Ended 30 June

2Q02 2QQ

Gain on disposal of investments

Held for trading investments 289 203 289 183

Available-for-sale investments 362 168 361 167

General investments 581 580

Investments in receivables

Total 5.I 922

Loss on disposal of investments

Held for trading investments 112 138 112 138

Available-for-sale investments 499 499

General investments J241 ___ ill

Total 1401 1221 631

Loss from revaluation of investments 76 36 76 36

Reversal of loss loss on impairment

Investments in securities 28 448 13 447

Investments in receivables i12

Total 422 441

Total gain on investments 463 135 460 204
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FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERiODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Revaluation surplus on investments consisted of

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008 30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Revaluation surplus on investments

Debt instruments 852 2005 852 2005

Equity securities 2S2 292

Total LZ42 2.2
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

maturity analysis for debt instruments resulted in the following

Consolidated and The Bank

Million Baht

Available-for-sale investments

.1 Government and state

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

year to QiLi year to QYL5

IQ tr

enterprise securities 63804 70875 4616 139295 46233 25222 5435 76890

.2 Private enterprise debt

4Q
Total 67533

Allowance for revaluation 217

Allowance for impairment _J4

Total

Held-to-maturity debt

Instruments

46 1193 1239

4252 12.065 1.398 1.538

8868 152740 47677 27953 5435 81065

330 834 404 734 867 2005

46 46

9j 153.528 4Q35 28.687 3AI2

2.1 Government and state

enterprise securities 400 4245 39 4684 2400 3377 1058 6835

2.2 Private enterprise debt

584 584 841 584 1425

106 982

623 5374 4223 3377 1642 9242

j54 584 5841 54t

4.790 4.223 3.377 LQ5 85

JL 52.258 32M64

Instruments

1.3 Foreign debt instruments

326 1054 1380

AAJ

76339

287

22

instruments

2.3 Foreign debt instruments JQ

Total 506 4245

Allowance for impairment

Total 424

Total Debt Instruments 2iQ 2L
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

ANI FOR TIlE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Investments held by the Bank and its subsidiaries in financial institutions that were closed on December 1997 or investments

in listed companies which meet SETs criteria for delisting and are in default on debt instruments or companies whose ability

to continue as going concem is uncertain or unlisted companies whose financial position and operating results are the same as

companies which meet SETs criteria for delisting or investments in receivables with uncertainty in settlement or in default

were as follows

Million Baht

30 June 2009

Consolidated The Bank

Cost Value Allowance for Cost Value/ Allowance for

Book Value Fair Value Impairment Book Value Fair Value Impairment

Closed financial institutions

Debt Instrument 130 130 130 130

Listed companies which meet

SETs criteria for delisting and

are in default on debt instruments

Debt Instrument 46 46 46 46

Companies whose
ability to

continue as going concern is

uncertain or unlisted companies

whose financial position and

operating results are the same as

companies which meet

SETs criteria for delisting

Equity Securities 651 651 651 651

Debt Instrument 453 453 453 453

Investment in receivables with

uncertainty in settlement

or in default 303

Total
394 1.598
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Million Baht

31 December 2008

Consolidated The Bank

Cost Value Allowance for Cost Value Allowance for

Book Value Fair Value Impairment l3ook Value Fair Value Impairment

Closed financial institutions

-Debtlnstrument 131 131 131 131

Listed companies which meet

Els criteria for delisting and

are in default on debt instruments

Companies whose ability to

continue as going concern is

uncerlain or unlisted companies

whose financial position and

operating results are the same as

companies which meet

SETs criteria for delisting

Equity Securities 646 646 646 646

Debt Instrument 498 498 498 498

Investment in receivables with

uncertainty in settlement

or in default 222 412 303 22 124

Total 419 L2 124
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

For the six-month periods ended 30 June 2009 and 2008 changes in the investments in subsidiaries and associated companies

were as follows

Million Baht

Note Consolidated The Bank

22 2Q2

Net book value at January 2l4 589 9474 9357

Share of
profit

from investments on equity method 28

Establishmentofanewcompany

Effect from full consolidation 427

Dividend income 75

Reversal of loss on impairment

Others

Net book value at 30 June 145 122
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Investments in ordinary shares of subsidiaries and associated companies were as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated

Shareholding

Te of Business Direct and indirect Cost method Equity method

June 2009 31 December 2008 30 June 2009 II Decemb 2008 30 June 2009 31 Decemba 2008

Assoctaled comeanies

Goco Co. Ltd Information and

communication 32.35% 32.35%

System Development

ProcessingCenterCo Ltd Service 30.00% 30.00% 15 IS 105 174

Rural Capital Partners Co Ltd Venture Capital 27.50% 27.50%

Lawson-Marsh Events Co. Ltd Venture Capital 35.71% 35.71%

Sukhothai Land Co Ltd Venture Capital 20.00% 20.00% tO tO 10 10

Humanica Co Ltd Software design and

development 21.60% 21.60% 13 13 13 13

2Spot Communications Co. Ltd Information and

communication 20.17% 20.17%

System Development

Grand Hotel Co. Ltd Hotel 20.00% 20.00/s _315 .J..5 ......6

Total 411 411 152 221

Lea Allowance for impairment Qj ..jfl

Investments in Associated Companies Net

The Bank holds shares indirectly through SME Venture Capital Co. Ltd
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Mill ion Baht

The Bank

%Sharelsoldine

Iypcjf Direct and indirect Cost method Dividend income

Business 30 June 2009 32 December 2008 30 June 2009 31 December 2008 30 June 2009 30 June 2008

Subsidiaries companies

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd Asset

Management 100.00% 100.00% 5998 5998

Kasikorn Research Center Co Ltd Service 200.00% 100.00%

Kasikorn Asset

Management Co. Ltd Management IOO.OO% 100.00% 2.003 2.003 350 120

Kasikorn Securities Public Co Ltd Securities

Business 99.99% 99.99% 1312 1312

Kasikorn Factoring Co. Ltd Lending IOO.OO% 100.00% 237 237

Kasikorn Leasing Co. Ltd Lending 100.00% 100.00% 900 900

Progress Land and Buildings Co. Ltd Property

Development I00.00% 100.00% 639 639

KHAO KLA Venture Capital Venture Capital

Management Co Ltd Management 100.00% 00.00%

K-SME Venture Capital Co Ltd Venture Capital 100.00% 100.00% 200 200

Progress Gunpai Co Ltd Service l00.00% 100.00% 21 21 80

Progress Plus Co. Ltd Service l00.00% 00.00%

Progress Facilities Management Co Ltd Service 100.00% 100.00%

Progress Management Co. Ltd Service lOO.00% 100.00%

Progress SotiwareCo Ltd Service l00.00% I00.00% 19 19 20

Progress Storage Co Ltd Service 200.00% 100.00%

Progress Services SupportCo Ltd Service 200.00% 200.00%

Progress Services Co Ltd Service 100.00% 100.00% 12 10

Progress HR Co Ltd Service 200.00% 100.00% 18

Progress Appraisal Co Ltd Service 200.00% 100.00% 15

Progress Collection Co. Ltd Service 20000% 100.00%

Progress Training Co. Ltd Service 100.00%

Associated companies

ProcessingCenterCo. Ltd Service 30.00% 30.00% 15 25 75

Rural Capital Partners Co Ltd Venture Capital 27.50% 27.50%

Grand Hotel Co. Ltd Hotel 20.00% 20.00% ..J1 _J.55 -__

Total 11744 11742 599 152

Las Allowance for impairment 2.26

Investments in Subsidiaries and Associated Companies Net

The Bank holds 100.00% shares indirectly through Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SEX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

The recording of investments in subsidiaries and associated companies using the equity method in the consolidated financial

statements is based on financial information obtained from audited or unaudited financial statements and from management

information that has not been audited or reviewed by the auditors

As of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008 investments held by the Bank and its subsidiaries that were more than 10% of

those companies shares and were not investments in subsidiaries and associated companies classified by industry were as

follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008 30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Manufacturing and commerce 20 20 20 20

Property development and construction 537 550 537 550

Infrastructure and services 377 276 271 271

Others

Total i7I
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARiES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

The financial position and resuhs of operations of the Banks subsidiaries are set out below

Balance Sheets

Million Baht

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd

Kasikorn Research Center Co Ltd

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd

Kasikorn Securities Public Co Ltd

Kasikorn Factoring Co Ltd

Kasikorn Leasing Co Ltd

Progress Land and Buildings Co Ltd

KHAO KLA Venture Capital Management Co Ltd

K-SME Venture Capital Co Ltd

Progress Gunpai Co Ltd

Progress Plus Co Ltd

Progress Facilities Management Co Ltd

Progress Management Co Ltd

Progress Software Co Ltd

Progress Storage Co Ltd

Progress Services Support Co Ltd

Progress Services Co Ltd

Progress HR Co Ltd

Progress Appraisal Co Ltd

Progress Collection Co Ltd

Progress Training Co.Ltd

30 11 19

58 49

72 16 56

35 13 22

63 44 19

101 35 66

13

42
Except for Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd Kasikom Asset Management Co Ltd

Kasikorn Securities Public Co.Ltd and KHAO KLA Venture Capital Management Co Ltd

The Bank holds 100.00% shares indirectly through Kasikom Asset Management Co Ltd

which were audited

31 December 200830 June 2009

Unauditedt

Total Total

Liabilities Eiuily

81 4403

II 26

228 814

923 727

3892 560

38053 880

480

195

209 139

47 31

18 15

28

91 177

26

13 24

Total

4484

37

1042

1650

4452

38933

483

195

348

78

33

36

268

30

37

Total

4937

47

1151

1641

4582

34801

486

197

344

121

34

38

280

31

51

Total Total

Liabilities Equily

570 4367

IS 32

264 887

931 710

4085 497

34006 795

484

197

166 178

86 35

20 14

31

123 157

25

27 24
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNALJDITED

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd

Kasikorn Research Center Co Ltd

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd

Kasikorn Securities Public Co Ltd

Kasikorn Factoring Co Ltd

Kasikorn Leasing Co Ltd

Progress Land and Buildings Co Ltd

KHAO KLA Venture Capital

Million Baht except for Earnings Loss per Share

Statements of Income

For the Three-Month Periods Ended 30 June

0.87

0.06

22 110.01

5.71

54.31

20.87

21 209.48

109.89

61.00

210.08

391.55

671.63

22.84

45.00

349

107 101

94 91

20 19

18 17

158 116

10

66 54

48 46

112 III

62 55

4.26

0.05

30.85

12.03

22.13

6.97

42 415.56

71.61

12 307.65

125.27

133.80

1579.50

2009

Unaudited

Net Earnings

2008

Unaudited

Net Earnings

Profit Loss per Profit Loss per

Revenue Expenses LLoss Share Baht Revenue Expenses 1.s Share Baht

49 31 18 0.02

17 21

454 313

154 103

89 59

643 589

33 26 0.03

38.93

141 5.20

51 0.84

30 18.77

54 0.60

18 16

383 261 122

122 88 34

100 108

497 480 17

0.46

22.12

4.49

0.57

4.96

0.18

0.22

Management Co Ltd

K-SME Venture Capital Co Ltd

Progress Gunpai Co Ltd 151 129

Progress Plus Co Ltd 75 76

Progress Facilities Management Co Ltd 27 24

Progress Management Co Ltd 20 19

Progress Software Co Ltd 153 132

Progress Storage Co Ltd 16 13

Progress Services Support Co Ltd 32 29

Progress Services Co Ltd 60 56

Progress HR Co Ltd 139 135

Progress Appraisal Co Ltd 62 59

Progress Collection Co.Ltd 20 19

Progress Training Co.Ltd j1

The Bank holds 100.00% shares indirectly through Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd

1.852
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Million Baht except for Earnings Loss per Share

Statements of Income

For the Six-Month Periods Ended 30 June

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd

Kasikorn Research Center Co Ltd

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd

Kasikorn Securities Public Co Ltd

Kasikorn Factoring Co Ltd

Kasikorn Leasing Co Ltd

Progress Land and Buildings Co Ltd

KHAO KLA Venture Capital

Management Co Ltd

K-SME Venture Capital Co Ltd

Progress Gunpai Co Ltd

Progress Appraisal Co Ltd

Progress Collection Co.Ltd

Progress Training Co.Ltd

Except for Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd

5.22

0.05

206 188 18 91.43

178 173 22.02

40 37 51.59

35 33 11.42

213 181 32 316.98

20 15 161.23

67 56 11 274.32

93 87 299.41

219 214 408.96

116 103 13 2632.50

Kasikorn Securities Public Co.Ltd and KHAO KLA Venture Capital Management Co Ltd which were audited

The Bank holds 100.00% shares indirectly through Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd

2009

Unaudited

Net Earnings

2008

Unaudited

Net Earnings

Profit Loss per Profit Loss per

Revenue Expenses Lts Share Baht Revenue Expenses Lt1 Share Baht

77 42 35 0.04 99 42 57 0.07

34 40 64.23 35 34 6.79

861 584 277 10.21 765 514 251 9.25

212 194 18 0.30 213 167 46 0.77

183 120 63 39.52 195 178 17 10.95

1323 1238 85 0.95 941 898 43 0.47

0.51 0.17

1.73

0.11

282 240 42 207.53

Progress Plus Co Ltd 161 161 1.02

Progress Facilities Management Co Ltd 53 48 90.00

Progress Management Co Ltd 38 36 42.48

ProgressSoftwareCo Ltd 286 248 38 371.63

Progress Storage Co Ltd 33 25 268.95

Progress Services Support Co Ltd 67 60 174.69

Progress Services Co Ltd 118 109 430.70

Progress HR Co Ltd 268 260 817.40

117 113 794.80

34 33 25.33

jJ Jfz ..J 45.00

3.0
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

ANI FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Iisclosure of The Statements of Cash Flows of The Asset Management Company AMC

In accordance with the Bank of Thailands notification number Sor Nor Sor 01 Wor 3258/2543 dated 27 November 2000

relating to the operational regulations of the asset management company the Bank is required to disclose the statements of

cash flows of the AMC in the notes to the financial statements The statements of cash flows of Phethai Asset Management

Co Ltd are as follows

Phethai Asset Management Company Limited

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Six-Month Periods Ended 30 June 2009 and 2008

Audited

Million Baht

22 2QQ

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Income before income tax 35 57

Adjustments to reconcile net profit from operating activities

Iepreciation and amortization

Reversal of bad debt and doubtful accounts 23

Loss on debt restructuring

Interest income from amortization of revaluation allowance for debt restructuring

Gain on investment in securities

Loss on impairment of investments in receivables

Loss on impairment of properties foreclosed 24 15

Income from accounts transferred 17

Amortization of discount on promissory note receivables

Decrease in accrued expenses .iU LL2

48 13

Net income from interest and dividends 22 10

Interest and dividends received 24 34

Interest paid 32

Income tax paid received .Jfl

Net profit from operations before changes in operating assets and liabilities 42
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FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Phethai Asset Management Company Limited

Statements of Cash Flows Continued

For the Six-Month Ended 30 June 2009 and 2008

Audited

Million Baht

29
Decrease in operating assets

Investments in receivables 75

Loans and receivables 113 259

Properties foreclosed 237 674

Other assets 85 1513

Increase decrease in operating liabilities

Other liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities .2.24

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of long-term investments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash paid for repayment of borrowings from The Bank 531 2.565

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities 5QI 2.565

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 61

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period .24 J2

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 22
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FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

LOANS AND ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLES

Loans and accrued interest receivables consisted of

Classified by Type of Loans

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008 30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Overdrafts 159982 158187 159210 157389

Loans 374786 368050 411018 398038

Bills 272889 309199 276161 314556

Others 73.991 68.572 31051 30604

Total 881648 904008 877440 900587

MJ Accrued interest receivable 1.205 1.486 1.175 1.455

Total 882853 905494 878615 902042

Ls Allowance for doubtful accounts 27725 26394 26554 25125

La Revaluation allowance for

debt restructuring 4.123 3.378 4.123 3.378

Total 851.005 8Z5.7 23432

Classified by Maturity of Contracts

Million Baht

onsolidated The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December2008 30 June 2009 31 December2008

Within year 510096 539911 508643 539289

Over year 372.757 365.583 369.972 362.753

Total 882.853 905.494 9Q042
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AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Classified by Currencies and Residency of Borrowers

Consolidated

Million Baht

Baht

US Dollars

Other currencies

Total

30 June 2009

Domestic Foreign Thtal

856544 12 856556

23672 359 24031

2.232 .J4 2.266

882.448 4.05 882.853

31 December 2008

Domestic Foreign IQtai

871504 871504

30477 288 30765

3.175 3.225

905.156 3.15 905.494

The Bank

Million Baht

Baht

US Dollars

Other currencies

Total

30 June 2009

Domestic Foreign Total

852306 12 852318

23672 359 24031

2232 _34 2266

878.210 405 878.615

31 December 2008

Domestic Foreign Total

868052 868052

30477 288 30765

3.175 ..5Q 3.225

33.5 902.042
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Classified by Type of Business and Account Status

Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2009

Special Sub- Doubtful

Mention Standard Doubtful of Loss TQtal

Agricultural and mining 23300 1133 331 225 401 25390

Manufacturing and commerce 458557 12790 5236 3400 10891 490874

Property development and

Construction 56668 1165 480 1203 2065 61581

Infrastructureandservices 83071 1818 319 640 4718 90566

Housing loans 115861 1812 760 709 1566 120708

Others 88.394 ji75 _19 _5l2 J2 92.452

Total 881571

Credit balance transaction 1.282

Total

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 December 2008

Special Sub- Doubtful

Mention Standard Doubtful of Loss Ttta1

Agricultural and mining 22262 2118 262 57 552 25251

Manufacturing and commerce 477338 24797 4113 3207 12307 521762

Property development and

Construction 54086 3261 274 1394 1930 60945

Infrastructureandservices 74731 4019 194 500 4834 84278

Housingloans 109534 4221 438 291 1621 116105

Others 91.269 2Ji JQ 34j 93 95.968

Total 2L77 904309

Credit balance transaction 1.185

Total
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Million Baht

The Bank

30 june 2009

Special Sub- Doubtful

Mention Standard Doubtful of Loss Total

Agricultural and mining 20284 799 252 149 389 21873

Manufacturing and commerce 442561 11979 5115 3299 10159 473113

Property development and

Construction 55080 1049 450 1188 1518 59285

Infrastructure and services 78435 1560 258 617 4210 85080

Housing loans 115831 1799 760 709 1370 120469

Others 115.916 _5 _5j 118.795

Total L$ILZ4 Z24 I42

Million Baht

The Bank

31 December 2008

Special Sub- Doubtful

1ass Mention Standard Doubtful of Loss Total

Agricultural and mining 19738 1782 183 20 537 22260

Manufacturing and commerce 463851 23997 3973 3093 11432 506346

Property development and

Construction 52791 3122 249 1378 1354 58894

Infrastructure and services 72133 3838 163 488 4290 80912

Housingloans 109502 4203 438 291 1396 115830

Others 114.435 J2 45 fl 117.800

Total 832.450 44
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Loans and accrued interest receivables classified by account status

Million Raht

Pass

Special Mention

Sub-Standard

Doubtful

Doubtful of Loss

Allowance established in

Excess of BoT regulations

Credit balance transaction

Total

Consolidated

30 June 2009

Outstanding Debt

after Deduction of

Loans and Collateral Value/

Accrued Interest NPV of Cash Flow from

Receivable Debtors or Sale of Collateral

825851 265779

20483

7805

6759

20673

1.282

3758

2337

2702

11304

Used for

Calculating Allowance for

the Allowance Doubtful Accounts

2657

100

100

100

75

2329

2702

11304

8658

Included allowance for doubtful accounts of Kasikorn Factoring Co Ltd which is calculated from account receivables with

credit insurance from other insurance company in accordance with ROT requirements

Million l3aht

Pass

Special Mention

Sub-Standard

Doubtful

Doubtful of Loss

Allowance established in

Excess of RoT regulations

Credit balance transaction

Total

Consolidated

31 December 2008

Outstanding Debt

after Deduction of

Loans and Collateral Value/

Accrued Interest NPV of Cash Flow from

Receivable Debtors or Sale of Collateral

829220 303112

41231 10974

5891 2350

5790 2437

22177 11954

.185

905.494

Used for

Calculating Allowance for

the Allowance Doubtful Accounts

3031

219

100 2350

100 2437

100 11954

6403

26394
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Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2009

Outstanding Debt

after Deduction of

Loans and Collateral Value Used for

Accrued Interest NPV of Cash Flow from Calculating Allowance for

Receivable Debtors or Sale of Collateral the Allowance Doubtful Accounts

Pass 828107 303358 3033

Special Mention 18174 3545 71

Sub-Standard 7374 2318 100 2318

Doubtful 6463 2675 100 2675

Doubtful of Loss 18497 10485 100 10485

Allowance established in

Excess of BoT regulations

Total 878.615 322381

Million Baht

The Bank

31 December 2008

Outstanding Debt

after Deduction of

Loans and Collateral Value Used for

Accrued Interest NPV of Cash Flow from Calculating Allowance for

Receivable Debtors or Sale of Collateral the Allowance Doubtful Accounts

Pass 832450 337059 3371

Special Mention 38821 10782 216

Sub-Standard 5464 2332 100 2332

Doubtful 5523 2384 100 2384

Doubtful of Loss 19784 11089 100 11089

Allowance established in

Excess of BoT regulations

Total 902.042
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Unearned interest is as follows

Million Baht

30June2009 31 December2008

The Bank and The Bank and

Subsidiaries The Bank Subsidiaries The Bank

Unearned interest 4874 252 4439 322

Non-performing loans NPL

According to the BoTs directive number SOR NOR SOR 68/2551 dated August 2008 titled Preparation and

announcement of condensed report of assets and liabilities of commercial banks non-performing loans NPL gross

are defined as sub quality loans being outstanding loans of sub-standard doubtful doubtful of loss and loss loan

accounts in accordance with the BoTs directive number SOR NOR SOR 31/2551 dated August 2008 tilled

Classification and provision criteria of financial institution

Non-performing loans net NPL net refers to the non-performing loan value net of total allowances for doubtful

accounts

In accordance with the BoTs regulations commercial banks are required to report the following information

Non-performing loans NPL gross

The ratio ofNPL to total loans

Non-performing loans net NPL net

The ratio of total loans net of allowances for doubtful accounts which is referred to the ratio of NPL net to total

loans after deduction of allowances for doubtful accounts
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Non-performing loans including financial institutions based on the above directive can be summarized as follows

Million Baht

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

The Bank and The Bank and

Subsidiaries The Bank Subsidiaries The Bank

Non-performing loans gross

Non-performing loans 35057 32183 33686 30630

Total loans used for NPL gross ratio

calculation 937483 934557 l090345 1088109

Ratio of total loans 3.74 3.44 3.09 2.81

Non-performing loans net

Non-performing loans 17535 15518 15712 13591

Total loans used for NPL net ratio

calculation 9l9962 917892 1072371 1071070

Ratiooftotal loans 1.91 1.69 1.47 1.27

WTotal loans used for NPL ratio calculation are loans to general customers as presented in the balance sheet and

loans to financial institutions as included in interbank and money market items

Total loans used for PL ratio calculation are loans to general customers as presented in the balance sheet and

loans to financial institutions as included in interbank and money market items net of allowance for doubtfi.il

accounts

Excluding loans to and from subsidiaries as of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008 amounting to Baht 41895

million and Baht 38366 million respectively
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Non-accrual loans gross including financial institutions based on the accrual basis can be summarized as follows

Million Baht

30 June 2009

Phethai AMC Kasikorn

The Bank Original principal Factoring

63072 1827 278

Million Baht

31 December 2008

Phethai AMC Kasikorn Kasikorn The Bank and

The Bank Original principal Factoring Leasing Subsidiaries

58059 2065 292 843 61259

Total loans used for NPL ratio calculation are loans to general customers as presented in the balance sheet and

loans to financial institutions as included in interbank and money market items

Excluding loans to and from subsidiaries as of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008 amounting to Baht 41895

million and Baht 38366 million respectively

934557

6.75

Kasikorn

Leasing

949

38468

2.47

1827

l00.00

The Bank and

Subsidiaries

66126

93 74832

7.05

Non-accrual loans

Total loans used for ratio

Calculation

Percentage of total loans

Non-accrual loans

Total loans used for ratio

Calculation

Percentage of total loans

4526

6.14

1088109 2065 4663 33874 10903452

5.34 100.00 6.26 2.49 5.62

63



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Loans to listed companies that meet SETs criteria for delisting were as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated and The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Loans and Allowance Loans and Allowance

Accrued for Accrued for

Interest Collateral DoubtfW Interest Collateral Doubtful

Receivable Accounts Receivable LaJ Accounts

Listed companies which

meet SETs

criteria fordelisting 411 32 368 348 65 219

The outstanding balances of loans to the Banks wholly owned subsidiaries were as follows

Million Baht

30 June 2009

Type of loans Maturity Interest rate Amount

Kasikorn Factoring Co Ltd Bills 2-6 Months Money Market Rate 1865

Spread 1% at least

Bills At Call Money Market Rate 550

Spread 1% at least

Loans 1-4 Years Fixed Rate 1408

Kasikom Leasing Co Ltd Bills 59-88 Days Money Market Rate 900

Loans 1-6 Years Fixed Rate 36796
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Million Baht

31 December 2008

Type of loans Maturity Interest rate Amount

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd Bills Months 3-Month Fixed Deposit 530

Kasikom Factoring Co Ltd Bills 1-6 Months Money Market Rate 1435

Spread 1% at least

Bills At Call Money Market Rate 1000

Spread 1% at least

Loans 1-4 Years Fixed Rate 1550

Kasikorn Leasing Co Ltd Bills 7-120 Days Money Market Rate 900

Loans 1-6 Years Fixed Rate 32809

Transferring of Sub-Standard Quality Assets to Thai Asset Management Corporation TAMC

In accordance with the Emergency Decree on the Thai Asset Management Corporation B.E 2544 on 12 October 2001 the

Bank signed an Asset Transfer Agreement with TAMC to transfer eligible sub-standard quality assets outstanding as of

December 2000 to TAMC All rights and duties associated with each transferred sub-standard quality asset were

transferred to TAMC at price determined by the appraised value of the underlying collateral assets provided that the price

did not exceed the book value of credits extended less existing provisions outstanding as required by law on the transfer

date TAMC has 180 days from the date of each transfer to examine any transferred assets TAMC will then quote the

transfer price within days after the end of the examination period After confirming the price TAMC will issue non-

transferable 10-year callable promissory notes guaranteed by FIDF The notes bear interest equal to the weighted average of

the deposit rates of five major banks and are paid at the end of each year by means of non-transferable extendable one-

year promissory note guaranteed by FIDF The
rights to these notes and the received notes are included in investments in

held-to-maturity debt instruments

In accordance with the Emergency Decree B.E 2544 and the Asset Transfer Agreement TAMC and the Bank will share

jointly the profits and responsibility for any losses on transferred assets which are payable on the fifth and the tenth

anniversaries of the transfers starting from July 2001 In the case of losses the Bank will first be responsible for any loss

not exceeding 20% of the transfer price The second portion of losses again not exceeding 20% of the transfer price will be

equally shared by TAMC and the Bank Any remaining loss would then be absorbed by TAMC In addition expenses of

TAMC are included in the calculation of the gain or loss sharing In the case of profit the first portion of profits up to 20%

of the transfer price is to be shared equally by TAMC and the Bank Should there be any profit over and above this the Bank

is entitled to the remainder up to the gross book value of the assets less the transfer price and the Banks share in the first

portion of the profits As of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008 the Bank has set up an estimate for loss sharing

amounting to Baht 1100 million
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For the six-month penod ended 30 June 2009 the Bank did not transfer any sub-standard quality assets to TAMC.The gross

book value of the assets transferred before deducting allowance for doubtfl.il accounts up to 30 June 2009 was Baht 14557

million and the estimated total transfer price up to 30 June 2009 was Baht 10072 million which the Bank received

promissoy notes from TAMC

The Bank was informed that loss sharing at the end of the fifth year amounting to Baht 29 million was allocated to the Bank

from TAMC Such allocation is an approximation as the TAMC will calculate the actual
profit or loss at the end of the tenth

year

TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCTURING

During the six-month periods ended 30 June the Bank and its subsidiaries engaged in debt restructuring contracts as

follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

2Q2

Total Total Total Total

Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding

Debt Before Debt Before Debt Before Debt l3efore

Restructuring Restructuring Restructuring Restructuring

Debt restructuring contracts

that incurred losses 516 13064 593 7328 509 13025 581 7.305

Debt restructuring contracts

that incurred no losses jj.55 Jj5 J.4475 j47 Jj523 14.321

Total 44 44 J44 Z1
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Losses on debt restructuring for the six-month periods ended 30 June 2009 and 2008 were as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2009

Outstanding Debt Transferred Assets Loss on

Before After Debt

Types of Restructuring Caaa Restructuring Restructuring Ixpes Fair Value Restructuring

Transfers of assets 57 367 Cash land 209 158

premises

and investments

Changes of repayment conditions 431 7977 7977 1340

Debt restructuring in various forms 28 4720 4058 Cash land 662 256

premises

and investments

Total

Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2008

Outstanding Debt Transferred Assets Loss on

Before After Debt

Types of Restructuring Cases Restructuring Restructuring jyp Fair Value Restructuring

Transfers of assets 61 345 Cash land 246 99

premises

and investments

Changes of repayment conditions 505 5801 5801 1784

Debt restructuring in various forms 27 1182 736 Cash land 446 358

premises

and investments

Total 59.1 728 692
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Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2009

Outstanding Debt Transferred Assets Loss on

Before After Debt

Types of Restructuring Cnes Restructuring Restructuring Types Fair Value Restructuring

Transfers of assets 57 367 Cash land 209 158

premises

and investments

Changes of repayment conditions 424 7938 7938 1340

Debt restructuring in various forms 28 4720 4058 Cash land 662 256

premises

and investments

Total Sn

Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2008

Outstanding Debt Transferred Assets Loss on

Before After Debt

Types of Restructuring Cises Restructuring Restructuring Types Fair Value Restructuring

Transfers of assets 53 329 Cash land 235 95

premises

and investments

Changes of repayment conditions 501 5794 5794 1783

Debt restructuring in various forms 27 1182 736 Cash land 446 358

premises

and investments

Total 5I

The Bank and its subsidiaries measure the expected recoverable amounts of loans restructured by changing repayment

conditions by using the present value of future cash flows discounted at the market rate
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The terms of debt restructuring agreements with debts which were restructured by changing the repayment conditions

and restructured in various other ways and which resulted in losses on debt restructuring during the six-month periods

ended 30 June are as follows

Million I3aht

Consolidated

Outstanding Debt Outstanding Debt

Termsofdebt Before After Endof Before After Endof

restructuring agreements Cs Restructuring Restructuring 1titx1 Restructuring Restructuring Erisd

Less than years 334 5766 5250 5224 468 4042 3602 3412

to 10 years 75 5871 5730 5709 27 638 632 629

Over 10 years JQ jJ5 iQ52 2L 2.QQ

Total 459 j691 I2.Q1 LL 532 61

Million Baht

The Bank

2008

Outstanding Debt Outstanding Debt

Terms of debt Before After End of Before After End of

restructuring agreements Restructuring Restructuring ptjEtJ Restructuring Restructuring pE
Less than years 327 5727 5211 5190 464 4035 3595 3406

to 10 years 75 5871 5730 5709 27 638 632 629

Over 10 years JQ J55 152 i1 L3Q 21Q 2.QQ

Total 452 158 1j2 U52 .528 6916 6510

The Bank and its subsidiaries recognized interest income from debt restructuring for the periods ended 30 June as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

For the Three-Month For the Six-Month For the Three-Month For the Six-Month

Periods Periods IJEI

Z002 2Q8 2002 2008 2002 2008 2Q02 2008

Debt restructuringcontracts that incurred losses 217 96 456 211 217 95 456 2l0
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The Bank had commitments to extend additional loans to these borrowers as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated and The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses 459 181

The Bank and its subsidiaries had outstanding balances on debtors which were restructured during the period/year as

follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008 30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses 11986 13093 11952 13088

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred no losses 2L22 22.212 2.L25 22.912

Total 3L22 49.2 3.2.232 49.192

The Bank and its subsidiaries had outstanding balances relating to all restructured debtors which had been performing

in accordance with debt restructuring agreements as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008 30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses 24489 17585 24430 17557

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred no losses 399Q 32.234 3L942

Total .422 22
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10 ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The movements in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the periodlyear were as follows

Million Haht

Consolidated

30 June 2009

Allowances

established in

Special Sub- Doubtful excess of BoTs

Paa Mention Standard Doubtful sfLsa Regulations lotal

Balance at the beginning of the period 3031 219 2.350 2437 11.954 6403 26394

Doubtful accounts reversal 374 144 21 265 1220 2305 325l

Bad debts written off 2868 2868

Others _j5ffl

Balance at the end of the period L2
Before deducting bad debts recovery of Baht 271 million

With effect from January 2009 bad debt recovery is recognized as income and is presented net of bad debt and doubtful accounts

expense in the statement of income

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 December 2008

Allowances

established in

Special Sub- Doubtful excess of BoTs

Mention Standard Doubtful QLLQs Regulations IQtal

Balance at the beginning of the year 3302 85 2505 5863 8906 3.556 24.2 17

Transferred from investments in

receivables

Doubtful accounts reversal 270 137 155 3.426 5432 2864 4582

Bad debts recovered 490 490

Bad debts written off 4322 4326

Others J..442 JAiQ

Balance at the end of the year 2.19 LL
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Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2009

Allowances

established in

Special Sub- Doubtful excess of B0Ts

Mention Standard Doubtful QLLQ Regulations lotal

Balanceatthebeginningoftheperiod 3371 216 2332 2384 11089 5733 25l25

Doubtful accounts reversal 338 145 l4 291 1139 2239 3172

Bad debt written off 2756 2756

Others J..SU .-__

Balance at the end of the period _11 JJ 922 24554

Before deducting bad debts recovery of Baht 254 million

With effect from January 2009 bad debt recovery is recognized as income and is presented net of bad debt and doubtful accounts

expense in the statement of income

Million l3aht

The Bank

31 December 2008

Allowances

established in

Special Sub- Doubtful excess of B0Ts

Mention Standard Doubtful oLjs Regulations lola

Balance at the beginning of the year 3553 74 2477 5.847 7813 2853 22.617

Doubtful accounts reversal 182 142 145 3.463 5224 2880 4.456

Bad debt recovered 490 490

Bad debt written off 4044 4044

Others ._LQ6

Balance at the end of the year 216
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II REVALUATION ALLOWANCE FOR DEBT RESTRUCTURING

The movements in the revaluation allowance for debt restructuring during the period/year were as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Hank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008 30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Balance at the beginning of the period/year 3378 1635 3378 1630

Increase 1770 3149 1769 3148

Change of classification

Amortization to interest income 138 168 138 166

Others thBJL 1.235 1.234

Balance at the end of the period/year 42 378

12 PROPERTIES FORECLOSED NET

Properties foreclosed consisted of

Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2009

Beginning Ending

Type of Properties Foreclosed Balance Addition Disposal Balance

Assets acquired from debt repayment

1.1 Immovable assets 27 2227 2231 15523

1.2 Movable assets j4

Total 15560 2496 2499 15557

Others ____51 _4U _542

Total Properties Foreclosed 16135 2509 2540 16104

Lasa Allowances for impairment 1.743 3J.5 1.577

Total Properties Foreclosed net J4 2.059
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Million Baht

Consolidated

31 December 2008

Beginning Ending

Type of Properties Foreclosed Balance Addition Disposal Balance

Assets acquired from debt repayment

1.1 Immovable assets 16682 3500 4655 15527

1.2 Movable assets _254 12541 __-3

Total 16715 3754 4909 15560

Others _.iSI 525

Total Properties Foreclosed 17343 3757 4965 16135

Lees Allowances for impairment 1.978 .45.1 1.743

Total Properties Foreclosed net 4.222

Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2009

Beginning Ending

Type of Properties Foreclosed Balance Addition Disposal Balance

Assets acquired from debt repayment

1.1 Immovable assets 12553 2212 1981 12784

1.2 Movable assets 28

Total 12581 2212 1981 12812

Others 35 J35J

Total Properties Foreclosed 12616 2225 2016 12825

Lss Allowances for impairment 1.387 1241 471 1.157

Total Properties Foreclosed net U22 1.545 11.668
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Million I3aht

The Bank

31 December 2008

Beginning Ending

Type of Properties Foreclosed Balance Addition Disposal Balance

Assets acquired from debt repayment

1.1 Immovable assets 12627 3279 3353 12553

1.2 Movable assets _- _J
Total 12655 3279 3353 12581

Others _65 _..J _flll

Total Properties Foreclosed 12720 3282 3386 12616

Lts Allowances for impairment 1.468 _41Q 1.387

Total Properties Foreclosed net $23

13 CLASSIFIED ASSETS

Assets of the Bank and its subsidiaries classified as investments loans and accrued interest receivables including

financial institutions properties foreclosed and other assets were categorized by quality in compliance with the

BoTs regulations taking into account analyses of each loan and appraisal of the financial standing of each borrower

as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2009

Loans and Accrued Properties

Investments Interest Receivable Foreclosed Other Assets IcI

Pass 882056 882056

Special Mention 20376 20376

Sub-Standard 7805 7805

Doubtful 6759 6759

Doubtful of Loss 44J 20.673 26.526

Total
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Million Baht

Consolidated

31 December 2008

Loans and Accrued Properties

Investments Interest Receivable Foreclosed Other Assets

Pass 1020363 1020363

Special Mention 40992 40992

Sub-Standard 5891 5891

Doubtful 5790 5790

Doubtful of Loss 4J32 22.177 27.880

Total 4J 1.095.213 985 586 1.100.916

Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2009

Loans and Accrued Properties

Investments Interest Receivable Foreclosed Other Assets IotaJ

Pass 884307 884307

Special Mention 18067 18067

Sub-Standard 7374 7374

Doubtful 6463 6463

Doubtful of Loss 43 18.497 44 23.984

Total 612 940.J95

Million Baht

The Bank

31 December2008

Loans and Accrued Properties

Investments Interest Receivable Foreclosed Other Assets iota

Pass 1018897 1018897

Special Mention 38582 38582

Sub-Standard 5464 5464

Doubtful 5523 5523

Doubtful of Loss 19.784 7J 25.168

Total 1.088.250 716 l.093634
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14 PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT NET

Changes in premises and equipment for the six-month periods ended 30 June 2009 and 2008 are summarized as follows

Land

Consolidated

30 June 2009

Million Baht

Change of Cost Change of Accumulated Depreciation Change of Allowance for Impairment Book Value

Beginning Transfer Appraisal Transfer Ending Beginning Appraisal Transfer Ending Beginning Beginning ndmg

Balance Purchase in sgrphss Disnosal Balance Balance Depreciation astiplan Disnosal nut Balance Balance Increase Balance Balance Balance

Cost 10.225 859 17 11.069 4.021 112

Revalued cost 8.494 20 8.474 4105 84

Equipment
17.632 92 670 62 241 18.091 10798 736

Others -3J2 28 UA4 A.i12 _LLI

Total L2Th1

14

62 237

258

383 385 2540 2.696

6.S53 6.550

4.126 122 122 6.082 6.821

4175 4389 4299

11.235 6.826 6848

J44 L21 AA2

12.680 _2 15 22.E52 31.642

Cost 2.923

Revalued cost 6.553

Building

161 3.081

6.550
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Consolidated

30 June 2008

Million Baht

Beeinnine Transfer Aporaisal Transfer ending Beginning Appraisal Transfer jg Beginning fg Beginnine ng
a1zi Purchase sigpljis Disixisal nnt aJants Balame Depreciation siirplis Disriosal Qil aIanse Balans Decrease alanc 1atics a1ants

Cost 2909 15 2924 423 40 383 2486 2541

Revalued cost 6.127 427 6.554 6.127 6554

Cost 9.310 12 478 9800 3.842 109

Revalued cost 6957 1544 8501 3344 83

Equipment 14508 350 2485 39 17301 10697 796

Others J24 2JJ IL 242 .2A20 52

Total L1 L1

3951

597 4024

39 11451

19505

159 37 122 5309 5727

3613 4477

3803 5842

3J2 2A11

22

Depreciation presented in the statements of income of the Bank and its subsidiaries for the six-month periods ended 30 June 2009 and 2008 amounted to Baht 965 million and Baht 1016 million

respectively including depreciation on building revaluation of Baht 84 million and Baht 83 million respectively As of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008 premises and equipment with

original costs of Baht 7089 million and Baht 7062 million respectively were fully depreciated but still in use

Ch2noe cf Cnct

Land

Building

Chanee of Accunsulated Deoreciation Chanee of Allowance for Imnairment Book Value
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Million Bahi

The Bank

30 June 2009

Change of Cost Change of Accumulated Depreciation __________________________________ Book Value

Beginning Transfer Appraisal Transfer Ending Beginning Appraisal Transfer Ending Beginning Ejg Beginning nfjjng

a1nt Purchase ui jgpIig Disposal QMI lnn Bnlnce Depreciation gplii Disposal ttil Iant Increase 1ance 1anc

Land

Cost 2891 160 3.048 383 385 2508 2663

Revalued cost 6553 6.550 6553 6550

Building

Cost 9883 859 17 10.725 3.856 96 3.944 122 122 5.905 6.659

Revaluedcost 8494 20 8.474 4105 84 15 4.174 4389 4300

Equipment 17058 669 59 241 17.427 10.467 695 59 236 10867 6583 6.552

Others _2.82 L685 LL42111 4.il1 .. __ .2.8 4A1Q1

Total 4L22 L22 825 5.13 515
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The Bank

30 June 2008

-.- .-
Change of Cost

..nange oi tceumuiateu uepreciaiion Change of Allowance for Impairment

Beginning Transfer ADpraiSal Transfer Ending Beginning Anpraisal Transfer nijjng Beginning Ending

llJan Purchase ut sgiplga Disposal nui llninice 1ane Depreciation gpias Disposal out llalan llalan Decrease Balance

Million Baht

Depreciation presented in the statements of income of the Bank for the six-month periods ended 30 June 2009 and 2008 amounted to Baht 875 million and Baht 770 million respectively including

depreciation on building revaluation of Balit 84 million and Baht 83 million respectively As of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008 premises and equipment with original costs of Baht 7004

million and Baht 6980 miffion respectively were fully depreciated but still in use

The Bank completed the revaluation of its lands and buildings during the period ended 30 June 2008 and issued such report dated 14 May 2008 to the Bank of Thailand As at the date of revaluation

apprdisal surplus on asset revaluation increased by Baht 1374 million while there was re ersal of allowance for impairment losses on lands and buildings of Baht 88 million Such reversal was

recorded as other income in the statement of income

Land

Cost 2877

Revalued cost 6127

Building

15

478

1544

2.892

427 6.554

Coat

Revalued cost

Equipment

Others

Total

8986

6957

14328

47231

L221

1999

Book Value

Beginning Ending

lla lla1anc

2484

222

3.712

3344

1060337

23
L2 2941

9.464

850

16774

L0J

46

90

83

597

22i

423 40 383 2454 2509

6127 6554

3.802 159 37 122 5115 5540

597 4024 3613 4477

37 11160 3717 5606

2QJ

522 590 22J 511 23982 26701
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IS INTANGIBLE ASSETS NET

Changes in intangible assets for the six-month periods ended 30 June 2009 and 2008 are susninarized as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2009

Change of Cost Change of Accumulated Amortization Book Value

Beginning Transfer Ending Beginning Transfer Ending Beginning Ending

Balance Increase Out Balance Balance Amortization out Balance Balance Balance

Application sofiware 11337 202 III 13247 3979 370 4349 7358 8898

Business purchased
270 270 216 13 229 54 41

Goodwill 1167 1167 1167 1167

Others ____n L3J J2

Total 2026 J2 8594
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Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2008

Change of Cost Change of Accumulated Amortization Book Value

Beginning Transfer Ending Beginning Transfer Ending Beginning Ending

Balance Increase Balance Balance Amortization Balance Balance Balance

Application software 8287 1395 46 9636 3198 409 3607 5089 6029

Business purchased 270 270 189 13 202 81 68

Goodwill 1436 269 1167 269 269 1167 1167

Others iQ
Total 1395 3666 422

Amortization presented in the statements of income of the Bank and its subsidiaries for the six-month periods ended 30 June 2009 and 2008 amounted to Baht 383 million and Baht 422 million

respectively As of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008 intangible assets with original costs of Baht 1638 million and Baht 1536 million respectively were fully amortized but still in use
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Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2009

Change of Cost Change of Accumulated Amortization Book Value

Beginning Transfer Ending Beginning Transfer Ending Beginmng Ending

Balance Increase Qsil Balance Balance Aniortization Balance Balance Balance

Application software flJ2 2.Q15 L121 Ulft i2 3Q 4242 L21

Total LM2 8829

Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2008

Change of Cost Change of Accumulated Amortization Book Value

Beginning Transfer Ending Beginning Transfer Ending Beginning Ending

Balance Increase Qg Balance Balance Amortization Balance Balance Balance

Application software IM L31 L41 9A22 3.L3 313 L512 5J341 5.953

Total 1.333 jj 422 313

Amortization presented in the statements of income of the Bank for the six-month periods ended 30 June 2009 and 2008 amounted to Baht 360 million and Baht 383 million respectively

As of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008 intangible assets with original costs of Baht 1589 million and Baht 1494 million respectively were fully
amortized but still in use
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16 DEPOSITS

Deposits were classified as follows

Classified by Type of Deposits

Million Baht

Classified by Maturity of Contracts

Consolidated

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

54809 47778

500021 442433

The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

54853 47686

500530 443211

Million Baht

Classified by Currencies and Residency of Depositors

Consolidated

Million Baht

Current

Savings

Term

Less than months 224758 315273 224855 315426

months and less than year 40665 88776 40665 88775

year and over year 88.772 73 .690 8122 73 .690

Total 909.02.5 967.950 909.675 96878E

Consolidated The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008 30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Within year 878960 952270 879610 953108

Over year 30.065 15.680 30.065 15.680

Total 909.025 967.950 909.675

30 June 2009 31 December2008

Domestic Foreign Iota Domestic Foreign lola

Baht 861325 25907 887232 933042 19814 952856

US Dollars 18402 1247 l9649 12266 1202 13468

Other currencies 1.742 402 2.144 1.369 252 1.626

Total 881.469 2.QZ 46t22
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Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Domestic Foreign Domestic Foreign lola

Baht 861975 25907 887882 933880 19814 953694

US Dollars 18402 1247 19649 12266 1202 13468

Othercurrencies 1.742 2.144 1.369 _251 1.626

Total 882119 27j56 20967 ZUZ3

17 INTERBANK AND MONEY MARKET ITEMS LIABILITIES

Interbank and money market items liabilities consisted of

Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

ll Trrn ll Total

Domestic

The BoT and FIDF 2986 2986 93 2973 3066

Commercial banks 4450 11051 15501 3692 49 3741

Otherbanks 395 395 143 143

Finance securities and

credit foncier companies 7978 625 8603 6023 775 6798

Other financial institutions JJJI J.2L9

Total Domestic 14JJ2 i422 .L94 LL2 12Q 14.952

Foreign

US Dollars 27 27 15 IS

Yen 1973 1974 1005 1005

Other currencies S1L

Total Foreign L34

Total Domestic and Foreign JA2
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Million I3aht

The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

ALall Ienn Aall Inn

Domestic

The RoT and FIDF 2986 2986 93 2973 3066

Commercial banks 5294 11051 16345 3775 3776

Other banks 395 395 143 143

Finance securities and

credit foncier companies 7978 625 8603 6540 775 7315

Other financial institutions j3 44 jjj6 J202

Total Domestic I422 I420 22.62 LL2 3-42

Foreign

US Dollars 27 27 IS 15

Yen 1973 1974 1005 1005

Other currencies 5Q1 jQi

Total Foreign j2a J.211 2.502 U43

Total Domestic and Foreign
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18 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

The Bank issued short-term unsubordinated debentures in name certificates without security and not convertible without

debenture holder representative in Thai Baht currency not exceeding Baht 50000 million excluding other borrowings

with maturity of no more than 270 days in order to allow the Bank better flexibility and wider variety of

administration of its funding structure and to expand the investment alternatives to the public and/or depositors of the

Bank

Short-term borrowings consisted of

Consolidated

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Amount Amount

MatuntvDavs Interest Rate Million Baht MaturityDavs Interest Rate Million Baht

2/2548 22-132 3.55-3.85 9829

1/2549 5-139 3.45-3.85 8033

2/2549 10 3.85 105 8-194 3.45-3.85 9248

Other borrowings 2-364 0-8.25 3i2 3-363 0.50-4.50 2L52

Total

The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Amount Amount

Project MaturityDavs Interest Rate Million Baht MaturityIJavs Interest Rate Million Baht

2/2548 22-132 3.35-3.85 9829

1/2549 5-139 3.45-3.85 8033

2/2549 10 3.85 105 8-194 3.45-3.85 9248

Other borrowings 2-364 0-8.25 3.Q1I 3-363 0.50-4.50 iQ344

Total 36fl6
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19 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Long-term borrowings consisted of

Million Baht

Consolidated and The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Domestic Foreign Thial Domestic Foreign

Other borrowings 8520 8520 4561 4561

Subordinated Debentures 6211 6211 6962 6962

Subordinated Debentures

KASIKORNBANK PCL No.3 12000 12000 12000 12000

Subordinated Debentures

KASIKORNBANK PCL NO.I/2008 11.111111 1111011 12.11011 12.11110

Total 325211 21I 4Th1 LU1

SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

The Board of Directors in its meeting on 25 July 1996 approved the issuance of USD 200 million of unsecured

subordinated debentures having face value of IJSD 100000 each with twenty-year maturity offered at price of

USD 98997 each on 21 August 1996 and carrying an 8.25 percent coupon rate payable semi-annually See note 31

Events after balance sheet date regarding early repurchase of such debentures

SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES NO.3

The Board of Directors in its meeting on 25 September 2003 approved the issuance of these Subordinated Debentures in

name certificate without security and not convertible having debenture holder representative in Thai Baht currency not

exceeding Baht 12000 million with maturity of no more than 10 years in order to raise long-term funding at

reasonable cost to efficiently manage the interest rate and liquidity risks as well as to strengthen the status of the Banks

tier two capital
funds On 16 October 2003 the Bank issued the Subordinated Debentures of KASIKORNBANK

PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED No.3 Due A.D 2013 in the amount of Baht 12000 million with ten-year maturity

In accordance with certain terms and conditions and with the approval of the Bank of Thailand the Bank may redeem

the debentures before maturity as follows on the fifth anniversary of the issue date or any subsequent interest

payment date after the fifth anniversary of the issue date or if the Bank can demonstrate that interest payments under

the Debentures are no longer or will no longer be deductible as an expense for income tax purposes or in any other

case as may be later stipulated by the Bank of Thailand The debentures bear interest at the fixed interest rate for the first

five years of 3.75 per annum and the fixed interest rate for the second five years of 4.25 per annum Interest is

payable quarterly
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KBank Subordinated lebenture No.1/2008

The Board of lirectors in its meeting on 25 September 2008 approved the issuance of these Unsecured Subordinated

Debentures in name certificate and having debenture holder representatives in Thai Baht currency of Baht 17000

million with maturity of 10 years in order to raise long-term funding at reasonable cost to efficiently manage the

interest rate and liquidity risks as well as to strengthen the status of the Banks tier two capital
funds On 19 December

2008 the Bank issued the Subordinated Debentures of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMTED No.1/2008

Due A.D 2018 in the amount of Baht 17000 million with ten-year maturity In accordance with certain terms and

conditions and with the approval of the Bank of Thailand the Bank may redeem the debentures before maturity as

follows Before the fifth anniversary of the issue date under notice by the Bank of Thailand that 1.1 The

debenture will no longer be classified as financial instrument which can be counted as Tier two capital fund of the

I3ank or .2 The debenture can be counted as Tier two capital fund at the proportion less than 50 percent of Tier one

capital fund of the Bank or on the fifth anniversary of the issue date or any subsequent interest payment date after

the fifth anniversary of the issue date or The Bank is under court order for complete receivership or for business

rehabilitation or for bankruptcy under the Bankruptcy Act or other applicable laws or under the Banks liquidation

process or if the Bank can demonstrate that interest payments under the Debentures are no longer or will no longer

be deductible as an expense for income tax purposes or in any other cases as may be later stipulated by the Bank of

Thailand The debentures bear interest at the fixed interest rate for the first three years of 525 per annum the fixed

interest rate for the next four years of 5.75 per annum and the fixed interest rate for the final three years of 6.50

per annum Interest is payable quarterly
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20 SHARE CAPITAL AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the consolidated and the Bank-only basic earnings per share for the three-month period ended 30

June 2009 was based on profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of Baht 3705 million and Baht 3626 million

respectively 2008 Baht 4270 million and Baht 4062 million respectively and the weighted average number of

ordinary shares outstanding during the three-month period ended 30 June 2009 and 2008 of 2393260193 shares

respectively

The calculation of the consolidated and the Bank-only basic earnings per share for the six-month period ended 30

June 2009 was based on profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of Baht 7504 million and Baht 7509 million

respectively 2008 Baht 8708 million and Baht 8300 million respectively and the weighted average number of

ordinary shares outstanding during the six-month period ended 30 June 2009 of 2393260193 shares 2008

2392982288 shares

For the three-month and the six-month periods ended 30 June 2009 the Bank did not issue ordinary shares

The calculation of the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the three-month and six-month

periods ended 30 June 2008 is as follows

Consolidated and The Bank

Share capital
Number of the weighted average

Number Amount number of ordinary shares

of Million Shares

For the Three-Month Period For the Six-Month Period

Ended 30 June 2008 Ended 30 June 2008

Issued ordinary shares as of January 2008 2388202317 23.882 2388202317 2.388202.317

Adp

The Bank registered the change in its

paid-up share capital as result of the

increases in paid-up capital from the

exercise of warrants for ordinary shares

which were issued and offered for sale

to Bank employees except for directors

II January 5.057.876 jQ 5.057.876 4.779.971

Issued ordinary shares as of 30 June2008 2.393.260.193 2.393.260.193 2.392.982.288
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21 CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The ratios of capital to assets Capital Adequacy Ratio as of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008 were calculated

from the financial statements of the Bank The Bank has chosen to adopt the standardized Approach in compliance with

l3asel II Accord which is consistent with the BoT requirements

Million Baht

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Tier Capital

Issued and fully paid up share capital premiums on

share capital
42035 42036

Legal reserves 3050 2920

Net income after appropriation 51.481 48.608

Total Tier Capital Base 96.566 93.564

Tier Capital

Surplus on land revaluation 4585 4587

Surplus on premises revaluation 2147 2191

Surplus on marketable equity securities revaluation 179 91

Provision for normal assets 11024 9124

Subordinated debentures 33.338 33.5 19

Total Tier Capital Base 51.273 49.512

Total Capital Base 41

The BoTs regulations requires that banks registered in Thailand maintain capital adequacy ratio of not less than 8.5%

and that tier-I capital ratio must not be less than 4.25% of such assets and contingencies Capital adequacy ratios

maintained by the Bank were as follows

Percentage

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Capital adequacy ratio 15.91 15.05

Tier-I Capital ratio 1039 9.84
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22 RESERVES

Section 116 of the Public Companies Act B.E 2535 requires that the Bank shall allocate not less than percent of its

annual net profit less any accumulated losses brought forward to reserve account legal reserve until this account

reaches an anlount not less than 10% of the registered authorized capital In addition The provisions of the Civil and

Commercial Code of Thailand require that subsidiary companies shall allocate not less percent of their annual net

profit each time dividend is declared to reserve account legal reserve until the reserve reaches 10 percent of

authorized share capital The legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution

23 DIVIDEND PAYMENTS

On April 2009 the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Bank approved to pay dividends from the operating

results of 2008 at the rate of I3aht 2.00 per share totaling Baht 4787 million in which Baht 1197 million was paid on

25 September 2008 and the remaining balance of Baht 3590 million was paid on 28 April 2009

On 28 August 2008 the Board of Directors Meeting of the Bank approved to pay dividends from the six-month

operating results of 2008 at the rate of Baht 0.50 per share totaling Baht 1197 million which was paid on 25

September 2008

On April 2008 the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Bank approved to pay dividends from the operating

results of 2007 at the rate of Baht 2.00 per share totaling Baht 4784 million in which l3aht 1194 million was paid on

27 September 2007 and the remaining balance of Baht 3590 million was paid on 28 April 2008

24 BAD DEBT AND DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS REVERSAL

Bad debt and doubtful accounts reversal consisted of

Million Baht

Consolidated

For the Three-Month Periods For the Six-Month Periods

Ended 30 June Ended 30 June

2Q02 2QQ 2002 20Q

General customers 1590 383 2980 1848

Financial institutions 22

Total
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Million Baht

The Bank

For the Three-Month Periods For the Six-Month Periods

Ended 30 June Ended 30 June

2QQ2 2Q 22

General customers 1563 306 2918 1792

Financial institutions _j L22 _LL

Total 214 2L2

25 LOSS ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING

Loss on debt restructuring consisted of

Million Baht

Consolidated

For the Three-Month Ieriods For the Six-Month Periods

Ended 30 June Ended 30 June

ZQQ

Net present value of cash flows lower

than investments in receivables 835 1585 1770 1905

Transferred assets lower

than investments in receivables 119 _fl _22

Total 944

Million Baht

The Bank

For the Three-Month Periods For the Six-Month Periods

Ended 30 June Ended 30 June

Q9 2QQ 2112

Net present value of cash flows lower

than investments in receivables 835 1583 1769 1903

Transferred assets lower

than investments in receivables 112 52

Total 244
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26 ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL

Assets pledged as collateral consisted of

Million Baht

Consolidated and The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Deposits 625 2433

Government bonds 36064

State enterpnse bonds 1.Q22

Total S2l

The Bank has pledged these assets as collateral for derivatives for electricity consumption for court collateral and

for repurchase agreements
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27 CONTINGENCIES

Contingencies consisted of

Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

ihi Foreign Currencies Thial ht Foreign Currencies lotal

Avals on bills 2183 2183 1343 1343

Letters of indemnity-

borrowing 181 188 219 221

Otherguarantees 83675 7148 90823 75458 8022 83480

Letters ofcredit 1424 16604 18028 1084 16081 17165

Exchange rate agreements

Purchase agreements 37772 281009 318781 51543 318468 370011

Sale agreements 93618 303479 397097 40088 340229 3803t7

Interest rate agreements

Purchase agreements 673037 68667 741704 567180 66646 633826

Sale agreements 672584 68667 741251 566726 66646 633372

Credit Default Swap 100 100 100 874 974

Unused credit line of

overdraft 145493 145493 140491 140491

Others 5.824 7798 13.622 4.891 8820 13711

Total 1.715.717 753.553 2.469.270 1.448.906 2.274.911

95



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 AND 2008 UNAUDITED

Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

ht Foreign Currencies IstaI Balil Foreign Currencies lolal

Avals on bills 2183 2183 1343 1343

Letters of indemnity-

borrowing 181 188 219 221

Other guarantees 83675 7148 90823 75458 8022 83480

Letters ofcredit 1424 16604 18028 1084 16081 17165

Exchange rate agreements

Purchase agreements 37772 281009 318781 51543 318468 370011

Sale agreements 93618 303479 397097 40088 340229 380317

Interest rate agreements

Purchase agreements 673037 68667 741704 567180 66646 633826

Sale agreements 672584 68667 741251 566726 66646 633372

CreditDefaultSwap 100 100 100 874 974

Unused credit line of

overdraft 145493 145493 140491 140491

Others 5.598 7.798 13.396 4.616 8.820 13.436

Total 1.715.491 753553 2.469.044 1.448.631 826.005

Under normal business operations the Bank is defendant in various litigation against the Bank These include cases of

wrongful acts brought against the Bank with total claims amounting to Baht 9878 million and Baht 9937 million as of

30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008 respectively The Management believes that any liability resulting from this litigation

will not be material to the Banks financial position or on the results of its operations
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Loans and contingencies made to officerstm and to business entities where the Bank and its subsidiaries their directors

or officers hold 10% or more of their paid-up capital are summarized as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Officers 17

Business entities where the Bank and subsidiaries

their directors or officers hold 10% or more

of the paid up capital2 25

Total 821

Contingencies

Officers

Business entities where the Bank and subsidiaries

their directors or officers hold 10% or more

of the paid up capital J.1 22

Total 22

Officers include directors and those who hold management positions department head level and above in the

Financial Accounting Management and Financial Planning Departments

Transactions occurring between the Bank and related business entities are charged at market price as with other

normal business
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Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

LQ
Officers I7

Business entities where the Bank

its directors or officers hold 10% or more

ofthepaid-upcapital

Total

Contingencies

Officers

Business entities where the Bank

its directors or officers hold 10% or more

of the paid up capital

Total

Transactions occurring between the Bank and related business entities are charged at market price as with other

normal business
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Related Parties

Relationships between the Bank and other business entities where control exists consisted of

Type of Shareholding

Company Name Relationship Direct and Indirect Type of share Type of Business

30 June 31 December

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Asset Management

Kasikorn Research Center Co. Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Mutual Fund

Management

Kasikorn Securities Public Co. Ltd Subsidiary 99.99% 9999% Ordinary share Securities Business

Kasikom Factoring Co. Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Lending

Kasikom Leasing Co. Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Lending

Progress Land and Buildings Co. Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Property Development

KHAO KLA Venture Capital Venture Capital

Management Co. Ltd
Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Management

K-SMF Venture Capital Co. Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Venture Capital

Irogress iunpai Co. Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Plus Co. Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Facilities Management Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Management Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Software Co. Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Storage Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Service Support Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Service Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress HR Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Appraisal Co. Ltd Subsidiary lOO.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Collection Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Training Co.Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Kasikom Asset Management Co Ltd
directly

and
indirectly

holds 100% shares in KHAO KLA Venture Capital Management Co Ltd
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Significant transactions occurring between the Bank and the Asset Management Company are summarized as follows

Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Subsidiary Company

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd

Beginning of the period/year 530 3745

Deduction 3.215

End of the period/year

Accrued interest receivables

Subsidiary Company

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd

Deposits

Subsidiary Company

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd 30 26

Million Baht

The Bank

For the Three-Month Periods Ended 30 June

2Q

Interest income

Subsidiary Company

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd 16

Million Baht

The Bank

For the Six-Month Periods Ended 30 June

2Q2 2Q

Interest income

Subsidiary Company

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd 25
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Loans to Phethai Asset Management Company Limited are 3-month bills with interest rates equal to the interest rate of

3-month fixed deposit Icposits were pledged as collateral As of3l December 2008 the pledged deposits were Baht

18 million There is no loan to Phethai Asset Management Company Limited as of 30 June 2009

As of December 2008 the Bank has provided an allowance for doubtful accounts for Phethai Asset Management

Company Limited classified as normal loans amounting to Baht million

Income and expenses shared between the Bank and Phethai Asset Management Company Limited are charged at cost

except for fee income which is charged at market price

The Bank has provided an allowance for doubtful accounts for Phethai Asset Management Company Limited using the

same method as for general customers and in accordance with the BoTs regulations
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Additional transactions occurring between the Bank and related business entities which are charged at market price as

with other normal business or the price as stipulated in the agreement are as follows

4.1 Assets liabilities and contingencies between the Bank its subsidiary and associated companies are summarized as

follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

30 June 31 December 30 June lecember

2Q2 2Q

Subsidiary Companies

Kasikom Leasing Co Ltd 37696 33709

Kasikorn Factoring Co Ltd 3823 3985

Other Assets

Subsidiary Company

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd 55 39

Deposits

Subsidiary Company

Kasikorn Leasing Co Ltd 163 187

Progress Gunpai Co Ltd 148 214

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd 147 142

Progress Software Co Ltd 108 73

Kasikorn Factoring Co Ltd 98 III

K-SME Venture Capital Co Ltd 47 58

Progress Appraisal Co Ltd 37 65

Progress Service Support Co Ltd 32 48

Progress Land and Buildings Co Ltd 31 27

Kasikorn Research Center Co Ltd 29 37

Progress Services Co Ltd 29 32

Progress Management Co Ltd 22 27

Progress Facilities Management Co Ltd 22 25

Progress Plus Co Ltd 20 53
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Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2QQ2 2Q

Deposits

Subsidiary Companies

Progress HR Co Ltd 18 34

Progress Storage Co Ltd 18 23

Progress Training Co.Ltd 10

Associated Company

Processing Center Co Ltd 19 17 19 17

Interbank and Money Market Items Liabilities

Subsidiary Company

Ksikorn Securities Public Co Ltd 779 518

Borrowings

Subsidiary Companies

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd 507 615

Kasikorn Leasing Co Ltd 364 III

Other Liabilities

Subsidiary Companies

Progress Software Co Ltd 138 161

Progress Plus Co Ltd 24 50

Progress Appraisal Co Ltd 13 14

Progress HR Co Ltd 12 18

Progress Gunpai Co Ltd. 10

Kasikorn Securities Public Co Ltd II

Contingencies

Subsidiary Companies

Kasikorn Factoring Co Ltd 14 15
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Certain subsidiaries and associated companies have entered into 2-year building lease agreements with the Bank

Rentals are charged at cost plus increment from additional administration and maintenance expenditures incurred As

of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008 the Bank and its related parties have rental agreements with remaining tenures

amounting to Baht 10 million and Baht 18 million respectively

The Bank and subsidiaries have entered into 5-year car leasing agreements with Kasikorn Leasing Co Ltd Such

agreements are classified as finance lease agreements charged at market rates As of 30 June 2009 and December

2008 the book value of finance lease liabilities before elimination amounts to Baht 372 million and 129 million

respectively

The Bank entered into an Information Technology Service Agreement with Progress Software Co Ltd under which

the service will be provided until 31 December 2010 As of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008 the Bank is

committed to pay total service fees of Baht 46 Million and Baht 45 Million respectively

4.2 Revenue and expenses occurring between the Bank its subsidiary and associated companies are summarized as

follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

For the Three-Month Periods For the Three-Month Periods

Ended 30 June Ended 30 June

2Q2 Q2
Subsidiary Companies

Revenue

Interest income 408 320

Dividend income 220 60

Fee income 133 108

Other income 11 15

Expenses

Interest income 13

Fee expenses
62

Personnel expenses
35 34

Other expenses
582 689

Associated Companies

Expenses

Other expenses
17 17
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Million I3aht

Consolidated The Bank

For the Six-Month Periods For the Six-Month Periods

Ended 30 June Ended 30 June

2QQ2 2Q
Subsidiary Companies

Revenue

Interest income 812 621

Dividend income 470 120

Fee income 248 214

Other income 25 30

Expenses

Interest expenses 26 14

Fee expenses 62

Personnel expenses 240 220

Other expenses 1097 1154

Associated Companies

Expenses

Other expenses 33 33

The Bank has entered into staff secondment agreement with Kasikorn Securities Public Company Limited

commencing from January 2006 The agreement shall be terminated at any time by the Bank giving notice 60 days

prior to the termination date The Bank is responsible for salaries welfare and other benefits and any liabilities that

arise or may arise from the actions of the employees

For the six-month periods ended 30 June 2009 and 2008 the Bank incurred expenses amounting to Baht 240 million

and Baht 220 million respectively presented as personnel expenses in the statements of income
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4.3 Assets liabilities and contingencies between the Bank and other business entities in which the directors key

executive officers and close members of their families have significant were summarized as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated and The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Bangkok Glass Industty Co Ltd 800 300

Jutha Maritime Public Co Ltd 630 669

-YiplnTsoiJacksLtd 17 53

Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Co Ltd 15 III

Deposits

Muang Thai Life Assurance Co Ltd 588 469

Serm Suk Public Co Ltd 414 538

Muang Thai Insurance Public Co Ltd 327 376

Phatra Leasing Public Co Ltd 157

Mitsubishi Elevator Asia Co Ltd 91 87

Sup Wattana Co Ltd 58

Bangkok Glass Industry Co Ltd 55 73

Seacon Development Public Co Ltd SI

National ITMX Co Ltd 36 19

STA MDF Co Ltd 33

Nithi Thamrong Co Ltd 29 45

Sombat Lamsam Co Ltd 27

Sermsuk Beverage Co Ltd 25 16

Thai Furnishing Fabric Co Ltd 15

Muang Thai Real Estate Public Co Ltd 15

Smithithada Co Ltd 14 70

Zin Suapa Co Ltd II

The Deves Insurance Public Co Ltd 22

As of 31 December 2008 the company was not related to the Bank
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Million Baht

Consolidated and The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Contingencies

Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Co Ltd 1235 1514

Quality I-louses Public Co Ltd 218 207

Yip In Tsoi Jacks Ltd 107 108

Dole Thailand Co Ltd 56 150

Jutha Maritime Public Co Ltd 25 30

Bangkok Glass Industry Co Ltd II 14

4.4 Assets liabilities and contingencies between the Bank and its directors and key executive officers or the Banks

employees who have authority and responsibility for planning directing and controlling the activities of the Bank are

summarized as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated and The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Loans 21

Deposits 1183 1370
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29 BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The Bank and its subsidiary companies have not paid other benefits to directors and executives except fbr the benefits

that are normally paid such as directors fee directors bonus if any and income tax executives salary and bonus

if any

30 COMMITMENTS

Capital Commitments

Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Contracted but not provided for 5467 5884

Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December2008

Contracted but not provided for 5462 5880

Long-Term Lease Agreements

Operating Lease

The Bank and its subsidiary companies have entered into land/building lease agreements for branch offices and vehicle

lease agreements The Bank and its subsidiary companies were committed to pay fl.iture rentals which are summarized

as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

Type of Lease Agreement Remaining Period 30 June2009 30 June 2009

Land/building lease agreements July 20096 March 2036 1614 1607

Vehicle lease agreements July 2009 21 May 2014 175 556

Others July 200931 March 2013 11

Total kZZ
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Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

Type of Lease Agreement Remaining Period 31 December 2008 31 December 2008

Land/building lease agreements Janualy 2009 12 February 2033 620 602

Vehicle lease agreements January 2009 22 December 2013 221 674

Others January 2009 31 March 2013

Total 8E3

Service Agreement

On 12 November 2002 the Bank entered into an Information Technology Service Agreement with IBM Thailand Co

Ltd under which the service will be provided until 31 December 2012 in which the Bank has increased the scope of

such agreement in January 2009 As of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008 the Bank is committed to pay total

service fees of Baht 3870 million and Baht 4264 million respectively

31 EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Bank repurchased of USD 16.69 million of unsecured subordinated debentures with 8.25 percent coupon rate and

due A.D 2016 This had been approved by the Board of Directors on 28 May 2009 The offer had been settled on

July 2009

On 17 July 2009 the Bank issued and offered the Subordinated Debentures of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC

COMPANY LIMITED No.1/2009 Due A.D 2019 which the Bank may redeem the debenture before maturity in the

amount of Baht 600 million in name of certificate without security and debenture holder representative with ten-year

maturity This had been approved by the Board of Directors on 25 September 2008
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32 THE FINANCIAL POSITIONS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS DIFFERENTIATED BY DOMESTIC

AND FOREIGN BUSINESS

The financial positions and results of operations differentiated by domestic and foreign business can be summarized

as follows

Financial Position Classified by Tvoes of Business

Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2009

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business Ii Transactions IQIaI

Total assets 1176739 15482 1192221 5078 1187143

Interbank and money market items net assets 64081 2691 66772 66772

Investmentsnet 151583 12174 163757 163757

Loans 881257 391 881648 881648

Deposits 908960 65 909025 909025

Interbank and money market items liabilities 31396 31396 31396

Borrowings 73366 6782 80148 80148

Contingencies 2496493 13612 2510105 40835 2469270

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 December 2008

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business imal Transactions Total

Total assets 1295323 9605 1304928 1374 1303554

Interbank and money market items net assets 194541 1759 196300 196300

Investmentsnet 99058 3887 102945 102945

Loans 903680 328 904008 904008

Deposits 967939 11 967950 967950

Interbank and money market items liabilities 16300 16300 16300

Borrowings 131197 6962 138159 138159

Contingencies 2293303 23540 2316843 41932 2274911
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Million l3aht

The Bank

30 June 2009

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business I1 Transactions IQial

Total assets 1176945 15481 1192426 5078 1187348

Interbank and money market items-net assets 64664 2691 67355 67355

Investments net 160679 12174 172853 172853

Loans 877049 391 877440 877440

Deposits 909610 65 909675 909675

Interbank and money market items liabilities 32184 32184 32184

Borrowings 73086 6781 79867 79867

Contingencies 2496267 13612 2509879 40835 2469044

Million Baht

The Bank

31 December 2008

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business Ica Transactions Thti

Total assets 1295321 9605 1304926 1374 1303552

lnterbank and money market items-net assets 194949 1759 196708 196708

Investmentsnet 107931 3887 111818 111818

Loans 900259 328 900587 900587

Deposits 968777 II 968788 968788

Interbank and money market items liabilities 16852 16852 16852

Borrowings 131015 6962 137977 137977

Contingencies 2293028 23540 2316568 41932 2274636
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Results of Operations Classified by Types of Business

Million Baht

Consolidated

For the Three-Month Period Ended 30 June 2009

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business I1 Transactions II

Interest and dividend income 13808 78 13886 65 13821

Interest expense _2.952 .J1 JU1 _11i5 1022

Net income expense from interest and dividend 10849 100 10749 10749

Non-interest income 5982 23 5959 5959

Non-interest expense 11.841 31 ___

Income before income tax

Million Baht

Consolidated

For the Three-Month Period Ended 30 June 2008

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business IoU Transactions lola

Interest and dividend income 14392 223 14615 196 14419

Interest expense J.904 222 _4.12 J21i _L28J3

Net income expense from interest and dividend 10488 49 10439 10439

Non-interest income 5051 329 5380 5380

Non-interest expense iQd8 iQ.2Q iQ.2Q

Income before income tax 24
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The Bank

Million Baht

For the Three-Month Period Ended 30 June 2009

Interest and dividend income

Interest expense

Net income expense from interest and dividend

Non-interest income

Non-interest expense

Income loss before income tax

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business Ii Transactions Lt1

13829 78 13907 65 13842

J1 d42 L22

10865 tOO 10765 10765

5357 23 5334 5334

iL45 37 1L412 1L422

2$2 LQ 62

The Bank

Million Baht

For the Three-Month Period Ended 30 June 2008

Interest and dividend income

Interest expense

Net income expense from interest and dividend

Non-interest income

Non-interest expense

Income before income tax

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business Lai Transactions Thial

14265 223 14488 196 14292

Lfl 222 4J3 LL9 L7
10354 49 10305 10305

4524 329 4853 4853

5078 245 5.323
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Million l3aht

Consolidated

For the Six-Month Period Ended 30 June 2009

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business I1 Transactions I1

Interest and dividend income 29307 165 29472 140 29332

Interest expense _2.U i54 _L22 Li41 i21

Net income expense from interest and dividend 21694 189 21505 21505

Non-interest income 11463 167 11630 11630

Non-interest expense
22.22 22.4 22.4Q

Income loss before income tax

Million Baht

Consolidated

For the Six-Month Period Ended 30 June 2008

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business IQ Transactions IoSai

Interest and dividend income 28214 515 28729 392 28337

Interest expense S2 IQ2 3921

Net income expense from interest and dividend 20746 87 20659 20659

Non-interest income 10945 196 11141 11141

Non-interest expense 12.4 22 I925 1225

Income before income tax J2A2 32
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Million Baht

Interest and dividend income

Interest expense

Net income expense from interest and dividend

Non-interest income

Non-interest expense

Income loss before income tax

Interest and dividend income

Interest expense

Net income expense from interest and dividend

Non-interest income

Non-interest expense

Income before income tax

The Bank

For the Six-Month Period Ended 30 June 2009

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business I1 Transactions

29369 165 29534 140

L22

21747 189 21558

10367 167 10534

2L242 11 22Q2Q

1Q2

The Bank

For the Six-Month Period Ended 30 June 2008

Foreign Eliminated

_______ Business Ijj Transactions

515 28488 392

Q2 8.083 221

87 20405

196 10102

22 i2I

29394

21558

10534

222Q

Million Baht

Domestic

Business

27973

20492

9906

i249

TQ

28096

L9i

20405

10102

aQiL

LL4
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33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both financial asset of one enterprise and financial liability

or equity instrument of another enterprise

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty or borrower may default on its contractual obligations and

agreements Such default may be caused by the counterpartys inability to pay due to financial encumbrances or

their intention not to abide by the contractual agreements resulting in loss to the Bank

The Bank has implemented credit risk management processes to measure and control credit risk Through the use

of credit risk rating tools for assessing customers credit risk rating the Bank is capable of granting better quality

loans In addition for retail customers the Bank used credit scoring as tool to determine an appropriate return

given the risk level of each loan In addition the Bank allocates credit concentration to various business sectors

and industries so as to diversify credit risk as whole

In the credit approval process the Bank considers the customers ability to repay and the loan objectives as key

factors in the approval of credit and may obtain sufficient collateral or other securities where appropriate as

means of mitigating the risk of financial losses from default To maximize the effectiveness of the credit approval

process credit analysis and approval functions are separated from the units responsible for maintaining customer

relationships The Bank also has processes for regularly reviewing customers credit rating and performance on all

approved transactions For non-performing loans NPL the Bank has closely and continuously monitored

resolved and/or restructured them to retain maximum benefits for the organization

For the loans item shown in the balance sheet the Banks maximum credit loss is the carrying amount of net

loans after deduction of applicable allowance for losses without considering the value of collateral In addition

credit risk may arise from off-balance sheet items or contingencies

Market risk

Market risk is any risk due to changes in interest rates foreign exchange rates or securities prices that will have an

effect on the Banks funding costs investment position or foreign currency position resulting in possible loss to

the Bank Market risk for the Bank can be categorized as interest rate risk foreign exchange risk and equity

position risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to any risk that arises from changes in interest rates which may affect the value of the

Banks financial instruments or may cause volatility
in the Banks earnings or fluctuations in the value of the
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Banks financial assets and liabilities both in the current reporting period and in future years Interest rate

risk also arises from the structure and characteristics of the Banks assets liabilities and equities Most of the

Banks credit is based on the Banks floating interest rates MLR MOR and MRR Deposit interest rates are

in line with the announcements made by the Bank As result the interest rate risk faced by the Bank is

generally low However the Bank actively manages such risk by adjusting its asset and liability structure in

order to maximize returns under the acceptable risk levels in order to best fit current market conditions and

trends Management of interest rate risk is under the supervision of the Banks Asset and Liability

Management Sub-Committee

An analysis of loans including financial institutions at fixed and floating interest rates MLR MOR and MRR as

follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008 30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Fixed interest rates 205166 223862 203025 225368

Floating interest rates 733.599 867.668 731.532 862.741

Total Loans including financial institutions $2t5 LQ2L53Q b$$J
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The average balances of the interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities of the Bank and its subsidiaries calculated

by using the average of the beginning of the year/period and the ending of the year/period and the average interest and

dividend rates for the six-month period ended 30 June 2009 and for the year ended 31 December 2008 are as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Interest and Interest and

Dividend Dividend

Average Income Average Average Income Average

Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate

Interest-bearing Financial Assets

Interbank and money market items 131547 865 1.32 127327 2089 1.64

Securities purchased under resale agreements 5350 12 0.22

Investments I34443 2180 3.24 I0I989 4115 4.03

Loans 892828 22 5.89 833.257 3jj4 6.47

Total Ll58.8l8 5.06 5.63

Interest-bearing Financial Liabilities

Deposits 938488 5560 1.18 875886 14369 1.64

Interbank and money market items 23848 176 1.48 15161 290 1.91

Borrowings 109.153 _2Q9 3.83 98.129 JjJ35 3.09

Total J4$ 1.46 989.176 J74 1.79

Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Interest and Interest and

Dividend Dividend

Average Income Average Average Income Average

Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate

Interest-bearing Financial Assets

Interbank and money market items 132008 865 1.31 127492 2087 1.64

Securities purchased under resale agreements 5350 12 0.22

Investments 144520 2777 3.84 110520 4553 412

Loans 889.014 2252 5.79 830.946 3Q5 6.39

Total 1.165.542 5.04 1.074.308 5.56

Interest-bearing Financial Liabilities

Deposits 939232 5561 1.18 876598 14372 1.64

Interbank and money market items 24518 178 1.45 15506 294 1.90

Borrowings 108.922 2Q22 3.85 97.840 .J.L39 3.11

Total 1.072.672 1.46 1.79
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Financial assets and liabilities classified by maturity of interest repricing as of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008

are shown below

Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2009

Immediate Less than months Year Over Non-interest Stop

Repricing months to Year to Years Years Bearing Accrued

Financial Assets

Cash 17356 17356

Interbank and money market

Items 1546 61555 3725 66826

Investments 12127 13650 52113 76885 4943 3320 1192 164230

Loans 608303 93359 8737 53592 49016 2515 66126 881648

Accrued interest receivable 1205 1205

Customers liability
under

acceptances
523 523

Other assets 627 _525 5.885

Total Financial Assets 622.603 168.564 60.850 130.477 53259 9Q 1.137.673

Financial Liabilities

Deposits 500375 224740 99390 30065 54455 909025

Interbank and money market

Items 9576 16183 500 51 5086 31396

Liabilities payable on demand 10704 10704

Borrowings 34502 1428 37192 6224 802 80148

Banks liability under

acceptances 523 523

Other liabilities 995 iaI5 6.7 tO

Total Financial Liabilities 510.946 275.425 101.318 73.Q .224 2L25 1.038.506

On-balance sheet items 111.657 106.86fl 40.48 43.383 99.167
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Financial Assets

Consolidated

31 December 2008

Immediate Less than months Year Over Non-interest Stop

Repricing months to Year to Years Years Bearing Accrued

Million Baht

Cash

Interhank and money market

27751 27751

Items

Investments

Loans

Accrued interest receivable

6032 186191 4132 196355

1485 1485

Customers liability under

acceptances

Other assets

Total Financial Assets

492

2.44

639.807 318.119 32.764 4Q55 52 4L29

492

7.310

6Q.394 1.242.056

Financial Liabilities

Interbank and money market

442984 315675 146384 15680

Items 7835

Liabilities payable on demand

Borrowings 82900 15227 33054

Banks
liability

under

10883 10883

16

acceptances

Other liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

On-balance sheet items

492

2.611 7.151

453.430 401.864 162.180 474 _7 69.340

186.377 83.745 129.4l6 $J 22.131

492

9.762

1.143.546

6700 26687 25592 31212 7370 5900 1194 104655

624641 105241 7172 52843 52338 2573 59200 904008

Deposits 47227 967950

3289 569 140 896 3571 16300

6962 138159
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Financial Assets

The Bank

30 June 2009

Immediate Less than months Year Over Non-interest Stop

Million Baht

Repricing months to Year to Years Years Bearing Accrued IQIal

Cash

Interbank and money market

17354 17354

2094 61555

12127 13650 52113 76885

605024 97379 9032 52425

3725

4943 14647

48934 1573

1175

67374

1192 175557

63073 877440

1175

Customers liability under

acceptances

Other assets

Total Financial Assets

627 4.315

619.872 172.584 6iJA5 129.310 5L22 4.L3i2

4.942

642 1.144.365

Financial Liabilities

Interbank and money market

500884 224837 99390 30065 54499

items

Liabilities payable on demand

Borrowings

10420 16127 500 51

35009 1428 37192

5086 32184

10704 10704

14

Banks liability under

acceptances

Other liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

On-balance sheet items

523

995 5.716

512.299 275.973 101.318 224 76.542

4J 33.230

523

6.711

1.039.664

4IZ t04i0I

items

Investments

Loans

Accrued interest receivable

523

Deposits

523

909675

6224 79867
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Financial Assets

Interbank and money market

The Bank

31 December 2008

Immediate Less than months Year Over Non-interest Stop

Repricing months to Year to Years Years Beanng Accrued ThIal

27750

items

Investments

Loans

Accrued interest receivable

Customers
liability

under

acceptances

Other assets

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

Deposits

Interbank and money market

Liabilities payable on demand

Borrowings

4074 196728

7370 14727 1194 113482

52116 1593 56000 900587

1454 1454

492 492

3.866 6.300

9.486 53.956 5.2j94 1.246.793

Banks liability under

acceptances

Other liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

On-balance sheet items

2.611

454.806 401.787 162.180 4gg74

181.991 79.104 128.656

492 492

7.159 9.770

L58 69257 __2___ 1.144.762

15.301

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that occurs from changes in exchange rates which may affect the value of the Banks

financial instruments or may cause volatility
in the Banks earnings or fluctuations in the value of the Banks assets and

liabilities

Million I3aht

Cash 27750

6498 186156

6700 26687 25592 31212

621165 109840 7932 51941

2.434

636.797 322.683 33.524 3J51

443761 315828 146384 15680

items

47135 968788

8434 3241 569 140 896 3572

82718 15227 33054 6962

16852

10883 10883

16 137977
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The Bank engages in foreign exchange related transactions which may create foreign exchange risk However the Bank

believes that such risk is low as most foreign currency transactions are protected by customers underlying transactions

The Banks policy is to minimize foreign exchange risk by closing its foreign exchange position on daily basis

Management of foreign exchange risk is under the supervision of the Asset and
Liability Management Sub-Committee

Foreign currency positions in Haht equivalent as of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008 were as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated and The Bank

30 June 2009

Currency

US Dollar Yn Qthr

Cash 375 22 29 137 93 656

Interbank and money market

items net 6887 21 33 63 565 7569

Investments net 12187 23 12213

Loans and accrued interest

receivables net 24030 949 47 961 308 26295

Other assets 59I 1i2

Total assets 44Q2Q 992 JA9 LIU 29 4L5Q

Liabilities

Deposits 65 65

Interbank and money market items 485 1973 II 2469

Liability on demand 4993 96 36 253 172 5550

Borrowings 6781 6781

Other liabilities 159 424 1.572 J1 2jjj

Total liabilities 2.228 1.825 3L4

Foreign currency position of

on-balance items-net

off-balance sheet items-net 35 141

Forward exchange contracts

cross currency swaps and FX options
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Million Baht

Consolidated and The Bank

31 December 2008

Currency

US Dollar und Qth It1

Cash 523 71 65 512 193 1364

Interbank and money market

items net 7509 123 64 121 729 8546

Investments net 3934 23 3959

Loans and accrued interest

receivables net 31822 1597 77 1259 324 35079

Other assets IIQ _5 iLQ

Total assets 2Q9 _2 .Ai.LQ L224

Liabilities

Deposits 13468 101 284 785 456 15094

Interbank and money market items 2607 1005 466 4078

Liability on demand 5937 118 125 694 308 7182

Borrowings 6962 6962

Other liabilities J52 __U _11 i292

Total liabilities 372.j _422 _5.6J2

Foreign currency position of

on-balance items-net 14.272 1.102 _44 13.352

off-balance sheet items-net 15.716 220 _1J 14.874

Forward exchange contracts

cross currency swaps and FX options

Equity position risk

Equity position risk is any risk that arises from changes in the price of equities or common stock that may cause

volatility in the Banks earnings or fluctuations in the value of the Banks financial assets

The Banks policy is not to increase its equity investments but to divest any equity position that is not directly

related to its main banking business The Bank manages and monitors market situations closely in order to acquire

supportive information for proper management and retain maximum benefits for the Bank
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank may not be able to meet its obligations as they fall due because of inability to

realise its assets or to cover funding requirements at an appropriate price which results in loss to the Bank

The Bank manages its liquidity position under the Bank of Thailands liquidity reserve regulations and other applicable

regulations The Treasury Department is accountable for managing the Banks liquidity position by providing short-term

and long-term funding sources as well as investing in highly liquid assets in both domestic and foreign currencies The

Bank also ensures that its liquidity position is suitable and sufficient for the current and foreseeable market conditions

The Assets and Liabilities Management Sub-Committee supervises management of liquidity
risk

maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities as of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008 was as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2009

Less than months Year Over No

ALcall months to Year to Years Years Maturity

Financial Assets

Cash 17356 17356

Interbank and money market items 5271 61555 66826

Investments 577 15057 57884 82033 5408 3271 164230

Loans 207064 286672 15178 190893 181841 881648

Accrued interest receivables 1205 1205

Customers liability
under acceptances 523 523

Other assets 627 1.490 _32 5.885

Total Financial Assets 213.539 366.502 73.062 272.926 187.249 24395 1.137.673

Financial Liabilities

Deposits 554830 224740 99390 30065 909025

lnterbank and money market items 14662 16183 500 51 31396

Liability payable on demand 10704 10704

Borrowings 35022 1395 20507 23224 80148

Banks liability under acepetances 523 523

Other liabilities 1.064 886 999 325 6.710

Total Financial Liabilities 58 1.260 277.354 102.284 50.948 23.224 j4 1.038.506

Liquidity-net 367.721 29.222 221.978 164.025 99.167
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Financial Assets

Cash

Interbank and money market items

Investments

Loans

Accrued interest receivables

Customers liability under acceptances

Other assets

Total Financial Assets

16 1443

492

Consolidated

December 2008

Million Baht

IQ

Less than months Year Over No

Aiiall months to Year to Years Years Maturity

186573

27679 26990 35536 8032

320477 17240 181847 183711

27751 2775

196355

5840 104655

904008

1485

492

9782

578

200733

2.434

213.543

490211

11408

10883

2.742

515.244

301301

1.176

537.840

315675

3289

_2
217.402 191.749 1L29J44.231

146384

569

7.3 10

1.242.056

Financial Liabilities

Deposits

Interbank and money market items

Liability payable on demand

Borrowings

Banks
liability

under accpetances

Other liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

Liquidity-net

15680

31

82900 14736 16561 23962

967950

109 894 16300

10883

138159

492

2.352

404.708

133.132

1.420

163.109

207

32.479

184.923

24.071

167.678

Q41

33356

492

9.762

1.143.546
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Million I3aht

The Bank

30 June 2009

Less than months Year Over No

Aua1I months to Year To Years Years Maturtv Ist1

Financial Assets

Cash
17354 17354

Interbank and money market items
5819 61555 67374

Investments 550 15057 57884 82017 5408 14641 175557

Loans 205658 286337 15473 188538 181434 877440

Accrued interest receivables
1175 1175

Customers liability under acceptances 523 523

Other assets 627 1.3 18 4.942

Total Financial Assets 212.654 365.965 73.357 270.555 186.842 34992 1.144.365

Financial Liabilities

Deposits 555383 224837 99390 30065 909675

Interbank and money markei items 15506 16127 500 51 32184

Liability payable on demand 10704 10704

Borrowings 35022 1114 20507 23224 79867

Banks liability under acceptances 523 523

Other liabilities .064 887 999 325 6.711

Total Financial Liabilities 582.657 277.396 102.003 50.948 23.224 J4 1.039.664

Liquidity-net 37Q03 _$9 L241 j07 163.618 j6 1Q470i
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Million Baht

The Bank

31 December 2008

Less than months Year Over No

ALtall months to Year To Years Years Maturity IQIal

Financial Assets

Cash 27750 27750

Interbank and money market items 10189 186539 196728

Investments 550 27669 26990 35519 8032 14722 113482

Loans 199371 320474 17990 179754 182998 900587

Accrued interest receivables 1454 1454

Customers
liability

under acceptances 492 492

Otherassets 2.434 6.300

Total Financial Assets 212.544 537.641 44.980 215.273 191.030 45325 1.246.793

Financial Liabilities

Deposits 490896 315828 146384 15680 968788

Interbank and money market items 12006 3241 569 31 109 896 16852

Liability payable on demand 10883 10883

Borrowings 82718 14736 16561 23962 137977

Banks
liability

under acceptances 492 492

Other liabilities 2.742 2.360 1.420 207 9.770

Total Financial Liabilities 516.527 404.639 163.109 32.479 24.071 ..L212 1.144.762

Liquidity-net 133.002 18.129 j224 166.959 41.1 102.031
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Fair value

Fair value is the estimated value that the Bank and its subsidiaries could receive from the sale of financial assets or

the estimated cost of redeeming their financial liabilities Fair values are based on market value or estimated values

derived frum using general market principles of calculation

The following is summary of carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial assets and liabilities and

off-balance sheet items as of 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008

Million Baht

Consolidated

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Carrying Carlying

Amount Fair value Amount Fair value

Financial Assets

Cash 17356 17356 27751 27751

Interbank and money market items net 66772 66772 196300 196300

Investments net 163757 163850 102945 103105

Loans and accrued interest receivables net 851005 851005 875722 875722

Customers liability under acceptances 523 523 492 492

Otherassets 5.885 7.310 7.310

Total Financial Assets J1Q52O 1.210.680

Financial Liabilities

Deposits 909025 909025 967950 967950

Interbank and money market items 31396 31396 16300 16300

Liabilities payable on demand 10704 10704 10883 10883

Borrowings 80148 80694 138159 137190

Banks liability under acceptances 523 523 492 492

Other liabilities 6.7 10 6.7 10 9.762 9.762

Total Financial Liabilities l038506 1.039.052 1.142.577
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Million Baht

The Bank

30 June 2009 31 December 2008

Carrying Carrying

Amount Fair value Amount Fair value

Financial Assets

Cash 17354 17354 27750 27750

Interbank and money market items net 67355 67355 196708 196708

Investments net 172853 172946 111818 111979

Loans and accrued interest receivables net 847938 847938 873539 873539

Customers liability under acceptances 523 523 492 492

Other assets 4942 4.942 6.300 6.300

Total Financial Assets ii2 1.111.058 LP1 k2J2
Financial Liabilities

1eposits 909675 909675 968788 968788

Interbank and money market items 32184 32184 16852 16852

Liabilities payable on demand 10704 10704 10883 10883

Borrowings 79867 80413 137977 137190

Banks liability under acceptances 523 523 492 492

Other liabilities 6.711 6.711 9.770 9.770

Total Financial Liabilities 1.040.210 jJ422 L143915

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Bank in estimating fair values of financial assets and

liabilities as disclosed herein

The values of cash interbank and money market items assets and liabilities customers liability under acceptances

accrued income other assets liabilities payable on demand banks liability under acceptances accrued interest

payables and other liabilities are stated at their carrying values at the reporting date

The fair values of held-for-trading investments available-for-sale investments and held-to-maturity investments are

stated according to the Banks accounting policies mentioned in Note 4.4

The fair value of general investments is stated at cost net of allowance for their impairment
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The fair values of loans and accrued interest receivables are based on the carrying values of loans and accrued interest

receivables net of allowance for doubtful accounts since most loans are at floating rate ones

The carrying values of deposits usually approximate fair values except for negotiable certificates of deposit NCD for

which fair value is calculated by using the expected yield on borrowings

The fair values of borrowings are estimated by using market values

The following is summary of the notional amounts and the fair value of the consolidated and the Bank derivative

instruments as at 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008

Million Baht

Consolidated and The Bank

30 June 2009

Notional Amount

Up to year Over year Fair Value

Forward exchange contracts 432785 8956 441741 925

Cross currency swaps 166616 107520 274136 1232

Interest rate swaps 460098 1022857 1482955 346

Creditdefaultswaps 100 100

Otherdenvatives 1740 170 1910 20

Million Baht

Consolidated and The Bank

31 December 2008

Notional Amount

Up to year Over year Fair Value

Forward exchange contracts 526422 8510 534932 1913

Cross currency swaps 122124 93272 215396 3915

Interest rate swaps 864008 403190 1267198 694

Credit default swaps 974 974

Otherderivatives 1278 495 1773

The fair value is ordinarily derived from quoted market price or from generally accepted pricing models where no

market price is available
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34 RECLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS

Certain accounts in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2008 have been reclassified to conform with the presentation

in the balance sheet as at 30 June 2009

Significant reclassifications are as follows

Million Baht

31 December 2008

Consolidated The Bank

Before After Before After

reclassifications Reclassifications reclassifications reclassifications Reclassifications reclassifications

Balance sheet

Assets

Interbank and money market items

Domestic items

Interestbearing 187.805 1.073 186732 188.236 1073 187.163

Foreign items

Interest bearing 6.911 1361 5550 6911 1.361 5.550

Leasehold net 629 629 629 629

Intangible assets net 9223 629 8594 7912 629 7.283

Otherassets-net 8.186 2434 10620 6385 2434 8819

Liabilities

Interbank and money market items

Foreign items

Interest bearing 3619 2611 1008 3619 2611 1008

Other liabilities 17366 2.611 19977 16536 2.611 19147

The reclassifications have been made because in the opinion of management the new classification is more appropriate

to the nature of business and in accordance with accounting practical guidelines
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35 BUSINESS AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES RELATING TO TRANSACTiONS AMONG GROUP OF

COMPANIES OFFERING FINANCIAL SERVICES

In accordance with the Bank of Thailands notification number Sor Nor Sor 66/2008 dated August 2008 regarding

Consolidated Supervision the Bank is required to disclose policies relating to business and risk management policies

relating to transactions among group of companies offering financial services summarised as follows

For business transactions among group of companies offering financial services requirements for type of

transactions including relevant criteria and limitations have been established They follow the same process as

applied to other parties

For business transactions and services among group of companies there are supervision to ensure that appropriate

market prices are used that level of transactions among the companies and level of guarantee for third parties are in

compliance with applicable rules and regulations

Risk management policies for transactions among group of companies offering financial services have been

established and included on the consolidated risk management policies which have been approved by the Banks

Board of Directors

See Note 28 for related party transactions and balances for transactional information which are in compliance with the

above policies

36 THAI ACCOUNINC STANDARD TAS NOT YET ADOPT

The Bank and its subsidiaries have not adopted the following new and revised TAS that have been issued as of the

balance sheet date but are not yet effective These revised TAS will become effective for financial periods beginning on

orafter January 2011

TAS 24 revised 2007 Related Party Disclosres

TAS 40 Investment Property

The adoption and initial application of these revised TAS is not expected to have any material impact on the

consolidated or the Banks financial statements

37 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved for issue by the Audit Committee on 26 August 2009

133



EXCELLENCE

SEC
Ma OC3SQ

Scti0t

11.lA



Executive Summary

Management Discussion and Analysis

For the Quarter Ending June 30 2009

In the second
quarter

of 2009 KASIKORNBANKGROUP continued to give priority
to

satisfying
the needs of customers by offering complete financial products and services with the aim

of
becoming

the best service provider Our goal of becoming solution bank was affirmed by our

service efforts and product innovations In our operating performance during the second quarter of

2009 the Banks consoldated net income totaled BahI 3105 mion decreasing by Baht 95 mion

or 2.50
percent

from the first quarter of 2009 This decrease in net income was mainly attributable to

an over-quarter increase ii non-interest expense due mostly to expenses
related to the Banks

strategic projects that offset higher
non-interest income

On our balance sheet the Banks consoldated assets equaled Baht 1181143 mion down

by Baht 30119 mion or 2.52 percent from the end of March 2009 attributed mainly to decreases ii

net investments together
with interbank and money market items that offset rise in loans As of

June 30 2009 the Banks consoldated loans amounted to BahI 881648 mien increasing by Baht

4506 mien or 0.51 percent over the end of March 2009 Our net NPL ratio to total loans was 1.91

percent sightly higher than the 1.84
percent seen at the end of March 2009 In addition our gross

NPI ratio to total loans equaled 3.14 percent rising marginaly over the 3.69 percent reported at the

end of March 2009 The consoldated labities of the Bank as of June 30 2009 totaled Baht

1010519 mion faing by
Baht 29128 mion equivalent to 2.10-percent drop over-quarter

ii

Ight
of decreases in deposits and short-term borrowing Our deposits amounted to Baht 909025

mion down
by

Baht 5081 mien or 0.56 percent from the end of March 2009 Also short-term

borrowing had come to Baht 36411 mion showing
decrease of Baht 33929 mien or 48.23

percent
from the end of March 2009 Total censoldated equity totaled Baht 116624 mien

dropping by Baht 991 mion or 0.84 percent from the end of March 2009 as result of our interim

dividend payouts in this quarter Meanwhle the capital adequacy ratio of the Bank amounted to

15.91 percent where our Tier-i and Tier-2 capital were 10.39
percent

and 5.52
percent respectively

The Banks core business operations in the second quarter of 2009 continued to encounter

number of chalenges amid an unfavorable operating environment caused by the global economic

crisis in addition to the outbreak of avian influenza 2009 H1N1 and domestic pultical uncertainty

As result sluggish customer demand for loans and risk management products led to fal in our

Corporate Business loans as wel as lower fee-based income on risk management products

Although our treasury operations banking book also registered an over-quarter decine ii total

interest and dividend income due
mainly to decreases in investments our SME and Retal Business

loans were able to maintain
growth during

the
quarter Meanwhle the Bank continued to develop our



sales and service channels through the increased number of branches as wel as extended

electronic banking services for better service efficiency

With
regards to the operating performance of Companies that incorporate related financial

services and provide credit facities to customers during
the first haft of 2009 KASIKORN

FACTORING CO LTD KFactonng recorded shght decrease in credit extension from 2008 wMe

KASIKORN LEASING CO LTD KLeasing continued to achieve loan
growth

The assets under

management AUM market share of KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO LTD KAsset went
up

to the first place having increased over 2008
Significant performance inprovements were seen at

KASIKORN SECURITIES PCL KSecurities as wel The companys market share in the securities

brokerage business rose significantly whe in ther corporate finance business emphasis has been

placed upon strong
coordination with the Bank aimed at providing complete financial solutions to

meet the needs of customers

In addition we have continued to develop and improve our risk management in variety
of

dimensions particularly in credit market and hquidity risk management together with ongoing

development efforts toward support functions especialy human resources and IT management To

further
progress on our K-Transformation strategic project we have enhanced our

KASIKORNBANKGROUP Disclosure Poky for
ahgnment

with
intemationaly recognized

best

practices and the PIar disclosure requirements addressed in the Basel II Capital Accord In

recognition of our efforts to develop our core businesses in al dimensions KASIKORNBANKGROUP

was widely honored with prestigious awards and other marks of recognition during the second

quarter
of 2009 They included the Trusted Brand 2009 award voted in

by readers of Readers

Digest magazine in Thadand for the second consecutive
year

which was awarded to KAsset



Content

Page

Overview

1.1 Overview of Economy Banking Industry and Regulatory Changes

Thailands Economy in the Second Quarter of 2009

Banking Industry and Competition

Regulatory Changes

1.2 Direction of Business
Operations

Operating Performance and Financial Position Analysis

2.1 Operating Performance

2.2 Financial Position Analysis
11

2.3 Capital Requirements and Credit Ratings
14

Operations of Core Businesses 16

3.1 Business Overview 16

3.2 Customer Segments 16

3.3 Product Groups and Sales and Service Channels 20

3.3.1 Product Groups
20

3.3.2 Sales and Service Channels 21

3.4 Financial Position 31

3.5 Treasury Operations
33

Operating
Environment 33

Business Operations in the Second Quarter of 2009 34

Financial Position 34

Risk Management and Risk Factors 35

4.1 Credit Risk Management 35

Outstanding Loans 36

Non-performing
Loans 31

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Revaluation Aflowance for Debt Restructuring 38

Foreclosed Properties
38

Phethai Asset Management Company Limited 39

4.2 Market Risk Management 39

4.3
Liquidity

Risk Management
40

4.4 Other Risk Management 40

4.5 Basel II Ptar
Capital Adequacy Disclosure 41



Page

Operations of Support Groups
45

Human Resource Management for the Highest Business Efficiency of 45

KASIKORNBANKGROLJP

IT Outsourcing
46

K-Transformation 46

KASIKORNBANKs Investments in Subsidiary and Associated Companies 41



Overview

1.1 Overview of Economy Banking Industry and Regulatory Changes

Thailands Economy in the Second Quarter of 2009

Thaands economy contracted 4.9 percent year-on-year
in the second quarter of 2009 an

improvement from the 1.1-percent contraction in the first
quarter

of 2009 This slowed decine was

influenced by lower contractions seen in manufacturing production and private sector spending in

tandem with the global economic stabization as wel as the economic stimulus efforts of the

government Meanwile the Headhne Consumer Price Index CPI dropped
2.1

percent over-year

versus the 0.3-percent fal in the previous quarter due mainly to the lying cost subsidy programs
of

the government and the high-base comparison As exports plunged sharply over-year imports
feU

even more steeply resulting
in trade

surplus
in the second

quarter
of 2009 despite

smaler

magnitude
of

surplus
than in the previous quarter

This trade surplus continued to be key support

to the Baht against the U.S Dolar

Thailand Economic Growth Forecast

Units Year-on-year
percentar

change or as otheiwise indicated

Private Consumption Index -4.2 5.3

Private Investment Index -15.5 -16.1

Manufacturing Production Index -9.1 -18.5

Agricufture
Production Index -6.3 1.2

Exports -26.1 -19.9

Imports -32.3 -38.3

Trade Balance USD miLons 3896 18YJ

Current Account USD millions 2293 9112

Headhne CPI Inflation -2.1 -0.3

Sources The Bank of Thaand NLSDB and KASIKORN RESEARCH CENTER CO LTD

Due to the economic and CPI contractions the Bank of Thaand Bol trimmed their policy

rate by another 0.25 percent from 1.50 percent at the end of March 2009 to 1.25 percent in the B0Ts

Monetary Policy Committee meeting on Apul 2009 before holding it unchanged in their next

meeting on May 20 2009 WhIe commercial banks have adopted more cautious approach towards

lending and risk management competition remains intense as banks are keen to expand and retain

their customer bases particularly in groups of customers showing high recovery potential



Banking Industry and Competition

For the second quarter of 2009 the Thai commercial banking system
recorded net profs

that were lower than in the previous quarter and the same quarter of last
year owing mainly to higher

alowances for doubtful accounts and losses on debt restructuring despite sight over-quarter

reduction in non-performing loans These added alowances partly reflected commercial banks

precautionary stance toward any possible asset deterioration in Ight
of the Ingering economic

uncertainty both at home and abroad Despite both deposit and lending rate cuts net interest

income rose shghtly over-quarter folowing reductions in interest expenses that exceeded those of

interest and dividend income especialy when commercial banks gradualy absorbed lower funding

costs after some fixed-term deposit rates came due This improvement was in me with net interest

margins
for the second

quarter
that seemed to have already

bottomed out Meanwhie fee income

rose both over-quarter and
over-year

which echoed the emergence of positive signs of economic

and
lending conditions in addition to shift in commercial banks business strategies to give higher

priority
to boosting their fee income due to its lower sensitivity to changing economic cycles than

interest income from loans

On the balance sheet net loans of the 14 Thai commercial banks showed smaler

contractions of 0.5 percent over-quarter versus the 2.36-percent drop in the first quarter of 2009

Meanwhe deposits contracted 2.0
percent over-quarter which contributed to smghdy tighter hquidity

conditions at Thai commercial banks Due to proactive asset quahty monitoring and management

non-performing loans NPLs eased as reflected by the lower ratios of net and
gross non-performing

loans at 3.36 and 5.76 percent to total loans from 3.40 and 5.91 percent respectively

Regarding banking business competition ft remained intense especialy in the area of loans

for customers with growth potential and high debt-servicing abthty Although deposit competition

seemed to ease bit in the first
quarter it intensified late in the second

quarter as evident from the

increases in fixed-term deposit rates for the long tenor and issuances of special deposit products

with attractive
yields

These moves were backed
by expectations

that the
pohcy rate had already

reached its trough and positive economic signs which might resuft in returning loan demand in the

future

Regulatory Changes

Some important regulatory changes in the second quarter of 2009 that may affect

KASIKORNBANK
operations can be summarized as below



Tax Exemptions from Debt Restructuring and Loan Write-Offs

The
Royal

Decree issued under the Revenue Code
governing tax exemptions No 483

B.E 2552 2009 which was published in the Government Gazette on May 18 2009 and came into

effect on May 19 2009 coupled with the Ministerial Regulation No 210 B.E 2552 2009 which

was issued under the Revenue Code governing
Loan Write-Otis and came into effect on Apil 2009

provides some tax incentives for debt
restructuring Apparently these incentives are provided for

restructuring
of Non-Performing Loans NPLs in accordance with the debt-restructuring criteria of

financial institutions enforced under the notifications of the Bank of Thailand Bol during January

December 31 2009 To summarize

Income taxes on debtors revenue obtained from debt settlements with creditors who are

financial institutions and other types of creditors are waived

Creditors who are financial institutions and other types
of creditors are alowed to write off

NPLs after debt settlements without having to folow the normal criteria which is time-consuming as

debt write-otis can proceed only when each debtor has total credit exposure in excess of Baht

500000 and al debt collection and
htigation procedures are completed

Income value-added and special business taxes as wel as revenue stamps are waived

for debtors of financial institutions and financial institutions and for debtors of other types of creditors

and those creditors These tax exemptions
wdl

target at income obtained from the transfer of assets

sales of goods or provision of services in addition to securities resulting from debt restructuring

Meanwhile lees for ownership right registration and
juristic

acts at the Department of Lands wil also

be reduced

Income and special
business taxes as wel as revenue stamps are waived for debtors of

financial institutions for their income derived from the transfers of properties pledged as colateral for

loans from financial institutions to other non-financial institution
parties

and from securities derived

from the transfer of such
properties However the debtors must use such income for settlement of

their debt obhgations with financial institutions Additionaly the amount elgible for tax exemption

must not exceed the amount of debts owed to financial institutions or the value of contingent liabilities

under loan-guarantee contracts with financial institutions

Amid the current economic downturn many entrepreneurs have felt the pinch which might

result in growing default rates and ktigation cases thereby adversely affecting debtors creditors

guarantors and financial institutions To expedite debt-restructuring procedures and limit losses

arising
from possible economic deterioration such legal measures have been issued and enforced

granting tax incentives for debt restructuring to both debtors and creditors similar to some previous

tax incentives granted and expired during
2005-2006 However these tax incentives would be

kmited to debt restructuring accomplished
within 2009 only



Certain benefs for KBank mclude NPL settlements or wnte-offs through other means than

the normal debt-restructuring procedure
which wiN

help save time and
expenses

in debt

restructunng procedures In addition the Banks financial status will receive some benefs from

greater efficiency in NPL reduction

Permission for Commercial Banks to Conduct Trustee Business

The Bank of Thailand Bol has enforced Notification with reference No SorNorSor

612552 dated Apr 2009 governing ermission for Commercial Banks to Conduct Trustee

Business Eligible commercial banks must have quaifications as specified by
the B0T especially

the
operational

nsk level must be kept at low relatively low or moderate level in accordance with

the latest B0T assessment In addition these commercial banks must seek prior approval by
the

Ministry of Finance according to the Escrow Account Act B.E 2551 2008 By law commercial

banks will be able to act as an intermediary to supervise
debt

payments by
the timelines and

conditions as stated in the trustee contracts Moreover commercial banks shal maintain monies

assets and al debt-obligation documents granted by
the contract parties

under their
custody

which

shaH be ready for transfers of monies ownership right or the right over assets to the contract party

As the BoT had previously granted permission for commercial banks and finance companies

to conduct escrow account business in 2001 and 2003 respectively the authorities have therefore

made greater clarity
in action through circulation of Notification with reference No SorNorSor

1/2552 dated April 2009 governing Permission for Commercial Banks and Finance Companies to

Conduct Deposit Services with Withdrawal Condition The escrow account service has been

redefined as deposit services with withdrawal conditions as instructed by the customers only This

exdudes some other services such as inspection of progress in construction of building structures

or judgment
of whether the contract party meets the withdrawal conditions specified under the

account-opening agreement

Under the above Notification the Bank has formulated
policies

for relevant business

undertakings as per approval by our Board of Directors Meanwhile contract procedures have been

revised and the Escrow Account has been renamed Deposit
Withdrawal Condition in

every

document pertaining to the above business undertakings which aims to prevent any

misunderstanding among customers and draw distinctive lines for different businesses Furthermore

the Bank has applied
for Trustee Service License thus

enabing
the Bank to extend relevant

businesses and services to credit customers in the
property sector both retail customers and some

large property development projects more completely



Contributions to Deposit Protection Fund and the Increase in Deposits under Protection

The
Royal Decree governing

contribution to the Deposit Protection Fund B.E 2552 2009

specities that financial institutions shal submit contributions to the Deposit
Protection Fund at 0.4

percent per annum of the weighted amount of protected deposits
from August 11 2008

In addition the Royal
Decree governing an Increase in Deposit Amounts Eligible

for

Protection B.E 2552 2009 prescribes the deposit amounts covered
during

the first four
years

of

the Deposit Protection Agency Act B.E 2551 2008 as below

Yew Peæod Protected Amuimt OI Protected Amuwit pew

August11 2008- August 10 2009 Ft Amount Full Amount

August11 2009 August 10 2010 BaIl 100 million Full Amount

August 11 2010- August 10 2011 Baht 50 million Full Amount

August 11 2011 August 10 2012 Baht 10 million Ball 50 million

August 11 2012 onward Baht milton Baht milton

Both Royal Decrees shall come into effect from June 16 2009 onwards

As for impact assessment the Bank
expects no material impacts from such law enactments

because during
the first three

years
of legal enforcement the Deposit

Protection Agency stl

provides depositors ful protection for al deposit amounts However there may be changes in

behaviors of depositors or savers who might show
greater

attention to investment and savings

products
In

response
to these possible changes the Bank continues to provide variety

of

investment and saving afternatives both offered by KBank and some Companies for customers

who want to adjust theu saving plans Although the
coverage provided by the Deposit Protection

Agency wil eventualy drop our sound financial strength and corporate image are expected to

contribute to the continued trust among our depositors

1.2 Direction of Business Operaons

In the second quarter of 2009 the KASIKORNBANKGROUP continued to give priority
to

satisfying
the needs of customers by offering complete financial products and services with the aim

of becoming the best service provider Our goal of becoming
solution bank was affmed by our

attention toward providing efficient financial and business knowledge support to customers in all

segments

As part of our customer-centric strategy amid the recent economic slowdown that has

adversely affected domestic investment and consumption we have adopted policy of reducing

housing loan installment payments and also exempted fees on utity payment services for KGroup

customers These proactive measures were implemented with an aim of
minimizing negative impacts

of the economic slowdown on our customers We beheve that such retef measures wil benef



KGroup and the Thai economy in the long run whe any possible
effects on our business operations

wil only be temporary
and minimal

Aside from the above actions the Bank has placed considerable emphasis on preparations

to cope with possible impacts of heightened economic risk by defining appropriate
risk management

guidelines to ensure our readiness and effective
response

toward
any possible changes in KBanks

or customers businesses In addition we continue to provide our customers with financial advisory

services and knowledge on business management in order to facitate their operations and

operational adjustments amid this economic uncertainty On the Banks side we have focused on

credit extension with major industries being classified according to their respective risk levels

High-risk
industries have been

closely monitored whde credit underwriting criteria have been revised

to better reflect customer and economic risks with enhanced debt colection efficiency
and speed

Regarding risks incurred from transactions with foreign counterparties we have reviewed their credit

ratings regularly and enforced proper counterparty Imits in accordance with their assigned credit

ratings

Moreover the Bank continues to place emphasis on corporate governance
activities in

accordance with our corporate governance policy
that meets international standards as wel as the

regulatory
criteria of the Bank of Thaand BoT Stock Exchange of Thailand SE and Securities

and Exchange Commission Thaand SEC In the second
quarter

of 2009 we enhanced our

KASIKORNBANKGROLJP Disclosure Policy to akgn ft with acknowledged best practices and the

Pilar disclosure requirements of the Basel II Capital Accord In addition KBank won the Corporate

Governance Asia Recognition Awards 2009 presented by CorPorate Governance Asia journal due

to our tireless efforts in promoting best practices in corporate governance This award was thus

presented to KBank for the fifth consecutive year



Operanq Performance and Financial Position Analysis

2.1 Operating Performance

Operating Performance for the Second Quarter of 2009

Units MiNion Baht

Q2-2009 Q1-2009 change Q2-2008 iiflqe

Peon BaI Percent tonBa Percent

Income from interest and dividends 13822 15511 1689 10.89 14419 591 4.14

Interest expense 3012 4155 1683 35.39 3980 908 22.81

Net income from interest and dividends 10150 10156 0.06 10439 311 2.98

Baddebtsanddoubifulaccounts 1603 1316 221 16.50 361 1242 344.04

Loss on debt restiuctunng 944 984 40 4.01 1.618 614 41.66

Non-interest income 5959 5611 288 5.08 5380 519 10.16

Non-interest expense 9334 8600 134 8.53 8224 1110 13.50

Income tax expense 1123 1661 544 32.63 1346 223 16.51

Operating profit

Before bad debts and doubtful accounts

loss on debt
restructuring

and income tax

expense 1315 1821 452 5.11 1595 220 2.90

Natince 3105 3800 2.50 4210 56131

The Banks consolidated net income for the second quarter of 2009 totaled Baht 3105 million

decreasing by
Baht 95 mion or 2.50

percent
from Baht 3800 mlbon for the frst

quarter
of 2009

This was largely
due to an over-quarter

increase in non-interest
expense

of Baht 734 mbon or 8.53

percent
due mostly to

expenses
related to the Banks strategic projects Net interest and dividend

income fel slightly by
Baht milion or 0.06

percent
from the previous quarter as resu of

drop

in interest income from loans folowing decline in lending rates during the quarter Meanwhile

interest
expense

also fel led by high-yield fixed-term special deposits that came due Non-interest

income amounted to Baht 5959 mlion rising by
Baht 288 mOon or 5.08

percent over the
previous

quarter
in tandem with Baht 421 mOon increase in fee and service income equivalent to

10.10-percent rise as wel as Baht 112 mlion increase in
gains on investments equivalent to

63.66-percent growth
This resufted in higher ratio of non-interest income to total income of 35.66

percent
in the second

quarter
of 2009 from 34.52 percent in the first quarter of 2009 In addition our

consolidated net interest margins for the second quarter of 2009 equaled 3.82 percent notably

higher than the 3.61
percent

for the first
quarter

of 2009

When compared to the same quarter of 2008 the Banks consolidated net income fell by

Baht 565 mIion or 13.23 percent in
light

of Baht 1110 mOon increase in non-interest expense



Interest and Dividend Income

Loans 11964 60.48 13142 62.04 12401 62.63

1.1 Loans 6881 34.19 1729 36.49 1045 35.58

1.2 Overdrafts 2184 14.01 2803 13.23 2710 13.99

1.3 Bills 2299 11.62 2610 12.32 2586 13.06

Interbank and
money

market items 192 0.91 673 3.18 435 2.20

2.1 Deposits 0.03 0.03 43 0.22

2.2 Loans 181 0.94 668 3.15 392 1.98

Finance leases 513 2.90 609 2.88 443 2.24

Investments 1093 5.52 1081 5.13 1140 5.16

Total Interest and Dividend Income 13822 69.81 15511 13.23 14419 12.83

320 1.62 318 1.50 263 1.33

4335 21.92 3910 18.46 3816 19.51

815 4.42 1129 5.33 1101 5.56

429 2.11 314 1.48 140 0.71

5959 30.13 5611 26.11 5380 27.11

Ti hcome 19181 109.00 21182 109.06 19199 109.00

The Banks consolidated income consists of two main components interest and dividend

income plus non-interest income Duæng the second quarter of 2009 the proportion of interest and

dividend income to total income equaled 69.81 percent
whe the proportion of non-interest income to

total income was 30.13 percent compared to 13.23 percent and 26.11 percent respectively in the

frst quarter
of 2009 and the 12.83 percent and 21.11 percent in the second quarter

of 2008

representing 13.50 percent higher Meanwhe non-interest income as wel as net interest and

dividend income also rose Non-interest income increased by Baht 519 milion or 10.16 percent

due particularly to gains in fee and service income Net interest and dividend income increased by

Baht 311 milion or 2.98
percent

in accordance wfth loan growth

Income Structure

Units Mon Bali

Q22009 Parcel Q1-2009 Percent Q2-2008 Parcel

Stwe Share Share

Non-Interest Income

Fee and service income

1.1 Acceptances avals and guarantees

1.2 Others

Gains on exchan9e

Other income

Total Non-Interest Income



Net Income from Interest and Dividends

The Banks consolidated net interest and dMdend income for the second
quarter

of 2009

totaled Baht 10150 mdlion decreasing slightly by Baht mIion or 0.06 percent from the first

quarter
of 2009 However it had increased Baht 311 mOon or 2.98 percent over the same penod of

2008

Net Income from Interest and Dividends

Units MiNion Bah

Q2-2009 01-2009 Chaige 02-2008 Chap

Income from interest and dividends 13822 15511 1689 14419 591

Loans 11964 13142 1178 12401 437

Interbank and
money

market items 192 673 481 435 243

Finance leases 513 609 36 443 130

Investments 1093 1081 1140 41

Interest expense 3012 4155 1683 3980 908

10751 10.1$ 10439 311

Net interest margin Nff 3.82 3.67 4.12

The Banks consolidated interest and dMdend income for the second quarter of 2009

amounted to Baht 13822 milion dropping by Baht 1689 mdlion or 10.89 percent from the hrst

quarter of 2009 This was mainly
attributable to Baht 1118 mIion decrease in interest income from

loans equivalent to an 8.96-percent fall folowing downward adjustment in lending rates during the

quarter In the same direcon interest expense dropped by Baht 1683 mlion or 35.39 percent in

the wake of Baht 1419 milion decline in interest expense
from

deposits equivalent to

42.02-percent drop along
with decrease in high-yield fixed-term special deposits that came due

Our net interest margins equaled 3.82 percent in the second quarter of 2009 higher than the 3.61

percent in the previous quarter

When compared to the same quarter
of 2008 our consolidated interest and dividend income

rose by
Baht 311 mOon or 2.98

percent owing mainly to more signicant fal in interest
expense

than seen with interest and dividend income folowing the downward adjustments in benchmark

interest rates this
year Apparently

interest
expense dropped by

Baht 908 million or 22.81
percent

due to decline in deposit costs meanwhile interest and dividend income fel by Baht 591 mOon or

4.14 percent As for our net interest margins they dropped by 0.30 percent from the 4.12
percent

seen in the second quarter
of 2008



Non-Interest Income

The Banks consohdated non-interest income for the second quarter of 2009 totaled Baht

5959 muon up by Baht 288 milhon or 5.08
percent over the previous quarter

Of note was Baht

421 mhon increase in fee and service income equivalent to 10.10 percent due primary to higher

fee and service income related to loans as well as to various sales and service channels including

ATMs transfer
payments and bancassurance services Gains on investments also increased by Baht

112 muon or 63.66
percent as consequence of the Banks

profd-taking on bonds amid favorable

market in the second quarter of 2009 However gains on exchange fell by Baht 254 mOon or 22.49

percent folowing drop in derivative transactions along with the economic slowdown

When compared to the same quarter of 2008 our consolidated non-interest income rose by

Baht 519 mIion or 10.16
percent

due
mainly to Baht 516 mOon increase in fee and service

income as wel as Baht 330 mOon increase in gains on investments However gains on exchange

decreased by Baht 226 mOon

Non-Interest Expense

The Banks consolidated non-interest
expense during the second

quarter
of 2009 amounted

to Baht 9334 mOon increasing by Baht 143 mOon or 8.53 percent over the previous quarter This

was mainly attributable to higher expenses
related to the Banks

strategic projects particularly on

the Channel
Expansion and Enhancement Project as wel as higher promotional and pubhc

relations expenditures

When compared to the same quarter of 2008 our consohdated non-interest
expense rose by

Baht 1110 mOon or 13.50
percent due mainly to Baht 315 mdlion increase in premises and

equipment expenses together
with BahI 394 milion rise in

personnel expense in line with our

growing number of staff

Bad Debt and Doubtful Accounts and ross on Debt Restructuæng

For the second
quarter

of 2009 the Bank and subsidiaries set aside alowances for doubtful

accounts and incurred losses on debt restructuring totahng Baht 2541 mOon increasing by Baht

181 mOon
over-quarter

and
by

Bahi 568 milion
over-year

These increases were mainly in
response

to the changing economic environment

10



2.2 Financial Posftion Analysis
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Assets

As of June 30 2009 the Banks consohdated assets totaled Baht 1181143 muon

recording drop
of Baht 30119 mOon or 2.52

percent
from the Baht 1211862 mOon at the end of

March 2009 as well as decrease of Baht 116411 mOon or 8.93 percent from the Baht 1303554

milion at the end of 2008 The over-quarter dechne in our consolidated assets was mainly
due to

decreases in net investments as well as interbank and money market ftems

Net investments at the end of June 2009 equaled
Baht 163751 million faling by Baht

25069 milion or 13.28 percent from the end of March 2009 largely because of

decreases in investments in government and state-enterpnse
bonds

Interbank and money market dems asset at the end of June 2009 amounted to Baht

66172 mOon down by Baht 6606 mOon or 9.00 percent from the end of March 2009

This was as resuft of the Banks hquidity management
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The Banks consolidated loans recorded growth At the end of June 2009 they

amounted to Baht 881648 milhon increasing by
BahI 4506 muon or 0.51 percent

over the Baht 817142 milon reported at the end of March 2009 in tandem with higher

commercial and working capital
loans However our net non-performing loans Net

NPLs ratio to total loans at the end of June 2009 equaled 1.91 percent up compared

to 1.84
percent at the end of March 2009 Simiarty the

gross
NPL ratio to total loans

was at 3.14 percent at the end of June 2009 æsing compared to 3.69 percent at the end

of March 2009

Financial Ratios

Units Percent

nclRiO Jw3029 Mw312009

Net NPLs to Total loans 1.91 1.84

Gross NPLs to Total Loans 3.74 3.69

Uabihties and
Equfty

The consolidated liabities of the Bank at the end of June 2009 totaled Baht 1010519

milion faling by Baht 29128 milion or 2.10
percent

from the Baht 1100241 mlion at the end of

March 2009 Consolidated habibties that had changed significantly relative to the previous quarter

included

Deposits at the end of June 2009 equaled Baht 909025 mlion down by
Baht 5081

mlion or 0.56 percent from the end of March 2009 This was mostly due to fixed-term

deposits that had come due
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Short-term borrowing at the end of June 2009 totaled Baht 36411 mion dropping by

Baht 33929 mhon or 48.23
percent

from the end of March 2009 This was primardy

the result of bls of exchange and short-term debentures coming due

Interbank and money market items iabdity at the end of June 2009 amounted to Baht

31396 mæon up by Baht 18810 mbon or 149.45 percent over the end of March 2009

This was as consequence of
private repurchase borrowing

At the end of June 2009 total consolidated equity amounted to Baht 116624 mlion

decreasing by Baht 991 muon or 0.84 percent from the Baht 111615 milion at the end of March

2009 This decine was the result of the Baht 3590 mAon interim dividend
payouts

in Apr 2009

together
with the Baht 1110 miNion fal in far value of avabble-for-sales investments along with

changing market conditions

ReIaonship Between Sources and Uses of Funds

At the end of June 2009 the funding structure as shown in the Consoldated Financial

Statement comprised
Baht 1010519 mdkon in liabdities and Baht 116624 miNion in

equity resulting

in
debt-to-equity

ratio of 9.18 The major source of funds on the liabthties side was deposits which

equaled Baht 909025 miNion or 16.51 percent of the total Other sources of funds included

interbank and money market items plus borrowing which accounted for 2.64
percent

and 6.15

percent of the total respectively

The Bank and subsidiaries major use of funds was loans At the end of June 2009 loans

totaled Baht 881648 milion resulting in loan-to-deposit ratio of 96.99 percent
As for remaining

hquidity the Bank invested it in various Iquid assets such as interbank and money market items as

well as investments in securities

The major sources and uses of funds as of the end of June 2009 are categorized by

contractual maturity periods
in the folowing

table

The Bank and Subsidiaries Major Source and Use of Funds

Units Million Bahi

Deposits loans

Period .km 302009 Percent Dec 31 2008 Perd JwL 302009 Percent Dec 31 2008 Percent

year 818960 96.69 952210 98.38 508914 51.12 538450 59.56

1-5 years 30065 3.31 15680 1.62 190893 21.65 181841 20.12

years 181841 20.63 183111 2032

Tnt 909025 100.00 961950 1L90 091648 100.00 904008 10L00
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The Bank and subsidiaries deposits wTh
remamuig

maturities of less than or equal to year

at the end of June 2009 totaled Baht 818960 milion decreasing by
Baht 13310 miflion or 1.10

percent from the Baht 952210 mOon at the end of 2008 Deposits with remaming maturities of over

year at the end of June 2009 were Baht 30065 milion increasing by Baht 14385 miMion or 91.14

percent over the Baht 15680 milion at the end of 2008

At the end of June 2009 the Bank and subsidiaries had loans with remaming
maturities of

less than or equal to
year totahng Ball 508914 mOon faing by

Baht 29536 mion or 5.49

percent from the Baht 538450 milion at the end of 2008 Loans with remaining maturities of over

year up to years
amounted to Baht 190893 muon increasing by Baht 9046 mOon or 4.91

percent over the Baht 181841 mOon at the end of 2008 In addition loans with remaining maturities

of over years equaled Baht 181841 mOon decreasing by Baht 1810 miUion or 1.02 percent
from

the Baht 183111 milion at the end of 2008

From the preceding table it can be seen that as of June 30 2009 deposits with remaining

maturities of less than or equal to year were larger than loans with remaining maturities of less than

or equal to year
This is considered normal for commercial banks in Thaand as they normally fund

their lending or investments in
long-term

assets from short-term labilities However since most

deposits are renewed upon maturity it is considered kkely that they wiN remain with the Bank longer

than their stated contractual term thereby helping to support funding for the Banks
lending

In order to promote greater Ilexibikty and variety
in the Banks funding structure as wel as to

provide more ahematives in investments for the pubhc and the Banks depositors the Bank has

issued bills of exchange targeting
both private individual and business customers per the BoTs

permission for commercial banks to offer biNs of exchange borrowing money from the private sector

As of June 30 2009 our outstanding BIEs totaled Baht 38039 mOon

2.3 Capital Requirements and Credit Ratings

Capital
Funds

As of June 30 2009 the Bank had capital funds of Baht 141839 milion comprising Baht

96566 miNion in Tier-i capital and Baht 51273 milhon in Tier-2 capital The capital adequacy ratio of

the Bank was 15.91
percent significantly

above the BoTs minimum requirement of 8.50
percent

Details of the capital adequacy ratio of the Bank are shown in the blowing table
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Capital Adequacy Raho

Units Percent

Dec.3i Jim.30

2009 2008 2008

Tier-i Capital Raho 10.39 10.11 9.84 10.16 10.33

Tier-2 Capital RaDo 5.52 5.46 5.21 3.68 4.01

Note These raUos do not include the net profits of each accounling period According to Bol regulaDons the net
profit

of the

first haft of the
year

shall be included in the insMulions
capital

after approval by the Banks Board of Directors The net

profit
for the second haff of the

year
shall be included in that

capital
after approval by General Meehng of

Shareholders However there is net loss the loss must be deducted from
capital immediately

Based on the nsk assets of the Bank From December 2008 onwards the Bank has begun to maintain
regulatoly

capital by adopng the Standardized Approach SA in accordance with the BoTs Basel II

principle
As for the

capital

funds before that lime the calculaHon was based on the nsk assets of the Bank and our AMC

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Including the net prof of each
accounting penod

Units Percent

De Sep30 J30
2009 2009 2008 2008 2008

Tier-i Capital Rao 11.08 11.29 10.53 11.20 11.34

Tier-2 Capital Ralio 5.52 5.45 5.21 3.68 4.01

1174 i5.i4 14.08 15.35

Note Based on the nsk assets of the Bank From December 2008 onwards the Bank has begun to maintain
regulatory

capital by adopUng the Standardized Approach SA in accordance with the BaTs Basel II

principle
As for the capital

funds before that time the calculaDon was based on the nsk assets of the Bank and our AMC

Maintenance of Ratios

The Bank maintains liquid assets on average of at least 6.00
percent

of deposits and

certain borrowing in comphance with BoT regulations As of June 30 2009 the Bank had cash in

hand cash at central cash centers deposits at BoT and ehgible securities totaling Baht 192429

mlion

Credit Ratings

At the end of June 2009 the Banks credit
rating given by Moodys Investors Service

Standard Poos and Fitch Ratings had remained unchanged from the end of March 2009 and the

2008 year-end Details are shown in the following table
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KASIKORNBANWs Cred
Raffngs

çMRngAgnncy Jwe 30 2009

Moodys Investors Service

Foreign Currency

Outlook
Negative

Long-term Debt n.a

-Deposit Baal

Shoit-tenn Debt/Deposit P-2

Subordinated Debt Baal

Bank Financial Strength Rating BFSR

Outlook for BFSR Stable

Domestic Currency

Outlook Stable

Long-term Deposit A3

Short-term Debt/Deposit P-i

Standad Poors

Outlook Stable

Long-term Debt/Certificate of Deposit BBB

Short-term Debt/Certificate of Deposit A-2

Subordinated Debt Foreign Currency BBB

Bank Fundamental Strength Rating BFSR Local Currency

Fitch Ratings

International Cre iRaiings Foreign Currenc

Outlook
Negative

Long-term Issuer Defauft Rating BBB

Short-term Issuer Default Rating F2

Subordinated Debt BBB

Individual

Support

National Credit Ratings

Outlook Stable

Long-term AAtha

Short-term F1tha

Subordinated Debt AA-tha

Note Moodys Investors Service does not assign ratings
to the Banks

long-temi
debt

The base levels for investment grade on long-term credit ratings for Moodys Investors Service Standard Poors

and Fitch
Ratings are Baa3 BBB- and BBB- respectively For short-term credit

ratings
the base levels for

investment grade as viewed by these three agencies are P-3 A-3 and F3 respectively
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Operaons of Core Businesses

3.1 Business Overview

In the second quarter of 2009 our business continued to be affected by the global economic

recession Although certain economic sectors have seen si9ns of
recovery following the

governments stimulus efforts such as manufacturing which has been recently iniproving with

increases in purchase orders and international trade transactions that have become increasingly

stable other negative risk factors remain They include uncertainty
about the strength of the global

economic
recovery

Local pohtical uncertainty
has not been clearly settled while the pandemic of

influenza H1N1 has become threat to private business confidence and consumption
Given

these threats it is of the utmost necessity for the domestic commercial banking business to maintain

sound risk management The Bank in this
regard

has placed considerable emphasis on customers

with high recovery potential
This not only helps maintain the Banks competitiveness

but also

provides
effective assistance for customers businesses and responds more completely to the

financial needs of customers in each segment

In addition to credit support and financial services for our corporate
business customers we

have set up learning center and arranged
seminars for our SME customers Meanwhile in order to

lessen the impacts of the economic crisis we have reduced housing loan instalment payments
and

waived
utility payment fees for our individual customers All in all KASIKORNBANK has adjusted our

competition
and marketing strategies mainly in the dimensions of customers product domains and

distribution channels to be consistent with the changing economic and business environments

during the second quarter
of 2009 To summarize

3.2 Customer Segments

Multi-Corporate Business

Amid the improving economic situation during
the second

quarter
of 2009 albeit

with some lingering concerns the Bank has continued to provide support to our customers

by introducing products and services created through synergies
between KGroup business

units We also arranged many beneficial activities to enhance customers business potential

such as seminars to equip them with knowledge on the economy and use of risk

management tools These activities have strengthened our relationships with our current

customers In addition we organized KBank Exclusive Thank You Dinners as token of

appreciation to our customers for thef trust and business partnerships

Large Corporate Business

Knowledge-based
activities were organized for our customers during the second

quarter
of 2009 amid the lingering economic uncertainty Of note were the KBank
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Executive Business Talk forums offering chance for our Large Corporate Business

customers and KGroup executives to share ther opinions and information about the

economy industnal conditions and other issues related to their business operations
These

forums were held to beneffi customers toward their business
decision-making

and thus lead

to their future success In addition to these efforts we launched many other activities to

strengthen our relationships with and support our Large Corporate Business customers

such as visits
by

KBank executives to customers companies Aside from ongoing studies of

customers demands regarding business and financial needs in each industry we have

developed the potential
of our relationship managers RM by enhancing their knowledge

and skils so that they bare better capabihty to advise our customers more effectively

Medium Business

The Bank in the second quarter
of 2009 developed

various credit products and

new promotional activities In our credit products the Bank introduced Tech Development

Fund for
Biogas loan tacky targeting

Medium Business customers mainly those in

agro-processing and food processing factories The fund wil alocate financial supports for

installation of wastewater treatment systems at special interest rates when meeting specified

conditions As for sales promotions in order to enhance efficient adjustments of our

customers business strategies given the existing economic climate we continued to

arrange seminars to equip our customers with knowledge
of quidity management and

international trade in parallel with the offering of special products and services to those in

the Bangkok Metropotan area The same products and services were also made available

to our foreign customers from Japan Korea and China receiving overwhelming response

from them

Small and Micro Business

In order to serve the Smal and Micro Business segment more effectively
and

completely the Bank in the second quarter
of 2009 introduced several new products They

were the K-SME BizCard offering loans and payment services via credit cards with
special

conditions K-Insured-Export Credit being kquidity
enhancement tool and complete

assistance for
exporters and K-SME Slail-up Solution providing funding support

and

financial services for business startups
In addition we launched sales promotions for

deposit products
in order to expand our Small and Micro Business customer base while

seminars were arranged to provide them with useful information toward their business

operations These seminars were organized in
every region

for
general

and specific groups

of customers providing opportunities
for our sales team to offer credit products that best ffi

the needs of
community

SME
entrepreneurs

These events received impressive interest as
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evidenced by the participation
of over thousand attendees We successfuly acquired new

customers to use our products
and services at KBank branches and achieved greater

recognition for the SME brand among community
business customers

Signature Segment

Determined to become leader in the high-end consumer market
segment

and to

maintain the highest levels of service satisfaction we have developed strategies to

strengthen new and
existing customer base through

the
upgrade

of
potential middle-income

customers into the Signature segment To achieve this objective various KGroup financial

and investment products and services were offered with privieges and promotional

campaigns specialy
catered for the

target group inckiding
medical services personnel car

dealers SME entrepreneurs and other potential customers suggested by branch officers

Middle Income Segment

To attain our objective of increasing the number of customers sales and assets

under the management of Middle Income
segment particularly the customers with

promising growth potential along
with

being
chosen as customers main

operating bank

we have sought to ensure ther highest satisfaction This has been achieved through the

launch of various marketing activities aimed at recommending products and services of

KGroup that best the diverse needs of customers Furthermore the Bank has roled out

these marketing activities to cover both business proprietors and employees in
high-potential

industries Meanwhe we have emphasized our leadership in hnancial and investment

planning advisory services by providing our customers with complete nancial advice and

information by our professional advisors in the ninth Money Expo 2009 held on May 1-10

2009 With these efforts KBank won the Best Retad Bank 2009 award and other marks of

recognition
for two consecutive

years

Mass Segment

The Bank has adhered to our goal of becoming the main operating bank for

customers in the Mass segment especially those with potential to move up
to the Middle

Income segment in the future During the second quarter of 2009 many marketing activities

were launched to introduce our numerous electronic channels and mobie
banking

services

to these customers especially students in universities and campuses where KBank

branches are located as well as to increase their transaction volume through these channels

Marketing activities of note included priveges offered to new depositors who also
applied

for debit cards and to K-MOBILE BANKING appkcants who used our mobile top-up services

To serve as an aflernative service for all customers particularly those of the new generation

we introduced K-My Debit Card which alows customers to freely personalize their debit
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cards Meanwhile we continue to effectively manage our operating costs in serving the Mass

segment

3.3 Product Groups and Sales and Service Channels

3.3.1 Product Groups

In addition to the launch of major sales promotional programs and public relations activities

the Bank in the second quarter of 2009 continued to develop
and offer new products

and services

as folows

Domestic Credit New Products and Services

Product and Tech
Development

Fund for
Biogas was introduced as long-term financing scheme with

Letters of

special low interest rates and specified conditions for the instalation of wastewater

lndemndy-
treatment and Anaerobic Fixed Fm Reactor AFFR technology for biogas production

Borrowing
The loan has been

jointly developed by the Bank and the National Science and

Technology Development Agency NSTDA

PN controled-disbursement product was launched as short-term credit me to support

demand for working capital loans with underlying domestic transactions The Bank on

behaft of our loan customers would make funds transfers directly to their trading partners

for payment of goods
and services This service not only provides our customers greater

convenience but also helps minimize the risk of misuse of loans

K-SME Start-up Solutions was offered to our business customers particularly in the Smal

and Micro Business segment that are in the initial stages
of estabmshing business with

business experience of less than three
years

In addition to financial support these

solutions offer
payment

and knowledge-based services for the highest customer

convenience The provided financial support comprises two loan facities Day-to-Day

Credit featuring an OlD loan with personal guarantee
with maximum overdraft OlD

kmd of Baht 300000 and Grow-up Credit which is an OlD letter of indemnity or loan

facity under an aggregate
Imit of

up to Baht 1000000 per borrower with the use of

assets as colateral
against

loan under the estabhshed conditions

Trade Finance New Products and Services

K-Insured-Export
Credit To

provide complete
financial solution to our export customers

amid the global economic slowdown that has adversely
affected demand for Thaiands

export products and heightened counterparty nsks thus resuNing in possible hquidity

shortage among local exporters
the Bank in cooperation with the Export-Import Bank

of Thaand EXIM Bank launched K-lnsured.Expoit Credit This new credit product

20



features the use of an export
insurance policy issued by EXIM Bank with ful

export
value

coverage against payment defaufts of foreign trading partners EXiMSurance for loan

application with KBank with no additional colateral required

dnc Dvpment and Snivic nhancnmnnt

Trade Service SEA-time
guarantee

Service delivery within
guaranteed time penod

under service level agreement SEA standard was offered to customers at our

International Trade Service Offices ensuring our timely and efficient response

Cash Management New Products arid Services

K-Cheque Direct offers cheque issuance services for bl payments according to the

instructions of the Electricity Generating Authority of Thaand EGAT In deta EGAT

sends the cheque issuance instructions to KBank via our K-Cash Connect service Then

cheques are delivered to three different parties including beneficiaries that contact the

Bank directly or through registered mais as wel as the central and regional offices of

EGAT In addition the Bank also added cheque pay points to accommodate

beneficiaries in our upcountry branches whe cheque payment
services to EGATs

trading partners in local area were also offered for EGATs
greater convenience

Major Sales Promotional
Proqrams

and Public Relatknis ActMties

Sales promotions for cheque colection in
upcountry areas Special privdeges were

offered to our target customers especialy
SMEs Provided

priveges were for instance

an offer of cash back into customer accounts when monthly fees charged from cheque

deposits for the Banks provincial cheque colection services meet the specthed limits and

conditions So
doing was aimed at encouraging more frequent uses of cheque deposits

________________
among existing and new customers

Securities Services Product Development and Service Enhancements

Fund accounting service After introducing this fund accounting service to the Banks

customers in February 2009 in the second quarter of 2009 we expanded service

coverage
to wider

range
of customers including insurance companies and other junstic

persons
that manage investment portfolio by themselves In fact enhancements on this

service have been made in accordance with customer requests to cover both custodial

and fund
accounting services in addition to our prior

focus
only on fund accounting

services for asset management companies that prefer to outsource their back office tasks

to thrd
party

These asset management companies believe that
outsourcing

this back

office work such as data storing reporting of fund performance and other information

is more cost-efficient especialy in
light

of fast-growing business opportunities or their
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preferences to focus solely on investment management responsibthty

Custodial services The Bank has miproved our custodial services to better meet the

needs of our insurance company customers In addition to our conventional custodial

services monthly reports on reserved assets of insurance firms have been
developed

for

submission to the Office of Insurance Commission OIC whe asset appraisal services in

akgnment
with law and

regLiatory framework have been offered to insurance firms who

are interested in our services

Mutual fund supervisory services and registrar services on unit trusts government
bonds

and debentures As such services have received
overwhelming response

from chents

especialy asset management companies who have launched several new mutual funds

particularly foreign investment funds investing in South Korean debt instruments the Bank

has therefore
improved our service

quabty accuracy
and

speed through
enhancement of

staff and operating system efficiency

Bancassurance Competion and Operahonal Strategy Adjustments

Selection of core products for market expansion Amid the slowing demand for loans due

to the economic downturn the Bank has thus placed emphasis on both new and existing

customers focus has been paid on Ife insurance with savings plans and
group

insurance

products in addition to PERFECT Business Smart our core product for loan protection

Product Development and Service Enhancements

Personnel development To enhance our market expansion capabities we have placed

emphasis on personnel development through training programs
for our marketing teams

i.e sales
techniques

for
existing customers colateral acceptance-related regulations

and procedures to ensure faster service delvery in addition to knowledge of products

Corporate Finance Product Deveopment and Service Enhancements

Sales of new products product of note was the Reverse Switcher Note which offers

yields varying upon
different maturities of the note Fixed interest rates are offered in the

initial phase before providing floating rates thereafter This product offers the Bank or

investors an option to switch from the fixed interest rate to the floating regime Also the

Bul Rich Note was introduced to investors with fixed returns during the first two years

and possible higher returns in the subsequent years
the benchmark interest rates

exceed the target

Risk Management Product Development and Service Enhancements

Products Risk management products
for

foreign exchange interest rate and commodity price risks

For foreign exchange risk management products the Bank continues to offer suitable
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products meeting the needs of customers However demand for these foreign exchange

risk management products from both importers and exporters eased in the second

quarter of 2009 due to reduced international trade transactions plagued by
the

global

economic slowdown For the same reason demand for new risk management products

hke options also slowed For interest rate risk management products however growing

demand for interest rate swap products
for fixed-term interest rate payments

has been

seen as customers expect
that interest rates might have bottomed out after the Monetary

Pocy Committee of the BoT resolved to hold the polcy rate at then meeting on May 20

2009 coupled with rising inflation concern in hght
of

higher
od and

commodity prices

Meanwtie consumers with
exposure to commodity prices

have continued to show

significantly higher demand for our risk management products to hedge against possible

hikes in commodity prices especialy energy
and base metals In addition the Bank has

conducted
high

transaction volume of
cross-currency swap products especialy asset

swap to hedge against volatilty in foreign exchange and interest rates on their investment

in foreign securities

However the Bank recorded lower fee-based income from our risk management

products in the second quarter of 2009 especialy foreign exchange risk management

products
consistent with the deckne in the countrys international trade transactions

SME Care Product Development and Service Enhancements

Business operations under the SME Care
program in the second quarter

of 2009 can

be summarized as blows

Training course arrangements
under the Sustainable Management Enhancement

Program for SME Entrepreneurs The Bank organized three more training courses for

SMEs under this program By the end of the second quarter of 2009 two classes totahng

1132 participants
had

completed
the program

Supporting Activities of SME Care Network Club Since the estabishment of the SME

Care Network Club in 2008 we have organized various activities for SME proprietors

particularly those that have completed our training programs with an aim to strengthen

their business networks Activities of note were special seminars and mangrove

reforestation

Development of www.ksmecare.com social networking system has been added to the

website to ensure the highest efficiency in communications among members whereas the

onhne business matching system has been upgraded
for

greater capabity

SME Care Knowledge Center Since its launch in the first quarter of 2009 the center in
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colaboration with both public and private business aLes has arranged various activities

such as seminars workshops advisory
services for specific businesses business

matching as wel as providing knowledge of KBank financial products
for customers

recent customer satisfaction
survey

showed that more than 90
percent

of customers were

satisfied with the services offered at the center thereby persuading other customers to

use our services As result there are now more than 4400 members of the SME Care

________________
Knowledge Center

Consumer Loans New Products and Services

K-Personal Loan for Welfare is product under K-Salary Benefs aiming at providing

credit lines of
up to Baht 300000 to customers with special low interest rate of 16

percent p.a

Amway-KBank Personal Loan for Better Life is product
under K-Salary Benefs jointly

developed by the Bank and Amway Thaand featuring personal loan product
with

special low interest rates for Amway business owners and members who are KBank

customers and purchase Amway products at their outlets across the
country

Competion and Operational Strategy Adjustments

Customer assistance measures As part of our effort to ease the financial burdens of our

customers and respond to the governments policy of providing
relief measures to the

general public amid the current economic difficulties the Bank has introduced the

K-Home Loan Instalment Payment Reduction Program speciticaly catered to our

K-Home Loan customers with combined loan limits of
up

to Baht mllion Eligible

customers could get up to 40-percent reduction in monthly instalment payments for

maximum period
of one year

from July 2009 unti June 2010

Marketing strategy adjustments In order to maintain our market share amid the
tough

market competition we have joined
hands with our business alies who are property

development
firms to actely organize complete marketing and promotional

activities

Expansion of our customer base into upcountry areas has also progressed especialy in

the North and the Northeast in addition to other marketing activities for Home Smes

Club members

Due to our endeavors in product and service development as wel as competition

strategy adjustment and ongoing marketing activities our home loans during the first half of

this
year

exceeded the target

Credit Cards New Products and SeMces

AirAsia-KBank Credit Card was launched on May 28 2009 This card incorporates
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Deposits
and Fee-

based Income

benefits offered by Thai PJrAsia K-Credit Card and Visa for the maximum privieges of

cardholders

K-SME BizCard was developed and introduced durNig the second quarter of 2009

targeting SME customers with credit hnes at the Bank Cardholders are entitled to

myriad of benefits on par with those offered to KBank Platinum credit cardholders

coupled with other prMeges including hfe insurance and personal accident
coverage

In

addition K-SME BizCard holders receive offers to join seminars workshops and advisory

services from our speciahsts at the SME Care
Knowledge

Center

Competion and Operational Strategy Adjustments

Marketing activity arrangement
To

spur credit card spending especialy via KBank

Platinum credit cards the Bank organized variety
of special marketing campaigns

related to mieage redemption spending in department stores and also monthly

instalment
payments through

the Smart
Pay program In addition marketing campaigns

to promote
domestic travels were arranged

in the wn-up to the high touæsm season in the

second quarter of 2009 With our ongoing efforts toward the arrangement of marketing

activities since
early 2009 credit card

spending
and the volume of K-Credit Card

recorded higher growth over the previous year outperforming the market Despite such

aggressive marketing activities the Bank continued to put an emphasis on preventing

loan dehnquency

Product Development and Service Enhancements

Expansion of card-accepting merchant services We have continued to approach

prospective merchants for JCB card
acceptance

in order to broaden our JCB card

service network thus putting the total at around 1500 outlets

New Products and Services

Happy Senior Fixed Deposit is earmarked for depositors aged 55 and higher offering an

interest rate equal to 24-month fixed-term account the lowest
range

of indMdual

customer deposits plus 0.15 percent p.a Depositors would get monthly tax-free interest

payment and also be entitled to personal
accident

coverage
and medical expenses This

is to better respond to demands of
target

cents and create differentiation from
peers

K-My Debit Card is new debit card product of the Bank alowing
cardholders to

personaize their own debit cards

K-Max Debit Card is another new debit card with maximum
priveges

for cardholders

using the card in their financial transactions and card spending in addition to personal

accident coverage Its privieges specihcaly cater to the Ifestyles and needs of the
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target group which is the
younger generation

Competion and Operational Strategy Adjustments

Customer assistance measures Amid the current economic slowdown we announced

exemption
from bl payment fees for customers at al KBank service channels for basic

utities such as water electricity and fixed-me telephone service effective from June

15 2009 to June 30 2010

Operational strategy adjustments to cope with economic risks In
doing so the Bank has

placed emphasis on sales promotions among non-price sensitive dents in addition to the

shortening of the time span
of our marketing promotional programs or special interest

rates offered to customers by taking into account possible changes in interest rate

drection as wel as our deposit costs

Major Sales Promotional Programs and Public Relations Activities

Sales promotional activities for reta customers were launched between May 15 and July

31 2009 offering special priveges to existing KBank deposit customers who have

persuaded new appkcants to open Taweesup Special Fixed Deposit or Ready-to-use

Time
Deposit products Meanwhe marketing promotional

activities were organized

between Apil and May 31 2009 to
spur

bdl payment via K-ATM by granting cash back

to accounts that met the estabhshed conditions

The SME Account
program

was launched offering various benefs to new deposit

customers who use our savings
and current deposit accounts meeting the estabhshed

conditions This
program

aimed at expanding coverage
of the customer base to Smal

and Micro Business customers whe encouraging
them to use KBank as their main

________________
operating

bank

Mutual Fund New Products and Services

Business New mutual fund issuances In the second quarter
of 2009 the Bank in cooperation with

KAsset issued total of 18 new fixed-income funds investing in South Korean

government bonds as wel as bonds and debentures of
Italy

and Austraka Al these

funds have been fuly hedged against foreign exchange rate risks

Major Sales Promotional Programs and Public Relations Activities

Sales promotional programs The Bank has organized many sales promotional programs

to
encourage

additional investment in money market funds and LTFs As resuk assets

under management AUM of KAsset recorded the highest increase in the mutual fund

industry During
the first half of 2009 their net asset value NAV grew 36.42 percent over

the end of the previous year against the market growth of 13.25 percent

26



Bancassurance Nw ro1it and Services

Pro Education A22/Al featuring life insurance product with savings plan
for the

education of policyholders chdren Cash redemption wl occur when the chidren are

aged 5-22 for educational expenses at high schools and universities

Pro Retirement A85/A55 which offers annual pension payments starting when the insured

reaches the
age

of 55 continuing unti age 85 Total cash benefs
equal to 100

percent

together with life protection coverage
of 600

percent
of the sum insured from the tenth

policy year
onwards

Competiton and Operattonat Strategy Adjustments

Operational strategy adjustments to
cope

with economic risks Even though life insurance

products continue to provide higher returns compared to deposit rates of commercial

banks customers especialy
the

high-end segment have been reluctant to apply for the

service amid the uncertain economic environment To cope with the situation and retain

our competitiveness we have adjusted our strategies
via the launch of ahernative

products such as insurance policies
with one-time premium payments

that offer more

attractive returns than conventional savings products plus tax benefs This product is in

addition to the most sought-after policies with short-term
savings plans

3.3.2 Sales and Service Channels

In the second quarter of 2009 we continued to expand and improve our sales and service

channels as follows

Branch Network

In the second quarter of 2009 the Bank opened thirty-three new branches
evenly

distributed

in the metropolitan and upcountry areas to ensure thorough services to customers bringing the total

to 721 branches nationwide Our branches have been designed to match different target customers

and their needs at each location

Foreign Exchange Booths

The Bank as of the end of the second
quarter

of 2009 had total of eighty-five foreign

exchange booths mainly
located at major tourist attractions upcountry Meanwhile eight mobile

booths were put
into service for use at trade fairs and other events further enhancing customers

convenience
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International Trade Service Offices

At the end of the second quarter of 2009 the Bank had total of fifty-seven International

Trade Service Offices In the second ha of 2009 the Bank
plans to open two more new International

Trade Service Offices brining the total to fty-nine offices nationwide

Cheque Direct Service Offices

At the end of the second
quarter

of 2009 the Bank had total of
twenty-one Cheque Direct

Service Offices compared to the fourteen offices recorded at the end of the first
quarter

of 2009

Corporate Business Centers

At the end of the second
quarter

of 2009 the Bank had fourteen Corporate Business

Centers up from the twelve centers registered at the end of the first quarter of 2009

SME Business Centers

At the end of the second
quarter

of 2009 SME Business Centers were in total of 168

locations nationwide comprising seventy-one
centers for the Medium Business segment and

ninety-seven centers for the Smal and Micro Business segment

K-Contact Center

In order to accommodate business expansion within KGroup and with our preferred

partners the Bank has introduced new services and enhanced the service potential of our K-Contact

Center Al of our efforts are made with the aim of providing customers
greater convenience fulfihng

their financial needs more responsively and completely

Service Development The Bank has
organized ten marketing promotional programs

for

our target customers invoMng product recommendation and advisory services as wel

as relationship-based telesales such as K-Smart Bhng and K-CAR to CASH

products In addition the telesales apphcation system has been upgraded to enhance

the K-Contact Centers capabky as center of appication for KGroup products and

services i.e K-Credit Card thus
helping customers save travel expenses and time

compared to going to Bank branch The service also includes
storage

of customers

documents
Along with this we have continued with our Customer On-Boarding

program aimed at
providing

advice on our products
and

encouraging customer

spending in addition to accepting their suggestions Apparently the number of
target

customers
applying

for our services was 34.43
percent

of total contacted customers

which was higher than in the first
quarter

of 2009

Service Ouaty and Efficiency Development To enhance our service capabthty to cope

with an increasing number of customer contacts we continued to upgrade our

Interactive Voice
Response IVR system This has led to 46.33-percent increase in

speed of IVR transactions for ten types of services especialy balance inquiry fund
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transfer bi payment tax payment to the Revenue Department as wel as K-Credit Card

payment With emphasis being placed on maintenance of the standard and quahty of

sales and senAces the Bank has organized personnel training
to equip them with

advisory or soft sales techniques recent survey
showed that the customer

satisfaction rate was 96.20
percent skghtly higher than in the first quarter

of 2009

Electronic Banking Services

Our electronic banking
services are provided through four main channels inckiding

K-ATM K-CDM and K-PUM

1.1 K-ATM5

As of the end of the second quarter of 2009 the number of the Banks ATMs came to

5815 units up
from 5591 units at the end of the first quarter

of 2009

1.2 K-CDMs

The Banks Cash Deposit Machines as of the second quarter of 2009 totaled 842

units up
from 169 units at the end of the first

quarter
of 2009

1.3 K-PUMs

The Banks Passbook Update Machines as of the second quarter
of 2009 totaled 799

units up
from 753 units at the end of the first quarter of 2009

Internet Banking

2.1 K-Cyber Banking

By the end of the second quarter of 2009 the number of individual customers using
the

Banks K-Cyber Banking service had increased 11.13
percent over the end of the first

quarter
of

2009 Meanwhie the Bank
organized various marketing activities through

booths at the Money

Expo and other tourist-attraction events to offer and accept apphcations for our K-Cyber Banking

service Also we have upgraded
the scheduled transactions feature of the K-Cyber Banking

system to ensure higher efficiency in handhng greater
transaction volume as wel as resuk

processing
and transaction schedung In addition database recording procedures were

improved to better accommodate reviews of
past

transaction data in faster and more

convenient manner

2.2 K-BizNet

The number of customers using our K-BizNet service for smal businesses as of the end

of the second quarter
of 2009 had risen 4.91 percent over the end of the first

quarter
of 2009

K-MOBILE BANKING

In Ight of the introduction of the K-MOBILE BANKING service among KGroup staff in the

fast quarter of 2009 the Bank roled out promotional campaigns
for this service to KBank branches
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universities the Money Expo and other tourist-attraction events with exclusive privieges that meet

customers needs Other sub-segment products under the K-MOBILE BANKING product
have also

been developed during the second quarter of 2009 In summary

3.1 K-MOBILE BANKING ATM SIM previously ATM SIM

We developed the system to accommodate alerts for electric bdl payments via

K-MOBILE BANKING ATM SIM which was put into service in May 2009 Meanwhe service

function was added enabing customers to print out reference documents related to money transfers

or bl
payments

via K-MOBILE BANKING ATM SIM from www.kasikombank.com The service has

been offered since June 2009

3.2 K-MOBILE BANKING PLUS

In addition to the
development

of our website to accommodate the printing out of

reference documents related to money transfers and bI payments via K-MOBILE BANKING PLUS

simar to K-MOBILE BANKING ATM SIM the Bank has improved the systems efficiency to ensure

increased avaabity and reiabity

KPaynieniGateway

In the second quarter of 2009 KASIKORNBANK in cooperation with Amway thailand

launched an fiR
system for Amway bil payments With this technology the first of its kind in Thailand

KBank has come to the forefront as complete payment service provider
This service achievement

enables us to provide complete convenience and enhanced security of payment services to both

Amway business owners and members The Bank also plans to extend this service to other

businesses In addition we have developed credit card
payment

via the fiR system as an added

service channel for customers which at the same time helps us to accommodate wider variety of

businesses An online refund system has also been launched to provide greater convenience to

participating
merchants As

part
of our pubic relations activities the Bank

joining
hands with the

Thailand Productivity Institute and the SME Care program
set

up
booth to introduce and

promote K-Payment Gateway as well as organizing seminars to provide knowledge
of e-financial

transaction management innovations to our business customers

In
recognition

of our ongoing
efforts to develop our core businesses in every dinension we

have been widely honored with many prestigious awards and other marks of recognition during the

second quarter of 2009 They include

Best Cash Management Bank Best Trade Finance Bank and Best Bond House for

2009 under the Country Awards for Achievement 2009 program organized by

FinanceAsia magazine
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Best Domestic Providers for Local Currency Products and Interest Rate Products as

wel as Best Debt House for 2009 from AsL Money magazine

Best Bond House Thaan Best Cash Liquidity Management Bank Thaand as

wel as Best Private Weafth Management House Thadand under the third Annual Best

Financial Institution Awards in Southeast Asia program organized by Alpha South East

Asia magazine KBank won the highest numbers of awards in Thaand under this

program

Best Reta Bank 2009 in the Money Expo 2009 on May 1-10 2009 at the Queen Sirikit

National Convention Center in recognition of the Banks services being most sought-

after by participants The Bank also won the Most Attractive Booth Award in the
large-

space category of the event and the Most Attractive Booth Award in the creativity

category

KAsset among the KGroup companies was also honored with some prestigious awards Of

note was

Trusted Brand 2009 Gold Winner in the Investment Fund Company category
voted

by

readers of Readers Digest magazine in Thaiand for the second consecutive
year

KAsset was the only asset management company to win this award in 2009

3.4 Financial Posftion

KASIKORNBANKs Loans and Deposfts

KASIKORNBANKs Loans Classified
by

Business and Product Groups

Units Million BahU

Jun 30 2009 Mar 31 2009

Corporate SME Rated Corporate SME Rated

Business Business Business Business Business Business

Loans 269450 341184 145809 282191 335938 142146

Domestic credit loans 201059 321838 215326 316281

Trade finance loans 60928 19946 66009 19651

BIBF loans 1463 1462

Housing loans 116209 114021

Credit card loans 20041 19543

Consumer loans 9559 9182
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Regarding the Banks loans classified by business and product groups Corporate Business

loans totaled Baht 269450 muon at the end of June 2009 down by Baht 13341 muon

representing 4.12-percent contraction This decine in Corporate Business loans was mainly from

domestic credits particularly
in the commerce automotive and auto-parts as wel as construction

material industries Meanwhe SME Business loans showed an increase of Baht 5846 mOon to Baht

341184 mOon from the Baht 335938 mOon at the end of March 2009 equivalent to 1.14-percent

growth This was experienced largely in domestic credit to the
leasing

hotels and restaurants utlity

and chemical product industries In the meantime gains in Reta Business loans totaled Baht 3063

mOon to Baht 145809 mOon from Baht 142146 mOon at the end of March 2009 representing

2.15-percent growth due mainly to rise in housing loans

KASIKORNBANKs Deposits

Units Million Bahi

As of June 30 2009 total
deposits comprising deposits of our Corporate SME and Reta

Business customers amounted to Baht 909615 mOon faling by Baht 5384 mOon or 0.59 percent

compared to the Baht 915059 mOon seen at the end of March 2009 This was mainly attributed to

decreases in fixed-term deposit accounts that came due where we introduced other
high-yield

investment afternatives to these customers In the meantime savings and current deposit accounts

increased

Operating Performance of Companies

Operating
Performance of Companies

Units MiOion Bahfl

ti
KFactonng Outstanding Loans 4526 4663

KLeasing Outstanding Loans 38468 33814

KAsset Assets Under Management AU 465649 352644

Market Share Percent 20.40 16.50

KSecuriiies
Trading Volume 15806 116660

Market Share PercenO 2.10 1.41

Note KResearch is not included as the company does not engage in financial business

il Deposits

Current accounts 6.03

Savings accounts 55.02

Fixed-term deposit accounts 38.95

500530

354292

6508

62151

428341 14049

14.18

11.29
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Regarding the operating performance of Companies that incorporates related financial

services and provides
loan facities to customers dunng the first haH of 2009 KFactoring

recorded

shght
decrease in credit extension from 2008 whie KLeasing

showed loan
growth

of 13.56
percent

In
response

to changing economic circumstances both KFactoring and KLeasing continue to adhere

to efficient risk management and effective control of their loan quaty in accordance with the same

risk appetite and standards apphed by the Bank

Meanwhe KAsset at the end of June 2009 had reakzed 32.04-percent growth in their

assets under management AUM over the end of 2008 The companys AUM market share has thus

achieved the first place at 20.40 percent of the market increasmg over 2008
Significant

performance improvements continued at KSecurities The companys market share in the securities

brokerage business jumped to 20th
place

from 26th place in 2008 whe in their corporate finance

business emphasis
continued to be placed upon strong coordination with the Bank aimed at

providing complete financial solutions to meet the needs of customers It is
expected

that KSecurilies

in the latter ha of 2009 wl enjoy impressive revenue from advisory services toward
mergers

and

acquisitions

Besides the aforementioned efforts KBank and Companies have
synergized our business

strategy
both in business and operational dimensions with the shared goal of promoting the strength

of the KGroup business network and meeting the diverse needs of customers more completely

3.5 Treasury Operaons

Operating Environment

Although the tight
credit situation has shown signs of improvement thanks to the

quantitative

easing
efforts launched by leading central banks particularly

the U.S Federal Reserve the Fed

signs of economic recovery
remained frage prompting central banks worldwide to continue

pursuing
their accommodative monetary pohcy aiming at reviving

the economy that has suffered the

deepest recession since World War II
During

the two meetings in the second quarter of 2009 the

Fed resolved to maintain the Federal Funds Rate in the
range

of 0.00-0.25 percent Meanwhe the

Bank of Thaands Monetary Poky Committee MPC decided to cut the
one-day repurchase rate by

0.25
percent

from 1.50 percent to 1.25 percent at the
meeting on Apri 2009 before leaving the

poicy rate unchanged in the May 20
meeting Folowing such decisions by the authorities the

domestic market interest rates dropped

Due to the general view that the economic crisis has bottomed out the market later
grew

in

optimism regarding global economic recovery thereby supporting upward trend in ol and

commodity prices late in the second
quarter

of 2009 Yields of domestic and foreign bonds

particularly of long-term tenors also began to move upward Against this backdrop
of economic

optimism coupled with competition for deposits some commercial banks started to rol out special
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long-term deposit products off enng higher interest rates than conventional deposit products in order

to retain ther consumer bases and support future business expansion

For development of the domestic money market the Bank of Thaiand Bol has encouraged

competition and transactions in the money market by offering priveges and specifying the

transaction vokime of primary dealers in addition to promoting the use of the Bangkok Interbank

Offered Rate BIBOR as benchmark among al financial institutions in their termed transactions

Business Operations in the Second Quarter of 2009

The Bank maintained our cautious management of
iquidity

and interest rate risks in
response

to the changing market conditions In addition we continued to analyze investment risks carefuly

whe sufficient levels of iquidity were prepared for efficient handing of possible changes in the

operating
environment and fund flow

volatlty

On June 2009 the Bank early-redeemed the subordinated debentures issued by our

Cayman Islands branch on August 21 1996 totalng
USD200 mion at the 8.25-percent coupon rate

with specled maturity dated in 2016 Out of the total USD15 mbon we proposed to take up

USD16.69 mion in those debentures were redeemed

Financial Position

For the second
quarter

of 2009 the total investments of
treasury operations banking book

averaged
Baht 248155 muon decreasing by

Baht 33519 muon or 11.90
percent compared to the

frst
quarter

of 2009 Money market investments accounted for 25.82
percent

of our total investments

whe investments in the capital market accounted for the remaining 14.18 percent

Note The fiires above are managenal figures

Including
loans

Treasury Operations Income

In the second quarter of 2009 we earned total interest and dividend income of Baht 1219

muon from our treasury operations banking book faing by Baht 530 muon or 29.32 percent from

the first
quarter

of 2009 This was mainly due to decrease in
average investments amid the

downward trend in money market interest rates during the second quarter
of 2009

Units Miflion Baht

Interest and L.. .ncoine

Interbank and money market items 11.06 218 111 493 69.31

Investments 82.94 1061 1098 31 3.42
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Risk Management and Risk Factors1

4.1 Credit Risk Management

In the second quarter of 2009 the Bank continued to improve our credit risk management in

various dimensions and undergone other
necessary

actions to ensure effective
responses against

increased economic risk To summarize

Loan
portfoho management The Bank has estabhstied loan target

for each industry

conducted credit risk classification and set criteria for screening of customers in each

industry as wel as specified industnes that reqthre credit extension control The Bank

has continualy
exercised

prudence
in our credit extension to high-risk industries

especialy
in approving long-term loans for production expansion while credit

monitoring has been carried out closely

Credit approval for new customers In addition to adopting strict credit control for high-

risk industries the Bank revised credit criteria and the operational delegated lending

authority operational OLA as well as adopted risk-adjusted customer screening
criteria

for both commercial and personal loans to better reflect the customer risks and the

economic condition For commercial loans the Bank estabhshed additional pre

screening
criteria of customers in each

industry
which has been used as tool for

credit-related officers to ensure clearer credit operation

Existing-customer relationship management The Bank has continued to carry out

prudent credit monitoring via the development of earty warning signs for customers

wherein relationship managers would take any necessary actions as soon as negative

signals
from customers are detected In addition the structures of customers credit

hmits have been monitored reviewed and revised to be in line with their changing

business and cash flow conditions The Bank also undertakes stress tests for each

customer group on regular
basis as preemptive action to ensure that

any problem

it were to occur would be solved in timely manner

Credit quabty monitoring and control The Bank has adopted debt monitoring process

with increased efficiency and speed For reta customers with record of previous

credit use in high-risk transactions debt colection would start on the first
day of late

payments

The detais of Overal Risk Management Credft Risk Market Risk Liquklity Risk Operadonal Risk Management plus

the Basel II Capal Accord and Performance Measurements using Risk-adjusted Return on Capital RAROC and

Economic Profit can be viewed in the MDA
repofl

for the year ended December 31 28
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Outstanding Loans

As of June 30 2009 the Banks consolidated outstanding loans stood at BaN 881648

mion increasing by Baht 4506 milion or 0.51 percent
from Baht 811142 muon at the end of

March 2009

As of June 30 2009 59.44
percent

of the Banks outstanding loans to customers were loans

exceeding
Baht 20 million Credit extended to the 20 largest borrowers excluding

Phethai Asset

Management Company Limited and the companies in KASIKORNBANKGROUP accounted for Baht

54110 milion or 6.11 percent of the Banks total loan portfoho
which is not high compared to total

outstanding loans of the Bank Classified
by

customer
type juristic persons

accounted for Baht

541432 mdkon or 61.11
percent

of outstanding loans while sole proprietorships
and individual

customer credit accounted for the remaining
38.29

percent
In terms of maturity credit with

maturities of less than or equal to year
accounted for 51.18 percent of the Banks total loans

The Banks Consolidated Lending
Portfolio Profile

LessIhi20MB Over2OMB

As ot June 302009

Cred Amount

3976

Busmess enties Individual

J1n
6220

LessthanoequaI1year Ovlyear

As at Maidi 31 2009

As otJune 30 2009

Type of Customer

As at Mardi 31 2009

As at June 30 2009

Credd
Mattilty

As at Manch 312009

20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

The Banks consohdated lending portfoho including
accrued interest receivables as of the

end of June and March 2009 is depicted
in the blowing
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The Banks Consoldated Lending Portfolio

çmcluding Accrued Interest Receivables

AIOO09
Agricuttital Muting

Others Agæculftiial MUting

10.41% 2.88%
10.09% 2.81%

Housing
Loans

Housuig
Loans

13.67% 13.45%

Utilities Services

10.26%

Real

Consuction

6.98%

Manufadliiflng
Comnierce

56.69%

Non-performing Loans

As of June 30 2009 the Banks consolidated NPLs stood at Baht 35051 mllion equal to

3.14
percent

of the total outstanding credit including that of financial institutions For Bank-only NPLs

the amount totaled Baht 32183 milion accounting for 3.44 percent of the total outstanding credit

including that of financial institutions which represented an over-quarter increase These NPL
figures

are shown in the table below

Non-Performing
Loans

Units Million Baht

Quater Emiij JIlL 2009 MN 31 2009

The Banks consoldated NPIs 35051 34834

Percent of total outstanding credit induding that of nancial institutions 3.14 3.69

The Bank-ory NPIs 32183 31861

Percent of total outstanding credit inchiding that of hnanci institutions 3.44 3.38

The Bank of Thaand has required commercial banks to report additional information on

NPLs WhKh includes

Net NPLs which refer to non-performing loans after alowances are deducted

The ratio of net NPLs to total loans after
deducting

allowances for bad loans

As of June 30 2009 the Banks consoldated net NPL5 stood at Baht 11535 mihon equal to

1.91
percent

of the total
outstanding credit including that of financial institutions For the Bank-only

net NPL5 the amount totaled Baht 15518 mlion accounting
for 1.69

percent
of the total

outstanding

AstMarchI1 2009

Utilities Seies

9.89%

Real

Consuction

6.94%

Manutactwing Conitnerce

55.60%
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credit inckidmg that of financial institutions which
represents an over-quarter increase The net NPL

figures are shown in the table below

Net
Non-Performing

Loans

Units Million BahQ

Quarter Emlig Jwt 30 2009 Mer 31 2009

The Banks consolated net NPLs 11535 11064

Percent of total outstanding credit including that of tinancial institutions 1.91 1.84

The Bank-oiy net NPLS 15518 14989

Percent of total outstanding credit including that of hnancial institutions 1.69 1.62

In the first haft of 2009 the Bank and subsidiary companies entered into debt restructuring

agreements
with borrowers with

pre-written-off outstanding
debts

totahng
Baht 39644 mhon At the

same time the Bank-only pre-written-off outstanding debt amounted to Baht 39512 milion The

details of debt restructuring and losses from debt restructuring as of the end of June 2009 and 2008

are shown in the fouowing table

Debt Restructuring and Losses from Debt Restructurmg

Units hllion Baht

Jtm3O20O9 Jtm.302008

Debt
restructuring

of the Bank and subsidiary comparies 39644 21803

Losses from debt
restructuring 1154 2241

Debt
restructuring

of the Bank only 39512 21696

Losses from debt
restructuring 1154 2236

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Revaluation Allowance for Debt Restructuring

As of June 30 2009 the Banks consohdated alowances for doubtful accounts and

revaluation alowance for debt
restructuring totaled Baht 31848 muon This amount was equivalent

to 131.34 percent of the level required by the BoT As for Bank-only alowances for doubtful accounts

and revaluation alowance for debt restructuring the amount stood at Baht 30611 muon which was

equivalent to 135.11
percent

of the level
required by

the B0T

Foreclosed Properties

As of June 30 2009 the Banks consolidated foreclosed
properties

had cost value of Baht

16104 milion accounting
for 1.36

percent
of total assets At the same time Bank-only

foreclosed

properties had cost value totakng Baht 12825 mhon accounting for 1.08 percent of total assets

Meanwhile consolidated allowances for impairment of foreclosed properties were at Baht

1511 muon equivalent to 9.19 percent of the cost value of those foreclosed properties As for Bank-

only figures alowances for the impairment of foreclosed properties totaled Baht 1151 milion

representing 9.02 percent of the cost value of foreclosed properties Current alowances both
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consolidated and Bank-only are believed to be sufficient to cover holding maintenance and disposal

expenses as wel as losses on the liquidation of foreclosed properties The details of foreclosed

properties
and their associated alowances as of the end of June and March 2009 are shown below

foreclosed Properties

Units Million BahtTi
Consodated foreclosed properties 16104 16116

Percent of total assets 1.36 1.32

Allowances for impairment of consolidated foredosed properties 1511 1518

Percent of consodated foredosed properties 9.19 9.19

Bank-only foreclosed properties 12825 12616

Percent of total assets 1.08 1.04

Allowances or impairment of Bank-only foreclosed properties 1151 1229

Percent of Bank-only foredosed propeilies 9.02 9.69

Phethai Asset Management Company Limited

As of June 30 2009 Phethai AMC had resolved and/or restructured NPLs amounting to Baht

12448 million or 98.00 percent
of the total initial unpaid principal balance with an expected recovery

rate of 48.00
percent

The detads of NPL resolution and/or restructuring over the
past

five
quarters

are shown in the table below

Loans Resolved/ Restructured at Phethai Asset Management Company Limited

Units Miflion Baht

terEmlig Jim 30 31 Dec 31 Sep 30 .hm 30

2009 2009 2008 2008 2008

Phelhai Asset Management Company
United

Cumulative loans resolved/restructited 12448 12324 12294 12100 11161

Percent of the total iritial unpaid prindpal balance 98.00 98.00 98.00 91.00 96.96

4.2 Market Risk Management

In the second quarter of 2009 the bond underwriting
business operated by KGroup grew

significantly due to an increase in the
supply

of bond folowifig low interest rates As resuft KGroup

recorded number of
high-value underwriting transactions particulay for customers in the energy

sector With the bond underwriting business expansion its transaction volume rose thereby

increasing market risk derived from this business Nonetheless such risk remained under the limits

specied by the Bank and is closely monitored by the Internal Risk Management Department and the

Risk Management Committee
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4.3
Liquidfty

Risk Management

The overal economy in the second
quarter

of 2009 continued to show improvement as

evidenced from slowing contraction of economic indicators along with more positive signs from the

money market Nonetheless to cope with the uncertain economic environment as wel as possible

credit and market nsks that may consequently lead to hquidity nsk the Bank has developed and

upgraded guidelines for liquidity stress testing Additional scenarios have been added into our stress

testing to properly reflect the current economic condition and possible economic cnses in the future

4.4 Other Risk Management

Risks associated with Guarantees and Avals

Certain transactions with customers are in the form of
guarantees on their borrowing or

performance letters of credit or avals on notes Such transactions are considered to be lending

which requires
submission of colateral Regarding risk control in this area the Bank uses the same

criteria as used in the Banks normal credit approval processes As of June 30 2009 the Banks

contingent obligations were Baht 111222 mOon compared to Baht 104141 mOon at the end of

March 2009

Risks Incurred from Contractual Obhgations on Derivative Instruments

The Bank conducts various derivative transactions as tools for hedging risks from exchange

rates interest rates as wel as securities prices To increase our income the Bank also provides

derivative instrument trading
services to customers and business alies as wel as conducting our own

derivative instrument trading in accordance with the Banks pohcies As of June 30 2009 the Bank

had foreign exchange contracts on the purchase side of Baht 318181 mOon with Baht 391091

mOon on the sales side compared to BahI 305132 mOon and Baht 324998 miNion respectively at

the end of March 2009 In addition the Bank had interest rate contracts on the
purchase

side of Baht

141105 mOon and Baht 141251 mOon on the sales side compared to Baht 612526 milion and Baht

612012 miNion respectively at the end of March 2009

Risks Related to Capital Adequacy

As of June 30 2009 the Banks capital adequacy ratio was at 15.91
percent

which is

significantly
above the BoT minimum

requirement
of 8.50

percent
To ensure that our current capital

level is prudently sufficient to absorb
any possible inipacts from changes in economic situations and

B0Ts regulations for the present and future the Bank continues to manage and monitor capital

adequacy closely
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4.5 Basel II Pillar Capftal Adequacy Disclosure

As capital is fundamental and is the most essential form of fundmg for financial institutions

effective capital management must therefore be ascnbed the highest priority
in achieving financial

strength and sustainable crediby

Placing great emphasis on capital the Banks capital management approach is consistent

with international practices as well as being in accordance with the International Capital Adequacy

Assessment Process ICAAP under Basel II Plar regmie Since the end of December 2008 the

Bank has adopted the Standardized Approach for calculation of Basel II Pdlar regulatory capital

requirements Developments
of more advanced calculation approaches

have been undertaken and

wil be
adopted

when deemed
appropriate

Transparency is another key achievement Development of the Disclosure Policy

demonstrates the Banks commitment to meet investors customers and stakeholders needs in

assessing the Banks risk and capital management The Pohcy resufts in comprehensive and rekable

disclosure of the Banks risk
exposure capital adequacy as well as risk and capital management

Capital Management

The main objectives of KBanks capital management are

To strengthen capital position and ensure capital adequacy for business undertaking

under normal and stressed conditions whe consorting with strategic and business

plans as well as risk management

To effectively manage capital aiming at maximizing the shareholders returns through

various management processes including
financial

planning portfolio management

risk-based pricing and performance management

The capital management procedures to ensure capital adequacy and effective capital

management include

Alignment of capital planning with strategic and business planning considering not only

external factors such as business opportunities but also internal factors such as the

Banks strategic direction business plan and risk management

Integration of capital management with various types of risk management including

credit risk market risk Iquidity risk operational risk and other risks

Assessment of capital position through stress testing to ensure capital adequacy and to

develop contingency plans in the events of stress

Wel established processes to regularly monitor and assess capital level under normal

and stressed conditions and
report to the Banks senior management to ensure
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Baht

Tier Capital

Baht 96566 milion

As of June 30 2009 the Bank recorded total capital of Baht 141839 milion compnsing Tier-

capital of Baht 96566 mOon and Tier-2 capital of Baht 51213 milion The detailed capital

composition can be found in the Capital Structure table

Basel II Minimum Capital Requirements

Market Risk

Baht 1845 niilhon 2.34%

Operational Risk

Credit Risk

Baht 6884 nikon 8.11%

BaIl 10213 milion

88.95%

The minimum capital required for al risk types under Basel II amounted to Baht 19002

mlion equivalent to the
risk-weighted assets value of Baht 929438 million Of the total minimum

capital requirement 88.95
percent

relates to the banks principal risk being credit risk as shown

in the Basel II Minimum
Capital Requirements table

effective and timely capital management The Banks capital management processes

including relevant tools and mechanisms have been continuously improved

Capital Structure and Adequacy

Capital Structure

rmr Capdal

Baht 51273 milion
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Capital Adequacy

Units Billion Baht

20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160

Mirimum Capital
79

Requrements

Total Capital Base 148

Capital above

Mirumum BaT requiement

Credit Risk Market Risk Operational nsk

The difference between the banks minimum capital requirement under the Basel II Accord

totang Baht 19002 mOon and the current available capital of Baht 141839 million indicates Baht

68836 mOon of capital above the minimum requirement This beyond regulatory level of capital is

adequate for future business growth under both normal and stressed conditions and also reflects

our capabity to maximize returns to shareholders

At 15.91
percent the banks Capital Adequacy Ratio CAR exceeds the B0T minimum

requirement of 8.50 percent and is considered to be within the Banks effective capital management

framework

Capital Structure

Units Million Bahi

PiodEmIing JwL30O9
Tier-i Capital 96566

Issued and fully paid-up share capital 23933

Premiums discount on share
capital 18103

Legal reserves 3050

Net income doss after appropriation 51481

lier-2
Capital 51213

TtCBase 147839
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Basel II Minmium Capital Requrements

JnitskUmnBaht

ForthePiodEndinq Jun.302009

Creht Risk

Normal dainis

Claims on sovereign entities and claims treated as claims on sovereign entities

Claims on financial institutions and daims treated as claims on financial institutions

Claims on corporate entities and claims treated as claims on corporate entities

Claims on reta

Claims on residential property

Other assets

Non-performing loans and impaired debt instruments

Market Risk

Interest rate risk

Equity risk

Foreign exchange risk

Commodity pnce
risk

Operational Risk

Total Minimum Capital Requirements

ToIWgJedAsses 929438

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Units Percent

Capital Adequacy Ratio 15.91

Tier-i
Capital

Ratio 10.39

on sovereign entities central banks mumlateral development banks and claims on non-central government

public sector entities treated as claims on sovereign entities

Claims on financial institutions and securities companies and claims on non-central government public sector entities

treated as claims on financial institutions

Claims on corporate entities and claims on non-central government public sector entities treated as claims on

corporate entities

10213

68568

54

1493

40032

16934

4144

5911

1105

1845

1016

710

6884

19002
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Operaons of Support Groups

Human Resource Management for the
Highest

Business
Efficiency

of

KASIKORNBANKGROUP

In the second
quarter

of 2009 the Bank revised and upgraded our human resource

management in accordance with the changing economic conditions of the country as means to

enhance operational efficiency of the KASIKORNBANKGROUP in detail

Development of Competency The Bank has introduced the internet as new channel for

our e-Learning program alowing all staff to access this source of
knowledge at any time

with
greater

convenience

Recruitment In the second
quarter

of 2009 the Bank recruited 2030 new staff in

response to our strategy to expand our branch network Besides this on June 16 2009

we introduced the K-Job Transfer system which operates through the otus Notes

system for enhanced efficiency of the internal job rotation This new system ailows staff

to folow the
progress

of their job rotation requests by themselves while preventing the

loss of relevant forms and documents

Labor Relations

The Bank has appointed representatives to negotiate
with the labor unions about the

request of employment improvement in 2009 according to the Labour Relations Act

B.E 2518 1915 The negotiations have run smoothly and will
lilely

reach resuft

that satisfies all concerned
parties

and
akgns

better with the current situation

The Employee Relations Department in cooperation with the Financial Accounting

Management Department
the Internal Audit Department and other relevant

departments arranged training course to educate 1311 branch managers and

assistant branch managers about fraud investigation and detection methods

Internal Communications

The Bank launched new TV
program

entitled Coaching Clinic for
Salespersons in

order to give knowledge
of the consuftative sales technique which is way to

support and develop KBank branch officers competitiveness

The Bank launched campaigns to educate all KASIKORNBANKGROUP staff about

the outbreak of influenza Hi Ni via all communication channels while emergency

plans were provided to prevent any damages that might affect the Banks business

continuity and the services provided to our customers
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IT Outsourcing

In the second quarter of 2009 the Bank undertook preparations by setting up electnc and

communication
systems for new computer backup center at the Chaeng Watthana Data Center in

order to support the Banks operation business
expansion

and to enhance the efficiency of the

Banks various services Moreover the Bank has started to move the
computer backup system

from

Phahon Yothin Main Branch to the Chaeng Watthana Data Center and this project is expected to be

completed ii July 2009

K-Transformaon

At the end of the second quarter of 2009 the Bank continued to make
progress

in our

K-Transformation0
strategic project as planned wfth major accomplishments in the Multi-Channel

Sales and Services MSS and IT Capal ITC projects Regarding our MSS project the Bank has

completed the first phase of System Design Build in the first quarter of 2009 We are now in the

system
test phase to facthtate sales and services at branch level before planning to rol out this

system implementation to KBank branches nationwide during 2009-2010 For our ITC project we are

currently under the
system development phase

and
entering

into the testing phase for our new core

banking system to ensure efficient Inks to other IT systems We beheve that this project will not only

meet the needs of the Bank business unfts but also enhance the competitiveness as wel as enable

them to develop new products and services with
complex

features more responsively
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KASIKORNBANKs Investmeils in Subsidiary and Associated Compaties

The Banks investments in
subsidiary

and associated companies as of the end of June 2009

are sted in the table below

Details of Investments

Conany Name Place Type No of No of Percentage Type of Operallig

Business Shams Shies Held Held Shies P1orrr

Issued Percent For the Fi

Haiti

Investment in Asset Management Company

PHETHAI ASSET MANAGEMENT CO.LTD Bangkok Asset 800000000 800000000 100.00 Ordinary 3522582

Tel 0-2694-5000 Ext.5208 Fax 0-2694-5205 Management

Investment in KASIKORNBANKGROUP

KASIKORN RESEARCH CENTER CO.LTD Banqkok Services 100000 100000 100.00 Ordinary 1118091

Tel 0-2213-1144 Fax 0-2210-1218

KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO.LTD Bangkok Mutual Fund 21154214 21154214 100.00
Ordinary

265310541

Tel 0-2613-3999 Fax 0-2613-3900 Management

KASIKORN SECURITIES PUBLIC CO.LTD Bangkok SecuæUes 60000000 59995162 99.99
Ordinary 1511596

Tel 0-2696-0000 Fax 0-2696-0099

KASIKORN FACTORING CO.LTD Bangkok Factoæng 1600000 1600000 100.00
Ordinary 6126134

Tel 0-2290-2900 Fax 0-2216-9110
__________

KASIKORN LEASING CO.LTD Bangkok Leasing 90000000 90000000 100.00 Ordinary 8527995

Tel 0-2696-9999 Fax 0-2696-9988
__________

Investment in Support Service Providers to KASIKORNBANKGROUP

PROGRESS GUNPAI CO.LTD Bangkok Services 200000 200000 100.00 Ordinary 3191480

Tel 0-2213-3900 Fax 0.2210-1262

PROGRESS PLUS CO.LTD Bangkok Services 230000 230000 100.00 Ordinary 1264391

Tel 0-2225-2020 Fax 0.2225-2021

PROGRESS LAND AND BUILDINGS CO.LTD Bangkok Real Estate 1516000 1516000 100.00 Ordinary 3800058

Tel 0.2215-1880 Fax 0-2215-1889 Development
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Company Name Place Type ol No ol No ol Percetlage Type of Opcsatiig

Busliess Shaes Shares Hd Held Shares Petfotnnc4

Issued ercent FortheFi

HIof

poor

Ba

PROGRESS FACILITIES MANAGEMENT CO.LTD Bangkok Services 50.000 50000 100.00 Ordinary 358531

Tel 0.2213-3288-91 Fax 0-2213-3292

PROGRESS MANAGEMENT CO.LTD Bangkok Servces 60000 60000 100.00 Ordinary 2548641

Tel 0-2215-1880 Fax 0-2215.1889-91

PROGRESS SOF1WARE CO.LTD Bangkok Services 100000 100000 100.00 Ordinary 2569632

Tel 0-2225-1900-1 Fax 0-2225-5654.5

PROGRESS STORAGE CO.LTD Bangkok Services 30000 30000 100.00 Ordinary 8095901

Tel 0-2273-3833 Fax 0-2211 -4184

PROGRESS SERVICE CO.LTD Bangkok Services 20000 20000 100.00 Ordinary 864331

Tel 0-2273-3293-4 Fax 0-2273-3292

PROGRESS CO.LTD Bangkok Services 10000 10000 100.00 Ordinary 811400

Tel 0-2270-1010-6 Fax 0-2270-1068-9

10 PROGRESS SERVICE SUPPORT CO.LTD Bangkok Services 40000 40000 100.00 Ordinary 2564291

Tel 0-2470-5414 Fax 0-2470-5355

11 PROGRESS APPRAISAL CO.LTD Bangkok Services 5000 5000 100.00 Ordinary 4940931

Tel 0-2210-6900 Fax 0-2218-5035

12 PROGRESS COLLECTION CO.LTD Bangkok Services 50000 50000 100.00 Ordinary 1285171

Tel 0-2213-3210 Fax 0-2213-2559

13 PROGRESS TRAINING CO.LTD Bangkok Services 11000 11000 100.00 Ordinary 76496

Tel 0-2410-6213 Fax 0-2470-31 98

14 K-SME VENTURE CAPITAL CO.LTD Bangkok Joint 20000000 20000000 100.00 Ordinary 2222793

Tel 0-2693-2333 Fax 0-2693-2323 Venture

15 KHAO KIA VENTURE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT Venture

CO.LTD Bangkok Capital 1000000 1000000 100.00 Ordinary 1721811

Tel 0-2693-2333 Fax 0-2693-2323 Management

Investment in Associated Companies

PROCESSING CENTER CO.LTD Bangkok Services 500000 150000 30.00 Ordinary 15328111

Tel 0-2231-6330-4 Fax 0-2231-6340
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Company Name Place Type of No of No of Petenlage 1pe of Opeialg

Busmess Shies Shares Held HeM Ses Pert
omunci

Issued Percer FwtheFi

Half

mr
BaIt

RURAL CAPITAL PARTNERS CO.LTD Bangkok Joint 1000000 215000 21.50 Ordinary 113115

Tel 0-2118-1852-3 Fax 0-2118-1850 Venture

GRAND HOTEL CO.LTD Bangkok Hotel 100000000 20000000 20.00 Ordinary

Tel Fax

Note These
operatlng performance hgttes are shown subskary and associated companies hnanaal statements

KHAO KLA VENTURE CAPIT AL MANAGEMENT CO.LTD is subsiary company of KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO.LTD Since the

Bank has
fully

owned KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO.LTD which holds 100-percent shares in KHAO KIA VENTURE CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT CO.LTD li means that the Bank has
indirectly

held 100-percent shares in KHAO KLA VENTURE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

CO.LTD
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